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Pursuant to Section 2, Article lX-D of the Philippine Constitution and Section 43 of
Presidential Decree No. 1445, otherwise known as the Government Auditing Code of the
Philippines, we transmit herewith our report on the results of the audit of the accounts and
transactions of the Social Housing Finance Corporation (SHFC) and the Community
Mortgage Program and Amortization Support and Developmental Financing Components of
the Abot Kaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 .

The report consists of the lndependent Auditor's Report, the Audited Financial Statements of
the SHFC and the AKPF, the Observations and Recommendations, and the Status of
lmplementation of Prior Years' Audit Recommendations.

The Auditor expressed a gualified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the financial
statements of the Social Housing Finance Corporation and the AKPF for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 because the Undistributed Cottections (UC) totaling p430.326
million and P374.503 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 , respectively, remained
unposted to Mortgage Contrac{ Receivable (MCR) due to the absence of a policy on the
proper and timely distribution of UC to the appropriate individual ledgers of the member-
borrowers (MBs). Thus, the UC and the MCR accounts are both overstated by the same
amounts. Moreover, assets of SHFC amounting to P'!9.189 billion and P21.031 billion as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 , respectively, were not stated at their fair value due to the
absence of policy on the assessment, measurement and recording of impairment losses as
required under PAS 36 and 39, thus, casting doubt on the reliability and valuation of the
corporate assets.

For the above observations, we reiterated our prior year's audit recommendations that
Management:

For U nd i strib uted Collection s

Prioritaze allocation of payments of MBs who availed of the one-year updating and
remedial accounts to MCR;

b. Require the responsible/concerned operating uniudepartment to coordinate and
reconcile the individual MBs with the Community Association (CA) account under
the Finance and Comptrollership Department (FCD);
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c. Submit work breakdown schedule to post and allocate UC for CY 2018 by at least:

65 percent of the UC by end of CY 20 '19; and
35 percent of the UC by end of CY 2020;

d. Reconcile the variance between the SL and GL balances by at least

I
65 percent ofthe UC by end of CY 2019; and
35 percent of the UC by end of CY 2020;

Oblige the CAs to remit amortizations of MBs with the accompanying Remittance
Report and Abstract of Collection reflecting the individual monthly payments by the
MBs in accordance with the Collection Agreement;

Require the lnformation and Communication Technology Department (ICTD) to
enhance the database to include the HDH Projects and all other accounts not yet in
the database;

S. Require the NHMFC to submit listing of MBs relative to the transferred accounts
amounting to P83.570 million;

h. Formulate policy on the number of days within which to distribute/allocate payments
made by MBs to avoid the accumulation of UC; and

lmprove and update guidelines on substitution of MBs to avoid furlher accumulafion
of UC every year.

For assets that were not stated at fair value

We reiterated our prior year's audit recommendation that Management formulate
policy/guidelines on the assessment, measurement and recording of impairment losses of its
recorded assets for CY 2018 as required under PAS 36 and 39.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

A variance of P608.773 million between the General Ledger (GL) and Subsidiary Ledger
(SL) balances of the Mortgage Contracts Receivable - Community Mortgage Program
(MCR-CMP) account as at December 31, 2018 casts doubt on the accuracy, reliability
and validity of the account, contrary to Section 1 11 of Presidential Decree (pD) No.
'1445 and Paragraph 15 of PAS 1 .

We recommended that Management

a. Require the responsible/concerned operating uniUdepartment to coordinate and
reconcile the individual MBs with the CA account under the FCD;

b. Reconcile the variances between SL per CA and SL per MBs as well as SL and GL
balances of P608.773 million by at least:

i. 65 percent of the variance by end of CY 2019;
ii. 35 percent of the variance by end of CY 2020; and

Require the ICTD to assist the FCD in enhancing and developing an efficient and
effeclive database.
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2. A High Density Housing Project (HDHP) amounting lo P725.379 million was not
completed within the period stipulated in the Building Construction and Site
Development Agreement dated June 8, 2015. lt has a slippage of 857 days, or almost
two and a half years, as of December 31, 2018, depriving the lnformal Settler Families
(lsF)-beneficiaries living in watenrvays and danger areas of affordable and decent
housing, resulting in the non-attainment of the objectives of the Program, including the
non-recovery of the Corporate investment in housing projects.

Compute for and demand the payment of Liquidated Damages from the Contractor,
pursuant to Article Xl of the Building Construction and Site Development
Agreement;

b. lmplement the following remedies provided in the Agreement against the
Contractor:

Give written notice to the Contractor to proceed with such work and to perform
such agreement; and

lf the Contractor fails to do so within seven days from receipt thereof, the HOA
and SHFC shall have the option to proceed against the bond and enter the
premises and to employ any other contractor to complete the work at the
expense of the Contractor; and

As part of due diligence in future proiects, ensure that SHFC undertake assessment
of the contractor/developer and that loan releases are made only on the basis of
duly validated Statement of Work Accomplishment pursuant to Seclions 8 and 9 of
Corporate Circular HDH No. 14-002 dated March 31 , 2014.

We recommended and Management agreed to

lmmediately subjecl the procurement of janitorial and security services to
competitive bidding process; and

b. Strictly comply with RA No. 9184 on the rules and regulations on the procurement
of support services.

4. Collective Negotiation Agreement (CNA) incentive amounting to P5.658 million was
granted by SHFC to its 230 officers and employees despite accomplishment below the
required rating based on SHFC's Performance Scorecard on Key Performance
lndicators approved by the Governance Commission for GOCCs (GCG), contrary to
DBM Budget Circular No. 2018-05.

We recommended that Management make representataon with the GCG for the final
score of the Corporation based on the GCG-approved Performance Scorecard.

a
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We recommended that Management.

3. Absence of month-to-month contract extension for janitorial and security services with
expired contracts in CYs 2017 and 2018 is contrary to the Revised Guidelines on the
Extension of Contracts for General Support Services issued by the General
Procurement and Policy Board (GPPB) and RA No. 9184. Payments amounting to
P98.219 million were made for the services rendered.



5. Past due/in-default car loan amortizations amounting to P2.225 million of eight retired
ofiicers and former members of the Board of Directors remain uncollected as of
December 31,2018, contrary to the IRR of the SHFC fficers Vehicle Acquisition
Assistance Program (VAAP), resulting in the non-recovery or loss of the funds
expended for the car loan program.

lmmediately collect the total car loan obligation from the retired officers and former
members of the Board;

b. Extrajudicially enforce the Deed of Reconveyance or Deed of Sale and/or Chattel
Mortgage Agreement and immediately repossess the motor vehicle from the
Officers concemed; and

c. Exercise immediately the legal remedies provided under the IRR of the SHFC
Officers VAAP.

The other audit observations together with the recommended courses of action, which were
discussed by the Audit Team with concerned Management officials and staff during the exit
conference conduc;ted on April 19, 2019, are discussed in detail in Part ll of the report.

ln a letter of even date, we requested the SHFC's President to take appropriate actions on
the recommendations contained in the report and to inform this Commission of the actions
taken thereon within 60 days from the date of receipt.

We acknowledge the support and cooperation that the Management extended to the Audit
Team, thus facilitating the completion of the report.

Very truly yours,

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

By

a

/^-a. Lz C .ta.;"tlo
MA. LISA P. INGUILLO

Director lll ^t lli
Officer-in-Charge 7

Copy furnished:

The Prcsident ofthe Republic oI the Philippines
The Vice President
The Speaker ofthe House of Representatives
The Chairperson - Senate Finance Committee
The Chairperson - Appropriations Committee
The Secretary ofthe Department ot Budget and Management
The Govemance Commission tor Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations
The Presidential Management Stafr, Ofrce ot the President
The UP Law Center
The National Library

We recommended and Management agreed to:
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The Social Housing Finance corporation (SHFC) was organized and established on June
21, 2OO5 by virtue of Executive Order (EO) No 272 which was signed and approved by

the President of the Republic of the Philippines on January 20,2OO4.

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation
(NHMFC), SHFC was created primarily as the lead agency in undertaking social housing
programs that will cater to the formal and informal sectors in the low-income bracket and
in tifing charge of the development and administration of social housing program
schemei, particularly the Community t\ilortgage Program (CMP) and the Amortization
Support and Developmental Financing Programs of the Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF)
as well as other social housing programs of the NHMFC. 

h
Presently, SHFC is merely a trustee of the transferred CMP funds and assets. The
NHMFC remains in control of the affairs of sHFC and it did not abandon its obligation to
use its ownership under a trust relationship having retained its full control over the subject
funds.

The governing board of SHFC, which exercises its corporate powers and determines its

policies, is composed of the following: (a) the Chairman of Housing Urban Development
Coordinating Council (HUDCC); (b) the President of SHFC; (c) the Secretary of Department
of Budget and Management (DBM), (d) the Undersecretary of Department of Finance
(DOF); (e) the Assistant Governor of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP); (0 the President
of NHMFC; (g) the Undersecretary of Department of lnterior and Local Government (DILG),

and (h) three private sector representatlves.

The President is assisted in the management of SHFC by the Executive Vice-President,
tive Vice-Presidents, 12 Officer-in-Charge Vice-President, eight Department Managers
and 29 Officer-in-Charge Department Manager. The personnel complement for current
year 2O'18 is 513, with 234 regular and 279 agency-hired employees. To date, the SHFC
has 11 Satellite/Regional Offices located in Bacoor Cavite, Isabela, Naga City, Puerto
Princesa City in Palawan, Bacolod City, lloilo City, Cebu City, Davao City, General Santos
City, Cagayan de Oro City and Zamboanga City.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

The DBM-approved Corporate Operating Budget (COB) of the SHFC for CYs 2018 and
2017 amounted to P2.761 billion and P5.995 billion, respectively, which was utilized as
follows:

2018 2017

Particu lars Budget Utilization Budget
(ln Thousand Pesos)

Utilization

Personal services
l\4aintenance and other operating expenses
Capital outlay
Loans Outlay

281,959
350,285
129,110

2,000,000

261 ,235
zot,tzz

57,060
1,916,467

245,000
417 ,944

5,332,412

211,867
231 ,531

1,931,048

2,761,354 2,502,487 5,995,356 2,374,446



The registered office of SHFC is at Banco de Oro Plaza, 8737 Paseo de Roxas, Makati
City.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (ln Philippine Peso)

l. Comparative Financial Position

Particulars
2017

As restated
lncrease

(Decrease)2018

Assets
Liabilities
Equity

27,36'1 ,085,100
21,'150,245,654

6,170,839,446

23,221,147,751
17 .706,697,664
5,514,450,087

4,139,937,349
3,483,547,990

656,389,359

Il. Comparative Results of Operations

Pa rtic u lars 2018 2017
As restated

lncrease
(Decrease)

Total income
Total expenses
Profit before tax
lncome tax expense
Profit after tax
Subsidy from National Gov't

717 ,793,791
513,574,152
58,070,563
26,291,956

177 ,927 ,683
590,247,183
768,174,866

688,203,502
418,863,084
177 ,598,441
58,784,050

210,556,368
1,221,669,800
1 ,432 ,226 ,168

29,590,289
94,711,068

(119,527 ,878)
(32,492,O94)
(32,628,685)

(631,422,617),

Comprehensive income (664,051, 302)

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

2014

Performance lndicators Targets Accomplishments Wt.

Social lmpact
Utilize Housing Subs,U/es for the Provision of

Shelter Secuity and lmproved Housing
QualitY

. 52,600 lSFs provided with shelter
secuity (Number of /SFs Assisted)

24,OO0 15,201 35%

Stakeholders
Percentage of Satisfied Customers

. Number of Stakeholders who give a
mting of at least Satisfactory - 90ok

90% 10%

Financial
lmprove Collection Efficiency Rate

. Collection Efficiency Rating - 84o,6

lncrease Net Operating lncome (Before Tax and
Subsidy)

840/0

Pl20million

69.05%

P2O4.22O million

100/o

10%

Survey will be
completed by first
week of March 20'19.
Initial results will be
released on the
second week of
March 2019



2018

Performance lndicators Targets AccomPlishments Wt

. Pl20 million Net Revenue
lmprove Budget Utilization Rate

. Totat Disbursement of DBM
Approved CoB - 9o%-1Ao%

Not less than 90%
bul not more than

100%

10%

lnternal Process
lmprove Support Sysfems for Effective and

Efficient PrDcesses
. DICT -approved ISSP
. lmplementation ol Pltase 1 ofthe

DICT-aPProved ISSP

DICT
ISSP

approved

lmplementation of
Phase lof DICT-
approved ISSP

SHFC's lnformation
System Strategic Plan
(ISSP) was approved
by the Department of
lnformation and
Communication
Technology (DICT) on
November 16, 2018

ISSP Phase I fully
implemented

1A%

E

Garning and Growth
Attain Quality M an agement Ceftification

. Aftain ISO 9001:2015 Ceftification
Attain ISO:2015
Certification
(All or Nothing)

'100% Completion
of all Competency
Based Job
Description
(Note: Set
Competency
Baseline by 2019 )

(allor nothing)

SHFC ISO 9001:2015
Certirlcation was
issued by AJA
Registrar on August 6,
2018

SHFC Completed all
211 oul of 211

position titles) it's
Competency Based
on Job description

10%

5%

SCOPE OF AUDIT

our audits covered the examination, on a test basis, of the accounts and financial

transactions of the SHFC and the AKPF - Amortization Support and Developmental
Financing Programs for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 and were

conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit lnstitutions
(lssAl). our audit was aimed to determine the fairness of presentation of the financial

statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and to assess
the propriety of the financial transactions and compliance of SHFC with government laws,

rules and regulations.

lt

67.74%

Percentage ol Employees Meeting Required
Competencies

. l OOyo Completion of allCompetency
Based Job Desciqtion (Set

Com?etencY Baseline bY 2019)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S OPINION

we rendered a qualified opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the financial

statements of the social Housing Finance corporation and the AKPF for the years ended

December 31, 2O1B and 2017 because the Undistributed collections (UC) totaling
p430.326 million and P374.5O3 million as at December31,2018 and2017, respectively,

remained unposted to Mortgage contract Receivable (McR) due to the absence of a policy

on the proper and timely disiribution of UC to the appropriate individual ledgers of the

membei-borrowers (tVlBi). Thus, the UC and the MCR accounts are both overstated by

the same amounts. Moreover, assets of SHFC amounting to P19.189 billion and P21.031

billion as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, respectively, were not stated at their fair value

due to the absence of policy on the assessment, measurement and recording of
impairment losses as required uhder PAS 36 and 39, thus, casting doubt on the reliability

and valuation of the corporate assets.

For the above observations, we reiterated the prior year's S.rdit recommendations that

Management:

For U n d i stributed Col le ction s

a. Prioritize allocation of payments of MBs who availed of the one-year updating

and remedial accounts to MCR;

b. Require the responsible/concerned operating uniudepartment to coordinate and

reconctle the individual MBs with the CA account under the FCD;

c. Submit work breakdown schedule to post and allocate UC for CY 20'18 by at

least:

i. 65 percent ofthe UC by end of CY 2019; and
ii. 35 percent ofthe UC by end of CY 2O2O;

Oblige the CAs to remit amortizations of MBs with the accompanying Remittance
Report and Abstract of Collection reflecting the individual monthly payments by

the MBs in accordance with the Collection Agreement;

Require the lnformation and Communication Technology Department (ICTD) to
enhance the database to include the HDH Projects and all other accounts not yet
in the database;

Require the NHMFC to submit listing of MBs relative to the transferred accounts
amounting to P83.570 million;

Formulate policy on the number of days within which to distribute/allocate
payments made by MBs to avoid the accumulation of UC; and

f

g
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i. 65 percent ofthe UC by end of CY 2019; and
ii. 35 percent ofthe UC by end of CY 2020;

d. Reconcile the variance between the SL and GL balances by at least:



For assets that were not stated at fair value

we reiterated our prior year's audit recommendation that Management formulate
policy/guidelines on the assessment, measurement and recording of impairment losses of

its recorded assets for CY 2018 as required under PAS 36 and 39.

lmprove and update guidelines on substitution of MBs to avoid further
accumulation of UC every Year.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONs

We recommended that Management:

A variance of P608.773 million between the General Ledger (GL) and Subsidiary

Ledger (SL) balances of the Mortgage Contracts Receivable - Community Mortgage
Program (MCR-CMP) account as at December 31 , 2018 casts doubt on the accuracy,
reliabitity and validity of the account, contrary to Section, 111 of Presidential Decree
(PD) No. '1445 and Paragraph 15 of PAS 1. \

C

Require the responsible/concerned operating uniUdepartment to coordinate and

reconcite the individual MBs with the CA account under the FCD;

Reconcile the variances between SL per CA and SL per MBs as well as SL and

GL balances of P608.773 million by at least.

i. 65 percent of the variance by end of CY 2019;
ii. 35 percent of the variance by end of CY 2020; and

Require the ICTD to assist the FCD in enhancing and developing an efficient and

effective database.

a

b

b

Compute for and demand the
ContraGtor, pursuant to Article
Development Agreement;

lmplement the following remedies provided
Contractor:

payment of liquidated damages
Xl of the Building Construction

from the
and Site

the Agreement against thetn

2. A High Density Housing Project (HDHP) amounting lo P725-379 million was not

completed within the period stipulated in the Building Construction and Site
Development Agreement dated June 8, 2015. lt has a slippage of 857 days, or almost
two and a half years, as at December 31 , 2018, depriving the lnformal Settler Family
(lSF)-beneficiaries living in waterways and danger areas of affordable and decent
housing, resulting in the non-attainment of the objectives of the Program, including
the non-recovery of the Corporate investment in housing projects.

We recommended that Management:



Give written notice to the Contractor to proceed with such work and to
perform such agreement; and

3

lI the Contractor tails to do so wlthln seven days from recelpt Inereol, Ine

HOA and SHFC shall have the option to proceed against the bond and enter

the premises and to employ any other contractor to complete the work at the

expense of the Contractor; and

C.ASpartofduediligenceinfutureprojects,ensurethatSHFCUndertake
assessmentofthecontractor/developerandthatloanreleasesaremadeonlyon
thebasisofdulyvalidatedStatementofWorkAccomplishmentpursuantto
SectionsSandgofCorporateCircularHDHNo.l4-002datedMarch3,l,2014.

Absence of month-to-month contract extension forjanitorial and security services with

expiiei contracts in CYs 2017 and 2018 is contrary to the Revised Guidelines on the

Extension of Contracts for General Support Services issued by the General

Frocurement and policy Board (6PPB) and RA No. 9184. Payments amounting to

PgB.219 million were made for the services rendered'

We recommended and IVlanagement agreed to:

a.|mmediatelySubjecttheprocurementofjanitorialandSecurityServicesto
comPetitive bidding Process; and

b. stric y comply with RA No. 9184 on the rules and regulations on the procurement

of suPport services.

collective Negotiation Agreement (cNA) incentive amounting to P5.658 million was

grantedbysHrctoits230officersandemployeesdespiteaccomplishmentbelow
if,e requirld rating based on SHFC's Performance Scorecard on Key Performance

lndicators ,pprou6d by the Governance Commission for Goccs (GCG), contrary to

DBM Budget Circular No. 2018-05.

we recommended that Management make representation with the GCG for the final

score of the corporation based on the GCG-approved Pefiormance Scorecaro.

past due/in-default car loan amortizations amounting to P2.225 million of eight retired

officers and former members of the Board of Directors remained uncollected as at

December 31, 2018, contrary to the IRR of the sHFC Officers Vehicle Acquisition

Assistance Program (VAAP), resulting in the non-recovery or loss of the funds

expended for the car loan Program.

We recommended and lt/lanagement agreed to:

a. lmmediately collect the total car loan obligation from the retired officers and

former members of the Board;

b. Extrajudicially enforce the Deed of Reconveyance or Deed of sale and/or chattel
tr/ortgage Agreement and immediately repossess the motor vehicle from the

Officer concerned; and

4

5

VI



C Exercise immediately the legal remedies provided under the IRR of the SHFC
Officers VAAP.

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEARS'AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

out of 91 audit recommendations for both sHFC and AKPF embodied in the cY 2017

Annuai Audit Report, 47 were fully implemented, 17 were partially implemented, fourvere
reconsidered, 21 were not implemented and two are for implementation in cYs 2019 and

2020. out of the 21 not implemented recommendations, 17 were reiterated in this Report.

l"
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Republic of the PhiliPPines
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon CitY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Social Housing Finance Corporation
Banco de Oro Plaza
8737 Paseo de Roxas
Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financia! Statements \

Qualified Opinion

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the social Housing Finance

corporation (SHFC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance

Corporation, which fomprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018

and2017, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity,

statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to financial statements

including a summary of Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Bases for

Qualified opinion paragraphs, the financial statements present fairly, in all material

respects, the financial fiosition of SHFC as at December 31,2018 and 2017, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSS).

Bases for Qualified OPinion

The Undistributed Collections (UC) amounting to P430.326 million and P374.503 million

as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, remained unposted to Mortgage

contract Receivable (MCR) due to the absence of a policy on the proper and timely

distribution of uc to the appropriate individual ledgers of the member-borrowers (MBs).

Thus, the UC and the IVICR accounts are both overstated by the same amounts'

Moreover, assets of SHFC amounting to P19.189 billion and P21 .O31 billion as at

December 31, 2018 and 2017 , respectively, were not stated at their fair value due to the
absence of policy on the assessment, measurement and recording of impairment losses

as required unddr pAS 36 and 39, thus, casting doubt on the reliability and valuation of

the corporate assets.

we conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational standards of supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in

the Audrtols Resp onsibilities forthe Audit of the Financial Statemenfs section of our report.

we are independent of the sHFC within the meaning of the code of Ethics for Professional



Accountants in the Philippines (code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements, and we have fulfilled our other
responsibilities under those relevant ethical requirements and Code of Ethics. We believe

thai the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Financial Stafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines iS necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing SHFC's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going

conc;rn and using the going concern basis of accounting k:nless management either
intends to liquidate SHFC or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing sHFC's financial reporting
process.

Auditor'sResponsib/,ties for the Audit of the FinancialStafements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISSAIs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSSAls, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the planning and performance of the audit.
We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SHFG's internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

I



. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

SHFC's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained to

the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause

SHFC to cease to continue as going concern, and

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

signiticant deficiencies in inteiral control that we identify durihg our audit'

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial

statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 33 to the financial
statements is presented for the purpose of filing with the Bureau of lnternal Revenue and

is not a required part of the basic financial statements. such supplementary information is

the responsibility of the management of SHFC. The supplementary information has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

t-rJ0-"!tr r]r-,^Aq
EMMA B. ALCOVEN
Officer-in-Charge
Office of the Supervising Auditor

l,Aarch 28, 2019



SOCIAL HOUSiNG FINANCE CORPORATION
(A Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31 ,2018 and 2017
(ln PhilPPine Peso)

2014
2017

As Restated

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets
Other investmenls
Receivables
lnventories
Other current assets

4
5
6
7

9

4,043,304,5',15
4,079,763,312

109,828,543
4,181,476

352,802,343

2,141,192,397
3,338,353,381

50,359,743
83,394,895
2,855,826

423,979,033
8,5 ,880,189 6,040,135,275

Non-Current Assets
Receivables
lnvestment property

Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

7
10

11

12

13

14

16,587,080,818
1 ,405,524,aO3

182,338,924
1,351,642

45,034,947
549,873,877

15,111,507,752
1,318,742,356

153,22'1,808
860,459

44,551,973
552J24,128

18,771,204,9',t1 17,181,012,476

TOTAL ASSETS 27,361,085,100 23,221,147,751

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
lnter-agency payables

Trust liabilities
Deferred credits/unearned income

Other payables

15
16

17

1,212,066,40A
24,7A2,248

4,670,960
249,636,799

1,401,496,105

1,164,573,332
30,367,357

4,634,056
273,232,302

1,156,051,482
2,A92,652,520 2,628,858,529

Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trust liabilities

15
17

58,547,281
18,239,045,853

73,966,546
'15,003,872,589

18,297,593,134 15,077,839,135

TOTAL LIABILITIES z',t,190,245,654 17,706,697,664

Retained earnings
Stockholders' equity

20
20

6,160,839,446
10,000,000

5,504,450,087
10,000,000

TOTAL EQUITY 6,170,839,446 5,5'14,450,087

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 27,361,085,100 23,221,147,75',1

5

The Notes on pages I to 51 form part of these financial statements

Note



SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned Subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance corporation)

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

For the Years Ended December 31,2018 and 2017
(ln Philippine Peso)

Note 2018 2017

INCOME
Service and business income 21 571 644 715 596.461 525

571,644,715 596,461,525

EXPENSES
Personnel services
lvlaintenance and other operating expenses
Non-cash expenses
Financial expenses

22
23
24
25

251,714,762
238,109,244

17 ,939,222
5,810,S24

211 ,466.621
'I 84 ,O42,27 5

17,646,584
5,307,604

513 574,152 418,863,084

PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAX
Other non-operating income 26

58,070,563
'146,149,076

177,594,441
91,741.977

h

204,219,639 269,340,418

INCOME TAX EXPENSE(BENEFIT)
Current
Deferred tax

27
27

26,774,930

1482,97 4l
60,290,562
(1,506,512)

26,291,956 58,784,050

PROFIT/LOSS AFTER TAX
Net assistance/subsidy 28

177,927,643
590,247,183

210,556,368
1,221,669,800

NET INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive

768,174,866 1,432,226,164
income/(loss) for the period

coMPREHENStVE TNCOME/(LOSS) 768,174,866 1,432.226,168

The Noles on pages I to 51 form part of lhese financial stalements

6



SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

(A Wholly-owned Subsidiary ofthe NationalHome luortgage Finance CorPoratlon)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For lhe Yeats Ended December3l,2014 and 2017
(ln PhiliPpine Peso)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash inflows
Receipl oI inleGagency fuod lransters

Collection ol incomerevenue
Trust receipts
Collection of receivables

3 ,855,524,281
1,034,710,227

93,551,355
6,488,000
2,041,174

2,259,704,320
956 375,161
155,294 364

6,431,590
4,150,978

Other
4,992,315,041 3,381,956,413

\

214,723,237
105,080,525

83,9't6,945
61,105,051
26,005,021
13,434,953
6,344,142

316,905,364
108,563,5oo

16,190,022
5A,748,776
17,961,017

r,805,593,662
3,379.661

2,152,516,794
Other disbursemenls 2,320,303,586 2,674,265,194

2,672,O 11,455 707 691,219
Nit casn provioed bv operati

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

cash inflows
Proceeds from matured investments/redemption of long_tem

investmentshetum on inveslrnents 7,048,125,815
118,756,216

3,829,103 794
63.108.294

7,165,882,031 3.892,212.088

Cash outflows
Purchase of investrnents
Purchase/conslruclion ol prcperty. plant and equipment

Grant of loans

7 ,739 ,7 02,249
42,612,594

3,420,000
50,559Purchase of intangible assets

Tolalcash outflows 7,7A5,785,502 5,008,470.090

18.903,471) (1,116, 258,002)(6cash used in investinq activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash out lows

Payment of cash dividends

Payment ol long-term liabilities

Paymenl of interesl on loans and other fnancial changes

113,452,888
11,604,577
21,150,185

21,7aA,216

84,713,020
9,873,038
5 045,242

20,174242nses tor technical assistance
150,995,866) 119,805 542)

Total cash outrlows

(150,995,866) ( 119,805.542)
Net cash used in financing activities

INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS
2, 141,192,397 2,669.564 722
1,902,'t12,1',18 1528,372,325)

inning of the yearCash and cash equivalenls at beg
CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENO OF YEAR 4,043,304,515 2_141.192,397

TIre Notes on pages 9 to 51 form pan of hese financial stalemenls

7

Cash outflowr
Payment of exPenses
Remittance ol personnel Denefit contnbul,ons and mandatory deduclong

Ref'rnd ol deposits
Payment for PrePald expenses

Release of lnter-ageocy rund l,anslers
Grant of cash advances
Purchase of inventories

4 ,977 ,624,661
22,645 423

8,200,000



SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

(A wholly-owned Subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For lhe Years Ended December 31'2018 and 2017

(ln PhiliPPine Peso)

Paid in
Capital

20.1

Retained
Earnings

20.2

Total
Equity

Balance as at JanuarY 1.2017 '1o,ooo,o00 4,153,016,605 4,163,016.605

Adjustments:
Other adiustments 3 920 334 20,334

Restated balance as at January 1' 2017 10,000,000 4,156,936,939
1,432,226,164

4,166,936,939
1,432,226,168Comprehensive income for the Year

(84,713,020) (84, 713,020)
Dividends

2017 10,000 000 5,504 450,087 5 514 450,08?
Endi balance as at Dece mber 31

Balance as at December 3'1, 2017

Comprehensive income for the Year
Dividends

10,000,000
\

5,504,450,087
768,174,866

(1 13,452,888)

5,514,450,087
76B,174,866

(1 13,452,888)

1,667,381
Adjustments:

Other adiustments 1,667,381

Balance as at December 31,2018 10,000,000 6,160,839,,146 6,170,839,446

The Notes on pages 9 to 5l form part of these llnancial statements

B
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SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
(A wholty Owned Subsidiary of National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation). 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2O1A ANO 2017
(Amounts in PhiliPPine Peso)

On December 7, 2017 a Trust Agreement was entered into by and between the
Department of Transportation (DOT0 and Social Housing Finance Corporation for the
construction of Micro Medium Rise Building (MMRBs)/CMP Vertical, regular CMP, and
other community driven housing programs and shelter solutions that will primarily benefit
the lSFs living along the Tutuban-Los Baffos segment and Calamba Batangas
branchline (Philippine National Railways South Commuter Project). An initial amount of

1. CORPORATEINFORMATION

On January 20, 2OO4, Executive Order No, 272 was signed and approved by the
president of the Republic of the Philippines authorizing the National Home Mortgage

Finance corporation (NHMFC) to organize and establish the social Housing Finance

Corporation (SnfC1, as a wholly-owned subsidiary, in accordance with the Corporation

cod'e and pertinent rules and regulations issued by the securities and Exchange
commission (sEC). SHFC has been formally organized and established on June 21,

2005 with the issuance of the certificate of lncorporation under sEC No. CS 200510702.
ls

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of NHMFC, SHFC was created primarily to be the leao

agency to undertake social housing programs that will cater to the formal and informal

sictors in the low-income bracket and shall take charge of developing and administering

social housing progrbm schemes, particularly the Community Mortgage Program (CMP)

and the Amortization Support and Developmental Financing Programs of the Abot-Kaya
pabahay Fund (AKPF) as well as other social housing programs of the NHMFC, to allow

the NHMFC to focus on its primary mandate that is, developing the secondary market for

home mortgages.

presen y, SHFC is merely a trustee of the transferred cMP funds and assets. The

NHMFC remains in control of the affairs of sHFC and did not abandon its obligation to
use its ownership under a trust relationship having retained its full control over the
subject funds.

Aside from the CMP and AKPF, the SHFC has been implementing the Localized

Community l\Iortgage Program (LCMP) since July 2010- LCMP is a derivative of CMP

that would assist and empower the local government units (LGUs) in achieving their
housing programs for the informal sector in their respective areas.

ln 2010, the President of the Philippines issued a directive in line with the Ten-Point
covenant with the Urban Poor, to ensure a safe and a flood resilient permanent housing
solution for lnformal Settler Families (lSF) residing in the danger areas in the National
Capital Region (NCR). The directive falls squarely within the mandate of SHFC, thus, in

furtherance to its mandate and primary purpose, the High Density Housing (HDH)
Program was created and promulgated to extend financing assistance to organized
communities for the construction of high density housing projects and for acquisition of
lots for near-site, in city and near city relocations.

I



p3 billion pesos (First Tranche) was transferred to sHFC on February 20, 20'18 to

flnance the resettlement program for the said PNR Project'

sHFC's registered office, which is also its principal place of business, is located at No.

8737 pasio de Roxas, Makati City. The registered office of NHMFC is located at

Filomena Building lll, 104 Amorsolo Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City'

The financial statements of sHFc as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018

(including the comparative financial statements as at and for the year ended December

3i , 20171were auihorized for issue by SHFC'5 Board of Directors (BOD) on March 13,

2019.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these

financiil statements are summarized below. These policibs have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preoaration of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Repofting Standards

The financial statements of the SHFC have been prepared in

accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)

applicable to Government Business Enterprises (GBEs), issued by the

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council, pursuent to the

requirement under Commission on Audit Circular No. 2015-003. PFRSs
are adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from

the pronouncements issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), and approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy.

SHFC has deferred adoption of PFRS 9 as it intends to hire a consultant

to guide its Finance and Comptrollership Department in formulating
policies/guidelines for the assessment, classification, measurement and
recognition of financial instruments, to include impalrment losses.

ln addition, the Commission on Audit resolved, under COA Resolution
No. 2019 - 006 dated March 27 ,2019, that all Government Corporations
(GCs) classified as Government Business Enterprises (GBEs) that have
not taken into consideration the early application of the provisions of
PFRS I shall mandatorily apply the provisions of PFRS effective
January 1,2019.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and
settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.

a
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Adoption of the Commission on Audit (COA) Revised Chaft of Accounts
(RCA)

ln compliance with COA Circular No. 2016-006 dated December 29,
2016, SHFC adopted the RCA in its trial balance for CY 2017 and 2016.
General Ledger and Subsidiary Ledger accounts were diligently
analyzed and manually mapped to the RCA. SHFCs accounting
framework is designed to provide clear and reliable information
regarding the achievement of its operational objectives, compliant with
the applicable PFRSS.

c. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements.
SHFC presents a third statement of flnancial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period.when it applibs an accounting policy
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification
of items that have material effect on the information in the statement of
financial position at the beginning of the preceding period. The related
notes to the third statement of financial position are not required to be

disclosed.

d. Functional and Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, SHFC's
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute
amounts except when otherwise indicated,

Items included in the financial statements of SHFC are measured using
its functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which SHFC operates.

a. Effective in 2018 that are relevant to the SHFC

(i) PFRS I (2014), Financial lnstruments. This new standard on
financial instruments replaces PAS 39, Financial lnstruments:
Classification and Measurement, and PFRS I (2009, 20'10 and
2013 versions). This standard contains, among others, the following:

An expected credit loss (ECL) model in determining impairment
of all financial assets that are not measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), which generally depends on whether there

b

11

I

2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

o Three principal classification categories for flnancial assets
based on the business model on how an entity is managing its
f inancial instruments;



has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial asset; and

A new model on hedge accounting that provides significant
improvements principally by aligning hedge accounting more
closely with the risk management activities undertaken by entities
when hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures.

ln accordance with the financial asset classification principle of
PFRS 9 (2014), a financial asset is classified and measured at
amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect the contractual
cash flows that represent solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal outstanding. Moreover, a financial asset is
classified and subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it meets the SPPI criterion and is held in a
business model whose objective is abtrieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. All other
financial assets are measured at FWPL.

(iiD PAS 28, lnvestment in Assocrafes (Amendments) - Clarification on
Fair Value through Profit or Loss Classification (effective from
January I , 2018). The amendments clarify that the option for

1?

ln addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
instrument that is not held for trading in other comprehensive
income.

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are
financial assets is simplified by removing the requirement to
consider whether or not they are closely related, and, in most
arrangements, does not require separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements
which include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities,
with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The amendment also
requires changes in the fair value of an entity's own debt
instruments caused by changes in its own credit quality to be
recognized in other comprehensive income rather than in profit or
Ioss.

(ii) PAS 40 (Amendmenl), lnvestment Property - Reclassification to
and from investment propefiy. the amendment states that an entity
shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and
only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use
occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property. A change in management's intentions for the
use ot a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change
in use. The amendment provided a non-exhaustive list of examples
constituting change in use.



b'

venture capital organization, mutual funds and other similar entities

to elect the fair value through profit or loss classification in

measuring investments in associates and joint ventures shall be

made at initial recognition, separately for each associate or joint
venture.

Effective in 2018 that are not relevant to the SHFC:

The following new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to
existing standards are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning
on or jfter January 1, 2018 but are not relevant to the SHFC's financial
statements:

(i) PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers (effective from
January 1, 2018). This standard will replace PAS 18' Revenue, and
PAS 11, Construction Contracts, the related lnterpretations on

revenue recognition:. International' Financial Reporting
lnterpretations Committee (lFRlC) 13, Customer Loyalty
Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreement for the Construction of Real
Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfers ofAssefs from Customers and Standing
lnterpretations Committee 31, Revenue - Bafier Transactions

lnvolving Adveftising Servrces. This new standard establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recognize

revenue and how much revenue to recognize The core principle in
the said framework is for an entity to recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an

amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to

be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(ii) IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consicleration - lnterpretation on Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration (effective from January 1, 2018). The
interpretation provides more detailed guidance on how to account
for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The lnterpretation states that
the date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary
asset (arising from advance payment) or liability (arising from
advance receipt). lf there are multiple payments or receipts in

advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or
receipt.

(iii) PFRS 2, Share-based Payments (Amendmenfs) - clarification to the
accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that
include a performance condition, the classification of share-based
payment transactions with net settlement features, and the
accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions
form cash-settled to equity-settled. (effective from January 1, 2018).

(iv) PFRS 4, lnsurance Contracts (Amendments) - Applying PFRS 9,

Financial lnstruments with PFRS 4, lnsurance Conlracts - The

13



C

amendments give all insurers the option to recognize in other
comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that
could arise when PFRS 9, Financial lnstruments is applied before
implementing PFRS 17, lnsurance Contracts ('the overlay
approach'). Also, entities whose activities are predominantly
connected with insurance are given an optional temporary
exemption (until 2021) from applying PFRS 9. Thus, continuing to
apply PAS 39, Financial lnstruments: Recognition and
M e a s u re me nt instead ('the deferral approach').

(v) Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards - Deletion of Short-term Exemptions for First-
time Adopters - The amendment is part of the Annual
lmprovements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle and deleted the short-term
exemptions in paragraph E3-E7 of PFRS 1, because it has now
served its intended purpose. 

r,

Effective subsequent to 2018 but not adopted early

The following are the new standards that were issued but are not yet
effective as at December 31, 2018. The SHFC intends to adopt the
applicable issuances when these become effective.

Effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

0 PFRS 16, Leases (new) - The new standard will eventually replace
PAS 17, Leases.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases "on-balance sheet" by
recognizing a "right of use" asset and a lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured as the present value of future lease
payments. For this purpose, lease payments include fixed, non-
cancellable payments for lease elements, amounts due under
residual value guarantees, certain types of contingent payments and
amounts due during optional periods to the extent that extension is
reasonably certain. ln subsequent periods, the "right-of-use" asset is
accounted for similar to a purchased asset subject to depreciation or
amortization. The lease liabillty is accounted for similar to a financial
liability which is amortized using the effective interest method.
However, the new standard provides important reliefs or exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets- lf these
exemptions are used, the accounting is similar to operating lease
accounting under PAS 17 where lease payments are recognized as
expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term or another
systematic basis (if more representative of the pattern of the
lessee's benefit).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. ln particular,
the distinction between finance and operating leases is retained.
The definitions of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators
of a finance lease, are substantially the same as PAS 17's. The

14



basic accounting mechanics are also similar, but with some different
or more explicit guidance in few areas. These include variable
payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the treatment of initial
direct costs and lessor disclosures.

(/, IFRIC 23, Unceftain over lncome Tax Treatments. The
interpretation provides clarification on the determination of taxable
profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax
rates when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The
core principle of the interpretation requires the Company to consider
the probabllity of the tax treatment being accepted by the taxation
authority. When it ls probable that the tax treatment will be
accepted, the determination of the taxable profit, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on the basis of
the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the Company has to use the
most likely amount or the expected ,value, dependrng on tne
surrounding circumstances, in deterrhining the tax accounts
identifi ed immediately above.

(ri, PFRS 9 (Amendment), Financial Instruments - Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation. The amendment clarifies
that prepayment features with negative compensation attached to
financial instruments may still qualify under the SPPI test. As such,
the financial assets containing prepayment features with negative
compensation may still be ciassified at amortized cost or at
FVTOCI.

(iv) PAS 28 (Amendment), lnvestment rn Associates - Long-term
lnterest in Assocrales and Joint Venture. The amendment clarifies
that the scope exclusion in PFRS I (2O14) applies only to ownership
interests accounted for using the equity method. Thus, the
amendment further clarifies that long{erm interests in an associate
or joint venture - to which the eguity method is not applied - must
be accounted for under PFRS I (2014), which shall also include
long term interests that, in substance, form part of the entity's net
investment in an associate or joint venture.

(v) PAS 19 (Amendmenls), Employee Benefits - clarification on
amendments, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the
current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period are calculated using updated actuarial
assumptions- l.e. consistent with the calculation of a gain or loss on
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement.

Effective for annual peiods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and
thereafter:

(D PFRS 3 (Amendments), Busrress Combinations and PFRS 11
(Amendments), Joint Arrangements - Remeasurement of
Previously Held lnterests in a Joint Operation. The amendments
clarify that previously held interest in a joint operation shall be



(iii) PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing costs - Eligibility for
Capitatization. The amendments clarify that any specific borrowing
which remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready
for its intended purpose, such borrowing will then form part of the
entity's generat borrowings when calculating the capitalization rate
for capitalization purposes. 

$

(iv) PFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts supersedes PFRS 4 lnsurance
Contracts as at January, 1, 2021. The new standard requires
insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and
provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach
for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to
achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for
insurance contracts.

remeasured when the Company obtains control of the business On
the other hand, previously held interests in a joint operation shall not
be remeasured when the Company obtains joint control of the
busrness.

(ii) PAS 12 (Amendments), Income taxes - Tax Consequences of
Dividends. The amendments clarify that all income tax
consequence of dividend payments should be recognized in profit or
loss.

Deferred effectivity

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial Statements, and
PAS 28 (Amendments), lnvestments r'h Assocrafes and Joint
Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assels between an lnvestor and
fts Assoc,ates or Joint Venture (effective date deferred indefinitely).
The amendments to PFRS '10 require full recognition in the
investor's financial statements of gains or losses arising on the sale
or contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in

PFRS 3, Business Combinations, between an investor and its
associate or joint venture- Accordingly, the partial recognition of
gains or losses (i.e., to the extent of the unrelated investor's
interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies to those sale
of contribution of assets that do not constitute a business.
Corresponding amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect
these changes. ln addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify
that when determining whether assets that are sold or contributed
constitute a business, an entity shall consider whether the sale or
contribution of those assets is part of multiple arrangements that
should be accounted for as a single transaction.

Under the prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new
and amended PFRSS is not expected to have any material effect on the
financial statements of the Corporation.

I
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2.3 Financial Assets

A financial asset is any asset that is:

a. Cash;

b. An equity instrument of another agency;

c. A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset;

d. A contractual right to exchange financial assets or liabilities with another
entity on potentially favorable terms; or

A contract that will or may be settled in the Corporation's own equity
instruments and is a non-derivative for which the Corporation is or may

be obliged to receive a variable number of tne Corporation's own equity
instrum-ent; a derivative ihat will or may bd settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed

number of the Corporation's own equity instruments- For this purpose,

the Corporation's own equity instruments do not include puttable

financial instruments classified as equity instruments

Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are recognized in the Statement of Financial Positlon
when, and only when, SHFC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, the Corporation
measures lts financial assets at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. After initial
recognition, the Corporation measures its financial assets at fair value or
amortized cost in accordance with PFRS rules on financial instruments.

Classification

A more detailed description of the categories of financial assets relevant
to the authority are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost. Cash includes cash on hand and in bank. Cash
equivalent are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to cash and or at a very near maturity that they present
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest
rates. Cash is measured at face value-

Accounts receivables are open accounts arising from the sale of service
in the ordinary course of business and not supported by promissory
notes.

Non-trade receivables i.e. loans receivable represent claims arising from
sources other than the sale of service in the ordinary course of business.

e
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Loans and receivables are none derivative flnancial assets with fixed or

determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active

market, They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or

short-term resale and are not designated as or financial assets at Fair

Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI) or financial

assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at

amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment
in value, if any. Any interest earned on loans and receivables shall be

recognized as part of "lnterest income" in the Statement ot

Comprehensive lncome. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into

account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
rntegrat pari of the effective interest rate. The periodic amortization is

also included as part of interest income. Gains or losses are recognized
in profit or loss when loans and receivables are derecognized or
impaired, as well as through the amortization $rocess.

Allowance for impairment is maintained at a level considered adequate
for potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based
on historical collection, current economic trends, and changes in the

customer payment terms, age status of receivables and other factors
that may affect collectability. The allowance is established by charges to

income in the form of provision of doubtful accounts (now referred to as

impairment).

a Inventory Held for ConsumPtion

b. Semi-expendablePropefiy

These are tangible items below the capitalization threshold of P'15,000
as prescribed under paragraph 5.4 of COA Circular No. 2016-006 on
Conversion from the Philippine Government Chart of Accounts under the
New Government Accounting System per COA Circular No. 2004-008,
as amended, to the RCA for GCs under COA Circular No. 2015-010,
new, revised and deleted accounts, and relevant accounting policies and
guidelines in the implementation thereof. Semi expendable properties
are recognized as expense upon issuance thereof.

E

2.4 lnventories

Supplies and materials purchased for inventory purposes are recorded
using the Perpetual lnventory System. ln compliance with PAS 2,

SHFC'S inventory held for consumption is valued at lower of cost or net

rcalizable vatue. lnventories are reclassified to expense upon issuance
thereof and recorded based on the Report of Supplies and lvlaterials
lssued.

'18



2.5 Prepavments and Other Cu rrent Assets

2.6 Property and Equipment

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled

Ur-bUnC as a result of past events. They are recognized in the financial

siatements when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to

SiFC ano the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably'

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits

are expecte-d to flow to SHFC beyond one year after the end of the reporting

period or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer, are

classified as non-current assets.

An item of Property and Equipment (PE) is initially recognized at cost' The

cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and costs directly attributable

to bringing the asset to working condition for its ihtended use Expenditures

tor ad-diti-ons, major improvements and renewals are capitalized while

expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as

incurred.

After initial recognition, PE are carried at acquisition cost or construction cost

less subsequen-l depreciation and amortization and impairment in value, if

any.

Deprecia on is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful

lives of the assets as follows:

Years

Building and improvements
Ivlachinery and equiPment
Office furnlture and equiPment
Transportation equipment
Furniture, fixtures and books
Leased assets imProvements

30 to 50
5 to 15
5to15
5 to 15
21o 15

Over the useful life of the improvement
or the lease term whichever is shorter

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when

no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year the item is
derecognized.

2.7 [nvestment Propertv

An investment property is a property held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation potential, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. lnvestment property is initially carried at acquisition
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cost plus costs incurred for site development and.home building Subsequent

to iniiiut ru"ognition, investment property is consistently measured using the

to"i ,ou"r ,,rr,i"r, i" cost less accumulated depreciation 
. 
and impairment, if

""V, 
i, 

- 

""""iUance 
with PAS 16's requirements . However' SHFC's

inv'estment property only represents land which is valued at cost with no

accumulated dePreciation.

lnvestment property which is derecognized upon. disposal or when

p"rrnrn"ntfv *ithdrr*n from use and no future economic benefit is expected

from its disPosal.

2.8 lntanqible Assets

ncial Liabilities

lntangibie assets are accounted for under the cost model' The cost of the

,"""ii" tnu amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the

other considerations given up to acquire'an asset at the time of its

acquisition or production. capitalized costs are dmortized on a straight-line

basis over the estimated useful lives ranging from three to five years as the

lives of these intangible assets are considered finite.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the

cosis incurred to acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated

with maintaining computer software are recognized as expense in profit or

loss as tncurred.

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is

determined as the difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

2.9 Fina

Financial liabilities are contractuat obligations to deliver cash or another

financial asset oT to exchange financial instruments with another agency on

potentially unfavorable terms. Financial liabilities are recognized when the

borporation becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All

inteiest related charges are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under

the caption Financial Expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome'

Trade and other payables, due to related parties and other non-current

liabilities are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities
beyond one year, less settlement payments.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be

settled within one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the

normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), or SHFC does not have an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented

as non-current liabilities-
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Financial liabillties are derecognized from the statement of Financial Position

only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge,

cancellation or expiralion. The difference between the carrying amount of

the financial liabiliiy derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is

recognized in Profit or loss.

2.1O Provisi ns and Contin CNCI

2.11 Revenue and ExPense Recoqnition

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by
reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by SHFC
for services rendered.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be measured
reliably; it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to SHFC; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. ln effect, the
recognition of an income occurs simultaneously with the recognition of a
decrease in liabilities or an increase in assets. ln addition, the specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an

outflow of economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the

timing or amount of the outftow may still be uncertain. A. present obligation
arisei from the presence of a tegal or constiuctive obligation as a result of a
past event.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obiigation, based on the most reliable evidence available

at the end of the reporting period, including tl\e risks and unce(ainties
associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is

detJrmined by considering the class of obligations as a whole When time
value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their
present values using a pre-tax rate that reflects market assessments and the

risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the

passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed

at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate.

ln those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result
of present obligations is considered improbable or remote. or the amount to

be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the
financial statements. Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to

SHFC that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered
contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements. On
the other hand, any reimbursement that SHFC can be virtually certain to
collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized as a
separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision-
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(r) lnterest income on loan receivables is recognized using the effective
interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(ii) lnterest income on regular and time deposits is accrued on a time
proportion basis, by reference to the principal amount outstanding and at
the interest rates applicable.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncome when decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in
an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured
reliably. This means, in effect, that recognition of expenses occurs
simultaneously with the recognition of an increase in liabilities or a decrease
in assets.

When economic benefits are expected to aris$ over several accounting
periods and the association with income can only be indirectly determined,
expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of rational
allocation procedures. This is often necessary in recognizing the expenses
associated with the using up of assets. These allocation procedures are
intended to recognize expenses in the accounting periods in which the
accounting beneflts associated with these items are consumed.

An expense is recognized immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncome when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when
future economic benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify for recognition in
the Statement of Financial Position as an asset.

Cost and expenses are also recognized upon utilization ot servrces or at tne
date they are incurred. All costs are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive lncome on an accrual basis.

The employees of the SHFC are members of the Social Security System
(SSS) which provides life and retirement insurance coverage.

The Corporation recognizes the undiscounted amount of shortlerm
employee benefits, like salaries, wages, bonuses, allowance, etc., as
expense unless capitalized, and as a liability after deducting the amount
paid.

The Corporation recognizes expenses for accumulating earned leaves. Non-
accumulating compensated absences, like special leave privileges, are not
recognized.

22
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213 Leases

Firtance Lease

Leases which transfer to SHFC substantially all risks and benefits

incidental to ownership of the leased item are classifled as finance

leases and are recognized as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to

the fair value of the leased property at the inception of the lease or, if

lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments' Lease

payments are apportioned between the finance costs and reduction of

if," t""=. liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the

remaining balance of the Iiability.

Finance costs are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive

lncome. Capitalized leased. assets are depheciated over the shorter of

the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations
between SHFC and its related parties, regardless whether a price is

charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. For SHFC, these are individuals owning,

directly or indirectly, an ihterest in the voting power of SHFC that gives them
significant influence over SHFC and close members of the family of any such
individual.

SHFC as Lessee:

ln considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed
to the substance of the relationship and not perely on the legal form.

Operating Iease

Leases which do not transfer to SHFC substantially all the risks and

benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases'

Operating lease payments (net of any incentive received from the

lessor) are recognized as expense in profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and

maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

SHFC determines whether an arrangement is, or contains' a lease based on

the substance of the arrangement- lt makes an assessment of whether the

fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or

assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

2.14 Related Parties
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2.15 lncoMC TAXES

2.16 Events After the End of the Reportino Period

Any poslyear-end event that provides additional information about SHFC'S
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is
reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not
ad.justing events, if any, are disclosed when material to the financial
statements.

Taxexpenserecognizedinprofitorlosscomprisesthe.sumofdeferredtax
,nJ 

"riunt 
tax noi recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, if any.

current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to,

fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are

uncolected or unpaid atlhe end of the reporting period. They are calculated

using the tax rates and tax laws appllcable to the fiscal. periods to which they

relaG, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax

assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or

loss.

Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences and is provided

or accounted for using the liability method, providing for temporary

differences between the carrying gmount of assetb and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes The amount

of deferied tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or

settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates

enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that

future taxable profits witl be available against which the asset can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that the related tax benefit will be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each

reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if SHFC has a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same
taxation authontY.

SHFC's deferred tax asset is computed based on the temporary difference
on the provisioning at the end of the reportlng period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of sHFC',s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires

management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in

the fi-nancial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,

including Lxpectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumsiances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates'

a. Distinction Between Operatitlg and Finance Leases

SHFC has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was

exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an

operating oi a finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant

risk and-rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements

Failure to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or

understatement of assets and liabilities. !

b. Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies.

c. Key Sources of Estimation Uncefiainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of eatimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment.to the carrying amounts of

aisets and liabitities within the next reporting period:

i. tmpairment of Trade and Other Receivables

An adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific

and groups of accounts, where ob.iective evidence of impairment exists'

SHFC evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on

available facts and circumstances affecting the collectability of the

accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of SHFC's relationship

with the customers, the customers' current credit status, the average age of

accounts, collection experience and historical Ioss experience. At present,

the Corporation submitted to the Board of Directors a revised policy on the
Loan Loss Provisioning for the board's approval before its implementation.

Estimation of useful Lives of Propefty and Equipment and lntangible
Assefs

SHFC estimates the usefut lives of property and equipment and intangible
assets based on the period over which the assets are expected to be

available for use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are reviewed perlodically and are updated
if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,
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technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use
of the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets are

analyzed in Notes 11 and 12 respectively. Based on management's
assessment as at December 31,2018 and 2017, there is no change in
estimated useful lives of those assets during those years. Actual results,
however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes
in factors mentioned above.

iii. Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred lax Assels

SHFC reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period

and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable

that sufficlent taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Management assessed that the deferred
tax assets recognized as at December 31 , 2618 and 2017 will be fully
utilized in the coming years. The carrying value of deferred tax assets as of
those dates is disclosed in Notes 13 and 27 .

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of

201A 2017

Cash in bank
Short - term placements

Treasury bills
Time deposits - local currencY

Cash on hand
Cash - collecting officers and supervising

tellers

3,753,077,714

214,5s0,109
60,000,000

15,{ 03,623

573,069

1 ,031 ,394,197

852,309,458
2s0,101,667

6,688,584

698,491Petty cash
4,043,304,515 2,141,192,397

4.1 Cash on hand consists of: (a) collections .of cash collecting officers and
supervising tellers in the last working day of the year and were deposited only on
the first working day of the succeeding year, as well as cash advances granted to
cash disbursing officers; and (b) petty cash fund established at the Head and
Regional/Satellite Offices to defray immediate or emergency petty expenses.

4.2 Cash collecting officers/supervising tellers includes collection of P91,632
which was reported lost due to theft as alleged by the concerned employee. A
request for relief from accountability was already filed with the Commission on Audit
(COA) in December 2010. Appropriate action is put on hold pending receipt of COA
decision on the matter. However, as at December 31, 2018, there was still no
update regarding the said issue. Moreover, the significant increase of about PB
million was due to higher collections received at the end of the year.
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4.3CaShinbankconsistsoffundsdepositedwithgovernmentbanksforpayroll,

"orporaiu 
operating funds, Take-Out Funds, High Density Housing Program and for

G'pr.rn South C6mmuter Project (DOTr Project). Cash in bank earns interest at

pi"r"ifing interest rates of 1.40 to 2.75 pet cent per annum for the time deposit and

h to oerlent for the current account. The increase represents primarily the P3B for

ooiiFroj""t ,nd p612M Subsidy from Nationat Government for HDH Projects.

4.4 Short - term placements consist of: (a) treasury bills which are short term'

nlgnfyliq;id investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with

orioi,irr ,rirtiti"s of three (3) months or less from dates of placement and that are

";Ei;;i 
i; ; i;iiqnificant 

'risk of change in vatue; and (b) time deposit - local

"rrl"""v 
*ni"n iuf,rusents investment in time deposits classified as highly liquid

inr"ii.Lni" maturing from 60 days up to 91 days or not more than three months

from date of Placements.

5. FINANCIAL ASSETS

This refers to Investments in Treasury Bills amounting to P4 080 billion and P3 338

;ilii;" ;a at December 31, 2018 and 2017 , respectivety. These are short term highly

liouid investments with average prevailing interest rates of 2 02 percent per annum

maturing from 9'l days up from the date of placements'

5. OTHER INVESTMENTS

This refers to money placements in High Yield Savings Account (HYSA) with nil amount

ioil6" v""r 2018 and a comparative figure amounting to p50.360 million for the year

)of i.- f t' i"pr"""nts investment in time deposits classified as highly liquid investments

maturing from over 91 days up from the date of placements'

7. RECEIVABLES

This account consists of

2018 2017

Gurrent:
Due from parent corporation
lnterest receivable
Due from other funds - AKPF
Due from government corporations
Due from NGAS
Due from officers and employees

Receivables - disallowances/charges

59,345,804
28,196,237
14,878,373
s,665,320
1,036,855

600,243
105,711

59,345,803
13,207,231
6,572,888
1,237,622

7 83,143
627,875

1,620,333
83,394,895109,828,543
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2018

Less. Allowance for imPairment 79,452,40? 77, 842,490
16,587,080,818 15,111,507,752

7 .1 Due from Parent Corporatlon

This aecount inctudes CMP amortization payments and other collections made
by NHMFC for the account of SHFC. This account also comprises
management fee computed pursuant to the provistbn under Section Vl of the
Trust Agreement entered into by and between NHMFC and SHFC.

7 .2 lnterest Receivable

This refers to the interest accrued on various money placements during end of

the year with various dates of maturity.

7 .3 Due from Other Funds (AKPF)

This account refers to accumulated Personnel Services (PS) and other
Administrative expenses of the fund paid in advance by SHFC during the year.

The variance amounting lo P254,221 in 2018 balance with the AKPF Due to
Other Funds - SHFC, Note B, Part lV of this Report, was due to timing
difference in recording accrued salaries.

7 .4 Due from Govern ment Cor orations

Housing and Urban Development Coordinating Council (HUDCC) - This
account represents the total advances made by SHFC for the account of
HUDCC pertaining to office building special assessments and other
administrative expenses.

Social Security System - This represents the total advance payments made
by SHFC on account of sickness and maternity benefit claims of employees.

This account represents purchases of supplies from DBM-PS which are not
yet delivered.

l

Non-current:
Iviortgage contract receivable 1 6,300,197;436 14,840,618,631

Assets held in trust (AHT) - insurance 317,867 1ag 295 '382'323
receivables

Unamortized origination cost 24,400,391 26,099,312

Loans receivable 23'635,110 26,816,8B1

Assets held in trust (AHT) - interest receivables .---- 4?9,qqq -- . --199,q9116,666,533,221 15,189,350,242

2017

7 .5 Due from National Government Aqencles
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76 Receivables - Disallowances /Charqes

Restructured - noninterest - bearing principal - This account amounting
to P214.065 million and P241.334 million as at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, refers to loans with unpaid interests availed by
delinquent borrowers who also availed the said Restructuring Program
offered by SHFC.

Items in litigation - This represent the outstanding balance of receivables
from delinquent Community Associations transferred to the Legal
Department for foreclosure and with petitions already filed in court.

This account consists of receivables from Officers and Employees set up in

compliance to the Notice of Finality of Decision dated June 29,2016 and

October 26,2016 issued by COA, for the disallowed P5,000 cash gift as part

of the 13th month pay and the P20,000 additional Grocery Subsidy granted to

SHFC employees in CY 2014 respectively. The remaining balance represents

uncollected amount from resigned employees.
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7 .7 Mortqaqe Contract Receivable (MCR)

i. Current - This account amounting to P8.056 billion and P7'402 billion as

at December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively, which includes Community

Mortgage Program (CMP) taken-out projects from the time of transfer up

to the even date.

ii. High Density Housing (HDH) . The amount oflP4'491 billion and P3 618

billion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 , respectively, represents loan

granted to the beneficiaries of High Density Housing Program (HDHP)

[ayable in 30 years- This account also represents draw down releases to

various projects intended for HDHP beneficiaries.

iii. Past due - The account amounting to P2.813 billion and P2.817 billion as

at December 3 1 , 2018 and 2017 ' respectively, represents the past due

portion of the loan at the time of transfer up to December 31, 2018 This
also includes CMP projects taken-out from 1 989 to 1993' which were

retained by NHITiIFC but eventually transferred to SHFC with a monetary

value of P621M representing outstanding principal loan balances as at

December 31, 2009. The transferred loan balances were based on the

Community Association's ledger subject to adjustments upon the

determination of the actual outstanding principal balance that should be

based on the member beneficiaries (MBs) loan ledgers'

iv. Restructured interest - bearing principal - This account amounting to

P675.413 million and P711-167 million as at December 31, 2018 and

2017, respectively, refers to delinquent borrowers who availed of the

Restructuring Program offered by SHFC, in accordance to Republic Act
(RA) No. 9507, otherwise known as the 2008 Socialized and Low Cost
Housing Loan Restructuring Act of 2008, a rescue package for housing
loan borrowers.



Outstanding balance of this account represents the original amount

transferred from NHMFC.

7 .8 Assets held in trust (AHT ) - insurance receivables

7.9 Unamortize d Mortqaqe Oriq ination Cost

7.10 Loans Receivable

7.'1 1 Assets held in trust (AHT) - interest receivables

ThisconsistsofinterestreceivableearnedfromAHT_insurancereceivables

7 12 Allowance for impairment

Movementsintheallowanceforimpairmentformortgagecontractreceivable
are follows

This consists of the general ledger balances transferred from NHMFC as at

septemner30,2005,Thebalanceofthisaccountincreaseswheneverthereis
renewal of the MRI coverage advanced by SHFC for qualified Community

Associations. The balance reduces upon collection of insurance repayments

trom member-beneficiaries which can be determined only upon proper posting

of amortization payments to member-beneficiaries ledgers'

ThisstandsfortheunamortizedportionoftheoriginationandAppraisalCost.
ti il;; the policy of sHFC to capitatize the origina-tion cost and amortized

or"i tn" term of the loan which is 25 years br 300 months However'

neginnlng year 2011, the origination fee was treated as outright expense'

This represents for the car and calamity loan. availed by- SHFC officers and

urnpf oVL". in the amounts of P22.457 million and P1 177 million as at

6"iu#uu,31, 2018 and p25.055 mi ion and p1.762 milion as at December

31,2017, respectively, which are payable in 10 years'

Balance, January 1,

2018

Recovery/
Reversal

Balance, December 31,

2018
Additional
Provision

[.4ortgage contracts receivable

Current accounts

Past due accounts
> 3 months - 12 months
> 12 months - 3 years

> Over 3 years

7,286,143 ',192,898

5,461,782
11,902,425

48,496,S76 2,163,276

{626,17 4)

(120,087)

7,479,041

4,835,608
11,782,338

50,660,252

Items in litjqation 4 695,164 -1'69q'tq156173 746'261 79,452,403
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8. INVENTORIES

This account consists of

2018 2017

lnventory held for consumPtion
Office supplies inventory
Accountable forms, plates and stickers
Drugs and medicines inventory

Semi-expendable office equiPment
Semi-expendable furniture and fixtures
Semiexpendable lT equiPment
Semi-expendable communication equipment

2,065,312
200,873

17,083
887,126
728,904
249,496

26,100
5,582

1 ,771 ,401
479,069

8,566
578,412

14,996

3,382Semi-expendable books
4,1A1,476 2,855,826

t.

2018 2017

Advances to contractors
Guaranty deposits
Advances to special disbursing officer
Prepayments
Advances to ofJicers and employees

346,870,596
2,971 ,584
1,940,356

936,807
83,000

417,966,251
1 ,715,608
3,516,594

363,232
417 ,348

352,AO2,343 423,979,O33

9.'1 Advan ces to Co ctors

This refers to amount paid in advance as mobilization fee to contractors for
HDH projects which shall be deducted from the progress billing based on the
percentage of completion of the project.

9.2 Guaran De os its

9.3 Advances to Special Disbursinq Officer

This account is used to recognize the amount granted to corporation's
accountable officers and employees for special purpose/time-bound

undertakings to be liquidated within a specified period.

This account represents guaranty fees for SHFC's rental of Regional Offices

and warehouse amounting lo P2.972 million and P1.716 million as at
December 31 , 2018 and 2017 , respectively.

9.4 Pre men Sa

This includes payments in advance consisting of rent and insurance to be
amortized for one year.
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The account consists of:



9.5 Advances to Officers and Employees

This account is used to recognize amount advanced to officers and employees
for official travel.

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The account balances amounting to P1 ,406 billion and P1 .319 billion as at December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectivety, represents land acquired for building construction and
site development for use of ISFs under usufruct arrangement with HDH program

beneficiaries. These are carried at acquisition cost plus costs incurred for site
development and home building. Disclosure for the current Fair value of the investment
property where not possible due to lack of appraiser. The Management already
committed to get the services of external appraisers for fair value measurements and
disclosures in the financial statements. 

l.

SHFC Corporate Circular No. 13-026 on HDH guidelines provides for the implementation
framework of SHFC's participation in the priority PhpsO-Billion lnformal Settler Families
(lSF) Housing Program for the relocation of ISF residing in danger areas and waterways
in Metro Manita. To further strengthen said corporate objective, Corporate Circular HDH
No.14-005 Series of 2014 was made pe(aining to the acquisition of property by SHFC
and usufruct under the HDH Program. Through these circulars, as affirmed through
Board Resolution No. 391, series of 2014 and under its Articles of lncorporation and by-
laws, SHFC is fully empowered to pursue the acquisition of property in its own name and
for the eventual disposition to the CAs, or entering into a usufruct arrangement, for the
implementation of the HDH program.

1{. PROPERTY AND EOUIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment at
the beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 arc shown below:

Buildings and Leased Assets
Other lmprovements,

structures Buildings

Furnlrure,
Fixtures &

Books

Machinery and
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles Total

201,330,000 3,216,437 37,449,245

410,816 30,351,438

December31,2018 201,330,000 26,683,004 3,627,253 68,200,683 27,503,788 327,344,728

Cost

January 1, 2018

Adjustments
Add;tions

19,522,839

(20,000)

7,180,165

20,289,918 242,204,439

- (20,000)

7,213.870 45,156,289

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 1,2018
Depreciation

173,241,215)
(6,781,868)

(12,7 89 ,8O7)

(1,006,214)

December3l,201B (80,023,083) (13,796,021) (1,642J26) (32,499,567) (7,O45,1O7) (145,005,904)

121,306,917 12,886,983 1,9A5,127 35,701,116 10,458,681 1A2,338,a24

Net Book Value

December 31,2018
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(1,393,241) (26,348,804) (15,213,s64) (128,986,631)

(248,885) (6,150,763) (1,831,543) (16,019,273)



Buildings and Leased Assets
Other lmProvements,

Structures Buildings

Furniture,
Fixtures &

Books

Machinery and
Equipment

Motor Total

Cost
January 1,2017

Adjustrnents

Additions

19,239,119
(92,s00)

376,220

3,537,484

(995,209)

674,162

34,948,327

(760,910)

3,661,828

201,330,000

December31,2017 201,330,000 ',19,522,839 3,216,437 37.849,245 20,289,918 282,208,439

Accumulated
Depreciation

January'1,2017
Depreciation

Adjustments

(66,459,347)

(6,781,868)

(11,738,544)

(1,060,995)

I,732

(1,682,579)

(960,311)

1,249,649

\23,751,311)
(3,013,647)

416,154

(13,765,27 1) (1 1 7.397,052)

11,448,2eq (13,265,114)

- 1,675,535

December 31, 2017

Net Book Value

December 31, 2017

(73,241,215)

128,088,785

(12,789,807)

6,733,032

(1,393,241)

1,823,196

(26,348,804) (15,213,564) (128,986,631)

11,500,441 5,076,354 153,221,808

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated amortization of intangible assets at the

beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 are shown below:

Computer Software

December 31,2014
Cost
Accumulated amortization

6,917,129
565 4875

Net carrying amount 1, 351,642

December 31,2017
Cost
Accumulated amortization

6,1 1 5,910
5,255 451

Net carrying amount 860,459

13. DEFERREDTAXASSETS

This account refers to the P45.035 million and P44.552 million deferred taxes for the
year 2018 and 2017 , respectively, computed after adiustments effecting the temporary

and permanent differences during each year'

14. OTHER NON.CURRENT ASSETS

This account amounting to P549.874 million and P552.128 million for the years 2018

and 2017, respectively, refers to assets held in trust on Abot Kaya Pabahay Fund
(AKPF). The AKPF was previously under the administration of the NH[ilFC. Due to the
passage of Executive Order No. 272, lhe.management of the Amortization Support and
bevelopmental Financing Programs of AKPF was transferred to SHFC in 2005.
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15. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Current:
Accounts payable
lnsuranceireinsurance premium payable

1,164,729,067
47,227,140

110,201

1,122,522,569
41 ,887 ,787

162,976Due to officers and emP loyees
212,066,408 1 ,164,573,3321

Non-current:
Loans payable - domestic (office building
and parking space)

SHFC
Housing and Urban DeveloPment

Coordinating Council (HUDCC)
3Ro Floor
Parking Space (8)

30,756,112

13,03r2,349
12,O25,541

1 ,765,967
967,312

39,758,708

16,847,038
14,258,585

1,986,571
115,644Parkinq Space (5) 1,

58,547,28',1 73,966,546

15.1 Accounts ablea

This refers to the remaining 50 per cent of C[\IP loan proceeds and origination
fees retained by SHFC pending compllance with other requlrements The 50
per cent partial release of loan proceeds is implemented based on NHMFC
Board Approved Resolution No. 3149, series of Y2001. This account also
includes perfected contracts with suppliers amounting to P13.775 million and

P2.254 mlllion as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 
'

respectively.

15.2 lnsurance/reinsurance Premium payable

This account refers to on+-year insurance premium paid in advance to SHFC

by member-beneficiaries through CAs and accordingly remitted upon

enrollment to MRI Pool.

This account amounting to P58.547 million and P73.967 million for the years
2018 and 2017 represents set up of long{erm payable for the acquisition of
office building and other structures from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP)
which is carried at cost less principal portion of the amortization payments.
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1 6. INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of:

201A 2017

Due to parent corPoration (NHMFC)
Due to BIR
Due to Pag-lBlG
Due to SSS

18,867,978
5,468,410

1 88,010
140,932
1 16,918

18,871,043
11,128,307

161,133
126,215
80,659Due to Philhealth

24,7A2,248 30,367,3s7

16- 1 Due to Parent Corooration (NHMFC)

This account includes expenses for personal services, administrative and

operating expenses, retirement benefits, and rqnewal/enrollment of CMP

account; at Pag-lBlG Mortgage Redemption lnsurlnce (MRl) Pool advanced
by NHMFC as provided for in the Trust Agreement.

16.2 Due to BIR

This account represents the taxes withheld from payment of employees'

compensation, origination fees, honoraria, taxes withheld at source and on

government money payments including provision for corporate income tax for

the year.

17. TRUST LIABILITIES

The account consists of:

2018

Current:
Performance warranty
Bidders bonds

4,167,564
503,396

4,151 ,996
482,060

4,670 960 4 634 056

Non-current:
NHMFC
DOTr
AKPF
Other trust liabilities

14,328,811,976
3,000,000,000

549,873,A77
360,360,000

14,091,402,975

s52,109,614
360,360,000

18,239 045,853 15,003,872 589

'17.1 Nalional Home Mo rtqaoe Finance Co rporation (NHMFC)

The transfer of the CMP accounts to the SHFC was initially implemented
through the transfer of the cash balance as at September 30, 2005 of P532
million on November 10, 2005 and the turnover of the outstanding principal
loan balance of the mortgages taken-out from 1994 onwards. Said
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conveyance correspondingly required the transfer of the General Ledger (GL)
balances of certain accounts related to the program. ln addition, the transfer
also considered the portion of the GL balances pertaining to mortgages turned
over to SHFC and to those retained by NHMFC.

The CMP Mortgages from 1989 to 1993 with a total outstanding principal loan
balance of P62lM as at December 31, 2009, which were retained by NHMFC,
were eventually transferred to SHFC. This amount is temporarily lodged under
the LIR - current account but was later reclassified to LIR - past due account
in compliance to COA recommendations. Details of this account are as
follows:

20't 8 2017

Cash
Loan installment receivable
Past due loan installment

receivables
Notes receivable - National Housing

Authority
Land
lnterest income
Origination and appraisal cost
lnsurance receivable
lnterest receivables
Advances to contractors
Items in litigation
Unamortized mortgage origination

cost
Origination fee payable
Service fee incentives
Technical subsidy
Other professional fees
Accounts payable - MCR
Undistributed collections
Guaranty deposits payable
lnsurance payable
BIR
Advances from borrowers
Performance warranty payable

467,928,931
11 ,107,100,650

2,750,042,775
L

200,000,000

1,248,396,255
10.207.702,370
2,750,O42,775

152,565,993
165,678,'t 28
140,008,915
119,762,108

72,873,957
52,302,537
s0,925,357
50,479,961

200,000,000

81,458,667
165,678,128
102,081,484
1 19,762,1 08
72,873,956
32,867,482
50,925,357
50,090,716

3,500
(751,526,457)
(150,O12,482)

(67,09s,632)
(4,647,80s)
(3,028,939)
(1,598,646)
(1,092,569)

22,177,170
5,648,600

687,000
3,500

1797,927 ,1401
(150,012,482l-

(7O,720,84s1
(4,547,805)
(3,47s,1 19)
(1,s98,646)
(1,092,569)

14,328,A11,976 14,091,402,975

This also consists of the CMP fund transferred from NHMFC

The Trust Agreement was entered into by and between the Department of
Transportation (DOTr) and Social Housing Finance Corporation with an initial
amount of P3 billion pesos (First Tranche) transferred to SHFC on February
20, 2O1A to finance the resettlement program for the Philippine National
Railways South Commuter Project.
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17.3 Abot-Kava Pabaha v Fund (AKPF

The AKPF was previously under the administration of the NHMFC' Due to the
passage of Executive Oider No. 272, the management of the Amortization

buppo? ana Developmental Financing Programs of AKPF is transferred to

SHFC in 2005.

This account is treated in the books of SHFC in the same manner and

pio""arr" it was previously treated in the books of NHMFC wherein periodic

increment and reduction of said account, as a result of its operations, are

taken up as credit and debit to Trust Liabilities Account. Details of this account

are as follows:

2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivable - current
Receivable - non - current
Property and equiPment, net
Other non-current assets
lnter-agency paYables
lntra-agency Payables

310,755,953
10,576,632
68,493,490

179,310
180,869,876

14,734,684l.
(1s,132,593)

Other payables (1,234,107) (129,575)
549,873,877 552,109,614

18. DEFERRED CREDITS/UNEARNED INCOME

This account consists of.

This account pertains to a fund granted by DILG and DSWD released to

sHic amounting to p35O million and p10.36 million, respectivety. The funds

tiom Ott-C waI intended for HDHP projects and was deposited and

mlintainea in a separate fund account (HDHP ll) in order not to co-mingle with

oin"ifrna". The fund from the Emergency Assistance Program of DSWD was

earmarfeA for the 148 ISF victims of typhoon Sendong in Cagayan de Oro

City to be used solely for the purchase of housing materials-

2018

Deferred income
Deferred credits

213,923,764
35,713,035

24'1,333,955
31, 898,347

249,636,799 273,232,302

1 8.1 Deferred lncome

This account pertains to unpaid interests as of date of application of
restructuring that are capitalized as MCR but are non-interest bearing Set-up

of capitalized MCR is credited. Where this is collection applied to MCR-NlBP,

Defeired lncome is debited and lnterest lncome is recognized (credit)'
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302,O23,123
7,398,005

74,960,882
207,788

178,534,790
(4,293,997)
(6,s91,402)

17.4 Other Trust Liabilities
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18.2 Deferred Credits

This account pertains to the principal portion of amortization payments paid by

SHFC pertaining to office spaces occupied by HUDCC.

19. OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Undistributed collections
Other payables

430,326,320
971,169,785

37 4,502,A28
741,548,654

1,401,495,{05 1,156,051,482

'1 9.1 Undistri ted Collecti NS t.

This consists of accounts for clearing under the following categories

2018

Un-posted amortization payments from remedial accounts 131,033,287
98,854,050Collections from MBs who availed of the 1-year updating

scheme
Un-categorized amortization payments
Un-posted amortization payments from HDH projects

Payments with no abstract of collections (AOC)
Nontransmittal of collection documents by NHMFC
Payments of [VlBs not in master list
Un-posted amortization payments from express lane projects
Un-posted amortization payments from restructured accounts

83,570,463
54,897,907
31 ,934,178
14,87a,645
8,627,171
5,272,O40

437,377
Others 821 202

430 326,320

It refers to amortization payments not yet applied/posted to individual
borrower's account as of statement date due to timing differences and other
related concerns.

The approval of in-house restructuring program will serve as guidelines for
remedial accounts to begin the process of documentation up to posting and
reversal of amortization payments. Payments categorized under No Abstract
of Collection and not in the master list need compliances before collections
can be cleared and posted.

19.2 Other Pavables

Guaranty Deposits Payable

This account refers to three months and six months cash deposits
required for old and new originators respectively, pursuant to Corporate

3B
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Circular CMP No. 003, which is calculated based on the total monthly

amortization payment plus one - year MRI premiums.

Without prejudice to the first amortization to be paid by the Community

Association/MemberBeneficiariesamonthafterthedateoftakeout,this
deposit shall be treated as a regular advance payment on the same date'

SaidadvancepaymentShallberegularlycreditedaSmonthlyamortization
payment in cases of deficient or no payments for the month'

b. Advances from Borrowers

This account pertains to the amortization payments in excess of the

amount due foi the current period but is not deducted from the principal

balance upon distribution of amortization collections'

c. Origination Fee PaYable l'

This account refers to the 50 per cent origination fee retained by SHFC

pending originators' full compliance to requirements-

d. lnsurance PaYable

Thisaccountreferstotheone.yearinsurancepremiumpaidinadvanceto
SHFG by MBs through CAs and accordingly remitted upon enrollment to

MRI Pool.

20. EQUIry

0.1 Capital Stock2

SHFChasanauthorizedcapitalstockofPl00milliondividedintol00,000
ihares with a par value of P1,000 each. The amount of said capital stock

which had been subscribed by the NHMFC is P25 million, of which, P10

million was paid up and the balance of P15 million remains unpaid-

The paid-in portion of authorized capital stock is P10 million and transferable

pursuant to the distribution mandated by Executive Order No 272' Of lhis

amount, P9.989 million was paid up by the NHMFC and the remaining amount

by various stockholders for and in behalf of the Government of the Philippines.

20.2 Retained Earn rnos

Unappropriated retained earnings include (a) retained earnings due for

transier to NHMFC as addition to Trust Liability pursuant to the amended Trust

Agreement; (b) payment for dividends due to the Bureau of Treasury; and (c)

iniestment income from HDH Program amounting to P5'216 million which

does not form part of the amount to be transferred to NHMFC
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21. SERVICE AND BUSINESS INCOME

This account consists of

Service income
Service fee income 12,950,768 11 ,929,118

12,950,768 11 ,929,118

Business income
lnterest income - loans and receivables
Fines and penalties - business income
Other business income

342,212,686
215,910,547

570,714

377,083,433
206,624,624

824 350
558,693,947 584,532 407

571,64+,715 596,461,525

Service and Business lncome represents the 20 per cent service fee earned by SHFC
from enrollment of the member beneficiaries to the I\/Rl Pool particularly interest income
from loans and receivables, other business income and its fines and penalties.

22. PERSONAL SERVICES

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Salaries and wages - regular

Other compensation
Year-end bonus
Overtime and night pay

. Personnel economic relief allowance
Representation allowance
Transportation allowance

120,389,086 104,OB3,822

10,{89,640
5,383,958
5,297,097
4,785,772
4,390,827

8,910,122
3,893,990
5,077,347
4,827,863
3,972,099
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2018 2017

Other business income account amounting to P0.571 million and P0.824 million for the
years 2018 and 2017 includes:

a. income from penalty on late amortization payments of the MBs;
b- other miscellaneous inccime derived from processing fee of the

application for penalty condonation and substitution;
c. photocopy and recovery of vat payments made previously on deferred

income
d. interest from calamity loans granted to officers and employees affected by

then typhoon Ondoy;
e. surcharges from suppliers on late deliveries; and
f. the recognition of refund of excess payments amounting to P500 and

below as miscellaneous income per Office Order No. 07-0075, series of
2007 dated May 10,2O07 .



2018 2017

Clothing/uniform allowance
Cash gift
Honoraria
Other bonuses and allowances

1,311,600
{,110,500

59,042
65,897,901

1,055,000
1,078,000

54,913,868
98, 426,337 83, 728,289

Personnel benefit contributions
Providenuwelfare f und contributions
Retirement and life insurance premiums
PhilHealth contributions
Pag-lBlG contributions
Employees compensation insurance

17,540,639
3,399,587
1,341,147

514,379
79,217

15,647,075
2,905,734

960,450
258,400

69,930
premrums

22,875,OO9 19 841 589
t.

Other personnel benefits
Terminal leave benefits
Retirement gratuity

7,699,620
2,324,710

4,212,921-

10,024,330 4,212,921

251,714,762 211,866,621

23. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2017

Traveling expenses
Traveling expenses-local
Travelinq expenses-foreign

23,'.|12,146
' 2,{ 85,308

12,559,695
1,235,149

2s,297 ,454 13,794,844

Training and scholarship expenses
Training expenses 9,616,075 4,027,934

9,616,075 4,027,934

Supplies and materials expenses
Office supplies expenses
Fuel, oil and lubricants expenses
Accountable forms expenses
Drugs and medicines expenses
Semi-expendable furniture, f ixtures

and books expenses
Semi-expendable machinery and

equipment expenses

6,552,166
2,361,215

278,196
57 ,OO7
23,631

8,595

357,366

5,91 8,1 94
1,475,869

327 ,119
41,856

310,512

376,910

405,536Other supplies and materials expenses
9,638,176
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201 8 2017

Utility expenses
Electricity exPenses 7,026,359

694,525
265,655

Water exp enses
7,720,884 6,

Communication exPenses
Telephone exPenses
Postage and courier services

2,303,902
1,698,720
1,247,770

2,O95,547
1,736,553

035,007lnternet subscriPt ion expenses 1,

5 250,392 4,A67 10'7

Confidential, intetligence and
extraordinary ExPenses

Extraordina and miscellaneous ex CNSES 670 504 634,9s7
634,95767 ,504

Professional services
ConsultancY services
Legal services
Auditing services

5,667,820
280,650

12,750,304
84,000

2,000
36,123,924Other professional services 55,943,523

62,891,993 48,960,228

General services
Other general services
Security services
Janitorial services

9,490,054
7,786,792

713,469

3,868,223
6,038,s39
2,866 tJt2

19,990,31 5 12 772,A99

Repalrs and maintenance
Repairs and maintenance-transportation

equiPment
Repairs and maintenance-iTachinery and

equipment
Repairs and maintenance-furniture and

fixtures
Repairs and maintenance-semi-expendable

information and communication
technologY equiPment

Repairs and maintenance-leased assets
improvements

Repairs and maintenance-buildings and
other structures

2,452,232

249,680

5,500

2,800

1 ,426,313

249,095

5,820

956,129

61,450

2,710,212 2,698,807

Taxes, insurance premiums and other fees
Taxes, duties and licenses
lnsurance expenses

42,363,220
739,109

31 ,259,387
982,369
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2017

bond pTCMIUMS 330,727 689,460Fidelity
43,433,056 32,931,216

Other maintenance and operating expenses
RenUIease expenses
Major events and conventions expenses
Representation exPenses
Advertising, promotional and marketing

expenses
Directors and committee members' fees
Printing and publication expenses
Subscription expenses
Litigation/acquired assets expenses
Transportation and delivery expenses
Donations
Membership dues and contributions to

Organizations
23,589,879 24,578,210

8,610,609
6,069,869
5,891,358
3,928,968

5,865,319
3,693,993
4,910,758
1,958,142

2,181,000
250,477
'171,401

98,417
77,005
20,000
\,zoo

1,302,000
81 5,1 98
169,230

1,582,727
350,164

2,995,546
11,345

Other maintenance and operating expe NSCS
50 890,183 48,232 632

238,109 244 1A4,042,275

24. NON.CASH EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Depreciation
Depreciation-buildings and other structures
Depreciation-machinery and equipment
Depreciation-transportation equipment
Depreciation-leased assets improvements

5,781,858
6,150,762
1,A31,544
1,006,214

248,885

6,78'1 ,868
2,597 ,493
1,44A,293
1,060,995

'184,683
Depreciation-furniture, fixtures and books

16 019 273 12 013,332

Amortization
Amortization - intang ible assets 310,036 551 ,547

3{ 0,036 551,547

lmpairment loss
lmpairment loss - loans and receivables 1 ,609,913 5,O21,705

1 ,609,913 021,705

58417,939 222 17,646
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25. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2018 2017

lnterest expenses
Bank charges

3,916,860 5,264,149
43,4551,894,064

5,810,924 5,307,604

26. OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME

This account consists of:

2018 2017

lnterest income - notes
lnterest income - bank dePosits

140,13
6,01

4.443
b,oss

28,817 ,135
62,924,A42

146,149,076 91, 741 ,977

26.1 lntere tncome - n

This account represents interest earned at an average prevailing interest rates

of 2.02 percent per annum for lnvestments in Treasury Bills.

26.2 lnterest income - bank deposits

This account represents interest earned at prevailing interest rates of 1.40 to
2.75 per cent per annum for the time deposit and 0. 10 per cent for the current
account.

27. CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

This account consists of:

27 .1 ular Cor lncome Tax RCI

The components of RCIT for CY 2018 are as follow:

2018 2017
Net income (loss) before income tax
Non-deductible expense
lnterest income on investmenUbank deposits

204,219,639
29,559,291

(145,149,075)

269,340,418
18,348,395
91,741,977

Accounting lncome subject to tax
Loan loss provision

87,639,854
't,609,912

195,946,836
5,021,705

Net taxable income
Tax rate

89,249,766
30%

200,968,541
30%

Current tax expense 26,77 4,930
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27 .2 Defeffed Tax Asset

lncome tax benefit was computed as follows

2018 2017

Deferred tax asset - beginning
Temporary differences
Tax rate

44,551 ,973
1 ,609,912

300h

43,045,461
5,021,705

3OYo

Deferred tax asset - ending
482,97 4

45,034,947
1 ,506,512

44,551,973

lncome tax expense
As reported based on 30% of net

taxable income

26,291,956 58,784,050

26,774,930 60,290,562

lncome tax benefit 482,974 1 ,506,512

ln CY 2018 and CY 2017, SHFC claimed 'itemizeo deductions in computing for its
income tax due.

28. NET ASSISTANCE/SUBSIDY INCOME FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT

2018 2017

The HDH program window is a new program which enables SHFC to extend financing
assistance to organized communities living in danger areas in the NCR. There were four
and three approved HDH projects in various phases in 2018 and 2017, respectively' with

the following approved funding allocation and releases from the Department of Budget

and Management (DBM):

Approved funding allocation from DBIVI

Fund releases during the year
Less: Financial assistance to Non-Government

Organizations (NGOs) and PeoPIe's
Organizations (POs) for technical
assistance and service fee

612,462,120
22,214,937

1,246,204,521
24,534,721

Net assistance/Subsidy income from Nationa 590,247,183 1,221,669,800
Government

This is apart from the CMP funding received from NHMFC

29. LEASES

The related rent expense amounted to P8.611' million and P5.865 million for the year
ended December 31, 2O18 and December 31, 2017 (see Note 24).

Operating Lease

SHFC is a lessee consisting of rental of office space for Regional Extension Units
(REUs) staff. The lease term is for a period of three years and renewable thereafter.
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The minimum rentals payable under these non-cancellable operating lease as at

December 31 , 2018 as follows:

2018
Within one year
Beyond one year but not later than three years

7,938,408
10,625,161

Finance Lease

SHFC is a lessee with lease term of 15 years, the leased assets and the corresponding
lease liabilities (net of finance charges) under finance leases are recognized on the
balance sheet as plant and equipment and borrowings respectively, at the inception of
the leases based on the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment ig apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the. outstandihg le'5se liability. The finance
expense is recognized in profit or loss on a basis that reflects a constant periodic rate of
interest on the finance lease liability.

The minimum rentals payable under these non-cancellable operating lease as at
December 31 , 2018 as follows:

Within one year
Beyond one year but not later than five years
Beyond five years but not later than 10 years

20,779,355
45,983,874

1,888,751

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

As of December 31, 2018, the composition of the Board of Directors is as follows

Board Position Name
1. Chairman

Position from Other encies
Chairman, Housing and Urban Development
Coordinating Council
President, Social Housing Finance
Corporation

Under Secretary, Department of the lnterior
and Local Government
Under Secretary, Department of Finance

Managing Director, Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas
President, National Home Mortgage Finance
Corporation
Director, Department of Budget and
lvlanagement

2. Vice-Chairman

3. lVlember

4- Member

5. Iitlember

6. Member

7. r\ilember

Eduardo D. Del
Rosario
Atty. Arnolfo
Ricardo B.
Cabling
Asec. Epimaco V.
Densing Ill
Grace Karen G.
Singson, CFA
Pia Bernadette R
Tayag
Dr. Felixberto
Bustos, Jr.

Atty. Ryan S. Lita
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Board Position Name Position from Other Agencies

9. I\/ember

Lyndon B.
Catulong, Sr.
Atty. Emiliano C
Reyes

Private Sector

Private Sector

Key Management Personnel Remuneration and Compensation

The key management personnel of the SHFC are the President, Executive Vice-
President, five Vice-Presidents, the various IVlanagers and Division Chiefs of the
operating and support groups. The remuneration of key management personnel during
the year is as follows:

2018 2017
Salaries
Other allowance and benefits

48,234,459 40,068,964
89 03 492 77 722 522

137,27 ,951 117,791 486

Meanwhile, the total remuneration received by the Board of Directors is as follows

2018 2017
Remuneration (per diem) 2,181,000 1,302,000

31. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Claims

The account consists of the garnished peso time deposit at DBp amounting to p70.931
million enforced by an Urgent Ex parte Motion from case AC-973-RCIVIB-NCR-LVA-024-
0.1-09-2014 titled SOHEAI vs. SHFC in 20'15. This was disclosed in the Cy2015 notes
under contingencies.

None of these contingencies are discussed here in detail so as not to prejudice SHFC,s
position in the related disputes.

SHFC's principal financial instruments comprise cash, receivables, due from a related
party, investment in securities, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and due to
related parties. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise working
capital for SHFC's operations.
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Moftgage Contracts Receivable (Community lttlortga;ge Program Loans)

cMp loans receivable are 25-year, six per cent interest loans secured by mortgage on

the land subject of the loan. The loans are given to qualified community Associations
(cA) made up mostly of poor and underprivileged families to assist them in purchasing

ihe private land where they are informally settled or buying a relocation site.

The property, subiect of loan and mortgage, is registered under the name of the CA. The
property is iovered by a subdivision plan and each lot in the subdivision plan is assigned

io a mimber under i lease purchase agreement (LPA) with the association. The LPAs

of the associations are assigned to SHFC as additional security for the community loan.

Credit Policy for MCRs (CMP Loans) I'

The clvlP Loan Program follows the legal mandate of the Urban Development and

Housing Act and is therefore not in conformity with the credit standards prescribed by

the BSP for financial institutions under its supervision. ln lieu of the normal credit

standards, the program requires cA members to deposit in advance savings equivalent

to three months amortization as proof of capacity and willingness to pay.

The exposure to credit risk on sHFC',s receivables relates primarily to the inability of
customers to fully settle the unpaid balance of accounts receivables and other claims

owed to SHFC.

Financial Risk Management

Credit Risk

sHFC generally ascertains credit standing of counterparties before entering into a
businesi transaction. The examination of credit standing includes the following: (1)

financial resources (2) ownership structure; and (3) quality of management'
sHFC does not have any significant concentration of credit risk. lts maximum exposure
to credit risk is equivalent to carrying value of its financial assets.

lnsurance

For the duration of the loan, there shall be a mortgage insurance on the lives of the
principat borrowers as identified in the master list of members on a yearly renewable
term basis. The insurance premiums shall be included in the monthly amortizations of
the members. An equivalent of one-year mortgage insurance premium shall be required
from the community Associations (cAs) in the form of cash deposit prior to the release
of the loan proceeds.
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The SHFC follows an appraisal procedure and policy that is markelbased and allows a
maximum loan to value ratio of 100 per cent.



Collection

The Mortgage Contract Receivable (Community Mortgage Program Loans) are covered
by a collection agreement with the CAs. The CAs collects the monthly amortizations
from its members and remils these to SHFC.

The credit quality by class of fi4CR based on SHFC'S aging of provisions are as follows:

Balance,
January 1 ,

2018
Recovery/
Reversal

Balance,
December 31 2018

It/ortgage contracts
receivable 16,300,197,436

Current accounts (7 ,286,143) (192,898)

t.

626,174

120,087

(7,479,0411

(4,835,608)

(11,782,3381

(50,660,252)

(4,695,164)Items in litigation

Past due accounts
>3months-12

months
> 12 months - 3

years
> Over 3 years

(5,461,782)

(11,902,425)

(48,4e6,976) (2,163,276)

(4,695,164)
(77,842,490) 2,356,174) 746,261 (79,4s2,403)

16,220 745,033

Liquidity Bjqk

Liquidity risk pertains to the risk that SHFC will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with maturing obligations that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset.

The total financial liabilities of SHFC excluding the statutory obligations such as tax
liabilities, as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Financial liabilities
Deferred credits/unearned income

1,212,066,404
249,536,799

58,547,281

1,164,573,332
273,232,302

73,966,546Other payables
1,520,250,488 1 ,511 ,772,180

SHFC monitors its risk to a shortage of fund through analyzing the maturity date of its
financial assets, including financial investments and amount of cash flow provided or
used in operations.

49

I

Additional
Provision



RegulaLory Fr amework

The operation of sHFC is also sub.iect to the regulatory requirements. of securities and

Exchange commission (SEC). Such regulations not only prescribe approval and

monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions

on November 25,2O1O, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 amending certain provisions o{

RR No. 21-2002, as amended and implementing Section 6 (H) of the Tax Code of 1997

which authorize the commissioner of lnternal Revenue to prescribe additional
procedural and/or documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and

submission of financial statements accompanying the tax returns. These regulations

require that additional disclosures in the notes.to financial statdments shall be made to
inciude information on taxes and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

ln compliance with the requirements set forth in Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010,

hereunder are the information on taxes, licenses and fees paid or accrued during the

taxable year.

2018 2017

Taxes and licenses
Final tax paid on income
Corporate income tax
lncome taxes withheld on compensation

and final withholding taxes ( 1604-CF)
Percentage tax
Creditable income taxes withheld

(expanded)/ income payments exempt
trom withholding tax (1604-E)

Real property tax

29,569,291
26,774,93O

23,201,212
10,'.11,024

4,253,816
2,531,O44

500

18,348,395
60,290,563

28,613,932
10,237,476

3,744,284
1,235,900

500

The President signed into law the Package 'l of the Tax Reform Acceleration and
lnclusion Law in December 19, 2017, otherwise known as the "TRAIN Bill" under

Republic Act (RA) No. 10963. One of the salient features of the TRAIN Bill is the
increase of the nontaxable personal income to P250,000 per year for compensation
income earners and self-employed andior professionals. The result of which is the
decrease in monthly withholding tax for employees' compensation as shown above- This
act took effect starting January 201 8.

BIR registration
96,441,817 122,471,050

Reouirements under Revenue Requlatio No. 19-2O11

Revenue Regulation 19-201'1 requires schedules of taxable revenues and other non-
operating income, costs of sales and services, itemized deductions and other slgnificant
tax information, to be disclosed in the notes to financial statements.
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The amounts of taxable revenues and income, and deductible costs and expenses
presented below are based on relevant tax regulations issued by the BlR, hence,.may
not be the same as the amounts of revenues reflected in the 2018 statement of

comprehensive income.

Taxable Revenues

The composition of SHFC',s taxable revenues for the period ended December 31, 2018

is presented below:

201A 2017
571,644,696 596,461,525

The amounts of sHFC',s cost of services for the year ended pecember 31, 2018 are as

tollows

2018 2017

Salaries and employee benefits 251 ,714,7 62 211,866,621

Itemized Deductions

The amounts of itemized deductions for the year ended December 31, 2018 are as

follows

2017

Traveling expenses
Training and scholarship expenses
Supplies and materials expenses
Utility expenses
Communication expenses
Confidential, intelligence and extraordinary

expenses
Professional services
General services
Repairs and maintenance
Taxes, insurance premlums and other fees
Other maintenance and operating expenses
Amortization - intangible assets
Depreciation

25,297,454
9,516,075
9,638,175
7,720,885
5,250,392

13,794,844
4,027 ,934
8,855,996
6,265,655
4,867,106

670,504
62,891,993
19,990,314

2,710,213
13,863,765
50,890,182

310,036
1 6,019,273

5,810,924

634,957
4a,960,228
12,772,900
2,698,807

14,582,821
48,232,632

551,547
12,O73,332

Financial Expenses 307,604
230,680,185 183 626,363
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PART II

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



OBSERVATIONS AI.ID RECOMMENDATIONS

FINANCIAL AUDIT

Undistributed Collections (UC) totaling P430.326 million remained un-posted
to Mortgage contract Receivable (McR) due to the absence of a policy on the
proper ind timely distribution of UC to the appropriate individual ledgers of
ihe'member-borrowers (MBs). Thus, the UC and the MCR accounts are both
overstated ty the same amounts. Moreover, the General Ledger (GL) or
controlling account for UC was not reconciled with the Subsidiary Ledger
(SL) balances, resulting in a variance ot P67,213 million, or 84 per cent of the
dL balance. Both the overstatement and variance affect the fair presentation
of the account balances in the financial statements, contrary to Paragraph 15

of Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) f . 
l.

1.1 Paragraph 15 of PAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements states that:

1.2

Financial Statemerts shall present fairly the financial position'

financiat performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair
presentation requires the faithful representation of the effects of
transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with

definitions and recognition criteria for assets, /iabrrfies, income
and expenses set out in the Framework. The application of
lFRSs, with additional disc/osure when necessary, is presumed
to result in financial statements that achieve a fair presentation.

Note 1 9.1 on the Notes to Financial Statements (FS) disclose the UC

account as amortization payments since CY 2008 up to reporting date that
remain un-posted/unapplied to MCR and other affected accounts. lt refers

to amortization payments not yet applied/posted to individual borrower's
account as of statement date due to timing differences and other related
reasons, such as:

o Payments with no abstract of collections;
. Payments of MBs not in master list;
. Collections from MBs who availed of the 1-year updating scheme;
. Un-posted amortization payments from restructured accounts;
. Un-posted amortization payments from remedial accounts;
. Non-transmittal of collection documents by NHMFC; and
. Un-categorizedamortizationpayments.

The one-year updating scheme which is based on Republic Act (RA) No.
9507, otherwise known as the Socialized and Low-Cost Housing Loan
Restructuring Act of 2008, was adopted by the Board as an in-house
restructuring program on lilay 24, 2013 and implemented through
Corporate Circular No. 13-027 series of 2013. The approval of the said
scheme serves as guidelines for remedial accounts to begin the process of
documentation up to posting and reversal of amortization payments. ln the
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1.4

1.5

said scheme, collections from MBs will be posted upon completion of the
billing and posting modules of the newly developed program.

Payments categorized under no abstract of collection and not in master iist
need compliances before collections can be cleared and posted.

Review of the balances of the accounts under UC as at December 31,2018
showed the following movements:

Particulars December 31
201A 2017

lncrease/(Uecrease)
Amount %

1.6 As shown in the above tabulation, the balance of the UC account increased
by P55.823 million or '14.91 per cent from that of last year's UC of
P374.503 million.

1 7 Details of the 2018 UC are accounted for as follows

UC Balance - December 31, 2017
Less: 2017 UC Distributed/allocated in 2018

37 4,502,A2a
(153,503,383)

Balance
Add: Undistributed for 2018
20'18 UC Allocated in 2018

220,999,445
1,O37 ,385,214
(828,0s8,339)

1.8

Undistributed Collection 430,326,320

The table shows that only P153.503 million or 41 per cent of the UC for
2017 was allocated in CY 2018, which is below the 65 per cent that should
have been allocated based on the audit recommendation of the previous
year, The UC account lor CY 2017 has still a remaining baiance of
P220.999 million.

One of the reasons for the UC is that not all payments are supported by a
Remittance Report and Abstract of Collection reflecting the individual
monthly payment by all the MBs. This is contrary to the Collection
Agreement entered into by the Community Associations (CAs) and SHFC.

1.9

MBs who availed of the one-year 98,854,050 83,830,743 15,023,307 18
updating scheme (Condonation
under RA 9507)

Payments without abstract of 31,9U,'178 32,069,797 (135,619)
collection

MBs not in master list 8,627,'171 7,577,741 '1,049,430 14
Accounts with site development 10,058 , 10,058

loan component ''
Collections from:

NHMFC 14,878,645 14,878,645
Express lane projects CMP (not 5,272,MO 7,127,125 (1,855,085) (26)

in the database)
Restructured accounls 437 ,377 1 ,721 ,577 (1,284,2OO) (75)
Remedial accounts 131,033,287 121,784,533 9,248,754 I
High Density Housing (HDH) 54,897,907 20,961,795 33,936,112 162

project (not in database)
Unaccounted 83,570,463 83,570,463
Others 811,144 970,35'1 (159,207) (16)

430,326,320 374,502,828 55,823,492 14.91



1 .10 On the other hand, collections from the National Home Mortgage Finance
Corporation (NHN/IFC) amounting to P14.879 million remained
unposted/unallocated to the individual ledgers of the MBs due to absence
of data/ledger of collections from the parent agency.

1.11 The unaccounted UC amounting to P83.570 million refers to the accounts
transferred by NHMFC to SHFC wlth no database of MBs which could be
used as reference in the distribution or application of the amounts to the
individual MB ledgers.

1.12 The MB accounts not in the Master List increased by P385,069 and P1.049
million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, or an increase of 5 and 14 per cent,
respectively, as shown below:

Particulars 2016
(c) i.

Amount
(a-b)

2018
(a)

December 31
2017
(b)

Increase/(Decrease)
Amount

%
( b-c

MBs not in master list I 627 171 7 ,s77 ,741 7j92672 1 049 430 14 385,069 5

1-13 Further verification revealed that subsidiary ledger balances in 2018
amounting to P363.114 million maintained by the Accounting Diviston were
not reconciled with the controlling account or the general ledger balance of
P43O.326 million, resulting in a variance ot P67 .213 million or 16 per cent
far better from the P174.797 million difference or 53 per cent in 2017.
Details of the 2018 variance are shown below:

General ledger balance
Subsidiary ledger (database):

One year updating of remedial
accounls

Remedial accounts
Express lane
High density project - no database
Accounts with site development Ioan

component
Payments without Abstract of

Collections
fvlBs not in the Master List
Restructured accounts 823 363,113 519

P430,326,320

P113,673,924

159,486,874
1,675,410

61,705,768
10,058

18,733,643

q aaa n'10
2 J/O

Variance P 67,212.801

1.14 Validation disclosed that SHFC still has no established policy for the
distribution/allocation of collections to the individual ledgers of MBs. As
stated in the Management comments in CY 2017 , their new program, which
will help them to properly and timely allocate/distribute the collections to
avoid accumulation of UC accounts, is expected to be available by the end
of the second semester of CY 2018.
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1.15 The non-postlng of the UC accounts amounting to P430.326 million to the
MCR has overstated both accounts by the same amounts, and the variance
of P67,213 million between the GL and the SL balances affect lhe fair
presentation of the accounts in the financial statements, contrary to
Paragraph 15 of PAS 1.

b. Require the responsible/concerned operating uniudepartment to
coordinate and reconcile the individual MBs with the CA account
under the FCD;

c

h. Formulate policy on the number of days within
distribute/allocate payments made by MBs to
accumulation of UC; and

d

i. 65 percent of the UC by end of CY 201 9; and
ii. 35 percent of the UC by end of CY 2020;

Reconcile the variance between the SL and GL balances by at
least:

i. 65 percent of the UC by end of CY 2019; and
ii. 35 percent of the UC by end of CY 2020;

Oblige the CAs to remit amortizations of MBs with the
accompanying Remittance Report and Abstract of Collection
reflecting the individual monthly payments by the MBs in
accordance with the Collection Agreement;

Require the lnformation and Communication Technology
Department (ICTD) to enhance the database to include the HDH
Projects and all other accounts not yet in the database;

Require the NHMFC to submit listing of MBs relative to the
transferred accounts amounting to P83.570 million;

f

s

which to
avoid the

1.17 l/anagement commented that the ICTD implemented the Community
Association lnformation System (CAIS) Kiosk and SHFC Portal facilities to
generate Statement of Account (SOAs) and Abstracts of Collection (AOCs)
online. This will prevent accumulation of UC with regard to abstract
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1 .1 6 We reiterated our prior year's recommendations that Management:

a. Prioritize allocation of payments of MBs who availed of the one-
year updating and remedial accounts to MCR;

i. lmprove and update guidelines on substitution of MBs to avoid
further accumulation of UC every year.

Submit work breakdown schedule to post and allocate UC for CY
2018 by at least:



discrepancies that contribute to the buildup of UC. Furthermore, the
Ivlanagement opts to perform the following:

Reclassify the UC under remedial collections to
Deposits/Advances, a liability account, due to remedial
during the rehabilitation stage to reflect the effects
transactions, events and conditions;

Customers
collections
of actual

Reclassify the accounts under the One-Year Updating scheme to
Deferred Credits accounts;

For UC under HDH, request tlvo programmers to handle HDH system
and will incorporate the graduated amortization scheme into the current
CMP system:

For UC under Express Lane, concerning, the Sendong projects in

Cagayan de Oro (CDO), commit to send ciut list of receipts to CDO
office in compliance with AOC requirements;

For NHMFC accounts, coordinate with NHMFC on the appropriate
reconciliation previousty done before and require submission of
electronic or photocopy of Daily Collection Report (DCR).

For other related UCs, prepare periodic reversal; send out list of names
and receipts to branches/collection units; and inform
branches/collection unit to advise community associations or would-be-
substitute to use original [VlBs account number.

1.18 As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendations that Management
expedite the reconciliation and posting of UC account to individual ledgers
of the MBs and formulate a policy on the number of days within which to
distribute/allocate payments made by MBs to avoid the accumulation of UC
instead of reclassifying uc to other liability accounts. The reclassification of
the UC under remedial cotlections to Customers Deposits/Advances is just

a transfer of the balance to the same liability account which will not cure the

accumulation of UC accounts.

2 Assets of SHFC amounting to P19'189 billion were not stated at their fair
value due to the absence of policy on the assessment, measurement and
recording of impairment losses as required under PAS 36 and 39 for CY
2018, thus, casting doubt on the reliability and valuation of the corporate
assets.

2.1 For Financial Assets, PAS 39 requlres that an entity shall assess at the end
of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is
impaired. lf any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply Paragraph 63,
which states that:
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2.2 Paragraph 9 of PAS 36 - lmpairment of Assets states that

lf there is objective evidence that an impairmerl /oss on
financial assefs nreasured at amortized cosfs has been,
incurred, the impairment /oss rs measured as the difference
between ff,e assels carrying amount and the present value ot
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit /osses fhal
have been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (e.i. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the assefs shall be
reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account.
The amount oflosses shall be recognized in profit and loss.

An entity sha// assess at the end of each repofting period
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. lf
any such indicatian exlsts, the entity shall estimate the
recoverable amount of the asset I'

2.3 Paragraph 12 of the same standard provides that:

External sources of information:

there are obser,rable indications fhaf fhe assef's value has
declined during the period significantly more than would be
expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use.

b. significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity
have taken place during the period, or will take place in the
near future, in the technological, marke[ economic, or legal
environment in which the entity operates or in the market to
which an asset is dedicated.

market interest rates or other market rates ot returns on
investment have increased during the period, and those
rncreases are likely to affect the discount rate used in
calculating an asset's value in use and decrease the
assef 's recoverable amount materially.

d. the carrying amount of the nef assets of the entity is more
than its marke[ capilalization.

evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage
of an asset.

a

c

a
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/n assessrng whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired, an entity shall consider, as a minimum, the
following indications:

lnternal sources of information:



b. Significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity
have taken place during the period or are expected to take
place in the near future, in the extent to which, or in manner
in which, an assel /s used or expected to be used. These
changes include the asset becoming idle, plans to
discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset
belongs, plans to dispose of an asset before the previously
expected date, and reassesslng the useful life of an asset
as finite rather than indefinite.

evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates
that the economic performance of an asset is, or will be,
worse than expecled.

As at December 31, 2018, the Corporation has reported the following
essets: 

t.

Particulars Amount 7o over Total
Assets

C

Financial Assets
Receivables, current (net of mandatory

accounts)
Other current assets
Receivable, non-current
Other non-current assets

0.40

1.29
60.62

2.O1

17 599 585 581

Non-Financial Assets
lnvestment property
Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets

1,405,524,AO3
182,338,824

1,351,642

5.14
0.67
0.01

1,589,215,269 5.82

27

19,188,800,850 70.14

The financial and non-financial assets amounting to P17.600 billion and
P1.589 billion, respectively, account for 70 per cent of the total assets of
SHFC amounting to P19.189 billion.

The above accounts are defined in Notes 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 14 of the
Notes to FS of the Corporation.

Review and inquiry from Management revealed that SHFC has no existing
policy/guidelines to assess whether there is indication or objective evidence
of impairment for the above-mentioned assets. The Corporation only
provides Loan Loss provisioning for Mortgage Contracts Receivable
pursuant to Board Resolution No. 329 dated May 24, 2013.

The Commission resolved under COA Resolution No. 2019-006 dated
lVlatch 27 , 2019, that all Government Corporations (GCs) classified as
Government Business Enterprises (GBEs) that have not taken into
consideration the early application of the provisions of PFRS g, which

z_o
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2.4

'109,828,543

352,802,343
16,587,080,818

549,873.877
64.32



)o

should have superseded PAS 39 as cited in the aforementioned criteria,
shall mandatorily apply the provisions of PFRS effective January 1 , 2019.

Validation of the status of the prior year's recommendation regarding
assessment, measurement and recording of impairment losses revealed
that Management, in a letter dated July 24, 2018 to the Government
Accountancy Sector (GAS) of the Commission on Audit, has already sought
permission on the hiring of a consultant to guide the Finance and
Comptrollership Department of SHFC in formulating policies/guidelines for
the assessment and recording of impairment losses.

The failure of Management to provide policy/guidelines to assess whether
there is an indication or objective evidence of impairment on the recorded
assets at the end of each reporting period casts doubt on the accuracy and
valuation of the assets and possible misstatement of the financial
statement, and are contrary to the above stated provisions of PAS 36 and
20 l.

We reiterated our prior year's audit recommendation that Management
formulate poticy/guidelines on the assessment, measurement and
recording of impairment losses of its recorded assets for CY 2018 as
required under PAS 36 and 39.

2.10

2.11

J A variance of P608.773 million between the General Ledger (GL) and
Subsidiary Ledger (SL) balances of the Mortgage Contracts Receivable -

Community Mortgage Program (MCR-CMP) account as at December 31, 2018
casts doubt on the accuracy, reliability and validity of the account, contrary
to Section 111 of Presidential Decree (PD) No' 1445 and Paragraph 15 of
PAS 1.

3.1 Section 111 of PD No. 1445 on the keeping of accounts states that

a. The accounts of an agency shall be kept in such detail as is
necessary to meet the needs of the agency and at the
same time be adequate to furnish the information needed
by fiscal or control agencies of the government.

b. The highest standards of honesty, obiectivity and
consistency shall be observed in the keeping of accounts to
safeguard against inaccurate or misleading information.

J.t CMP is a financing scheme that assists and enables informal settlers, slum
dwellers or residents of blighted areas, in purchasing through their duly
registered CAs, the land they occupy or the land where they would be
relocated. After having turned-over and individualized/unitized the titles by
the CA, these would already be in the name of the MBs. The account is
considered past due when the MB fails to pay three consecutive monthly
amortizations of his/her housing loan.
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3.4

The said account is defined in Note 7.7 of the Notes to FS of the
Corporalion.

Review of the Consolidated Aging of MCR account for CMP as al
December 31, 2018 based on the SL of the MBs showed a total balance of
P1l.201 billion, aged as follows:

Age
Nurnber of
Accounts Amount

oh over
Total

Fully paid accounts
0 month to 3 months
l\Iore than 3 months to 1 year
lvlore than 1 year to 2 yeai-s
More than 2 years to 3 yeai-s
lvlore than 3 years to 4 years
[\/ore than 4 years to 5 years
More than 5 years and above
Not yet in Database & other
reconciling items

(7,199)
3,231,O48,673

977,613,142
852,786,850
694,A23,352
581,578,997
495,097,253

i. 4,092,601,0s5
275,110,784

54,522
67,877
21 ,625
17,O57
i3,170
11,376
9,840

98,546

0.00
28.85

8.73
7.61
otu
5.19
4.42

?A 4A

1.46

Total - SL per lrllBs'account
Total - SL per CA account

298,013 11,200,652,907
11,200,634,870

100

Discrepancy/variance .18,037 0.00
*immaterial amount

SL of the CA differed from [tIBs' individual accounts by only P18,037.
However, comparison of the two SLs was made since inquiry with the
Finance and Comptrollership Department (FCD) disclosed that the SL
balance of the CA was used in lieu of individual accounts in preparing the
trial balance and financial statements for the MCR amounts. FCD also
confirmed that these amounts were used in consideration of the transferred
loan balances from the NHMFC that were based on the CAs ledger balance
which was not yet individualized, as discussed also in the aforementioned
Notes to FS.

The MCR-CMP'S SL balance of the CA amounting to P1 1.201 bifiion
consisting of 2,688 associations represents only 94.85 per cent of the GL
balance of P11.809 billion, reflecting a discrepancy of P608.773 million, or
an unaccounted difference of 5. 15 per cent, as shown below:

Aecount Name Per CA
Account

Per GL
Amount

Variance
Amount

o/" ot
variance
over GL

MCR - Current
MCR - Past Due
MCR - Restructured

lnterestBearing
Principal

MCR - Non-lnterest
Bearing Principal

MCR - ltems in
Litiqation

8,142,301 ,206
2,060,27I,799

711 ,106,346

8,056,115,548
2,812,888,697

67 5,412,87 4

(86,185,658)
752,609,898
(35,693,472)

236,023,162

50,925,3 57

214,065,314 (21,957,848)

50,925,357

608,772,920 5.151 1,200,634,870 't 1 ,809,407,790
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The existence of discrepancy/variance casts doubt on the accuracy,
reliability and validity of the l/CR-CMP account, contrary to Section 111 of
PD No. 1445 and Paragraph 15 of PAS 1 as cited under Paragraph 1.1,

Part Il of this Report.

3.8 We recornnnencieci that l$anagement:

a. Require the responsibtre/concerned operating uniudepartment to
coordinate and reconciie the individual Mtss with the CA account
under the FCD;

b. Reconcile the variances betvJeeil SL per CA and SL per MBs as
wel! as SL and Gl- baiances of F608.773 million by at least:

;. 65 percent of the varlance i:y emd of CY 2019;
ii. 3$ percent of the variance by end of CY 2020; and

c l{equire the ICTD to assisi the FCD in enhancing and developing
an efficient and effective datal]ase.

ao tvlanagement commented that the reconciliation of the GL and SL balances
of the subject account is dependent on the compietion of the collection and

ledgering system through the implementation of the lnformation Systems
Strategic Plan or the |SSP. Management informed the Team that the
system has now been rolled out for use in the first week of tvlarch 2019.

3.1 0 Management committed to complete the documentation process within s,x
months or before the end of August 2019. The output of this process will
serve as their concrete basis for working with NH[\4FC as it will suppod
entries in the books of accounts of SHFC and NHIvIFC that will eventually
reconcile the GL and SL balances of affected accounts.

COMPLIANCE AUDIT

A High Density Housing Project (HDHP) amounting to P725.379 million was
not completed within the period stipulated in the Building Construction and
Site Development Agreement dated June 8,2015. It has a slippage of 857
days, or almost two and a half years, as at December 31, 2018, depriving the
lnformal Settler Family (lsF)-beneficiaries living in waterways and danger
areas of affordable and decent housing, resulting in the non-attainment of
the objectives of the Program, including the non-recovery of the Corporate
investment in housing projects.

4.1 The Corporation is mandated to be the lead agency to unde(ake social
housing programs that will caier to the formal and informal sectors of the
low-income bracket and shall take charge of developing and administering
social housing schemes. To achieve this mandate, the Corporation can
participate in the ISF housing projects to extend financial assistance to
organized communities for the construction of HDHP where the

4.
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4.2

beneficiaries are the families Iiving in danger areas and along the
waterways in highly urbanized cities.

High Density Housing Project refers to a slum redevelopment strategy
wherein a significant number of iSFs are accommodated in multi-storey
buildings. This is implemented either by an in-city or near site relocation or
a land sharing arrangement.

The Building Construction and Site Development Agreement executed by
and between the Contractor, known as the First Party, and Homeowners
Association (HOA) Phase 1 A to H; known as the Second Party, states that:

WHEREAS, SECOND PARTY desires to engage ,he services
of the FIRST PARTY for the construction of buildings and site
development for its member-beneficiaries;

WHEREAS, the FIRST PARTY warrants thht it is licensed in tne
Republic of the Philippirles to develop the property, and
represents itself to be skilled, competent, capable, and qualified
to undeftake and complele the works hereil pravided;

4.4 The following Articles of the same Agreement provide that

Article lll - The scope of work to be pefformed under this
agreement shall be fu y completed within one (1) year from the
release of the 15% mobilization fund from the government
financing institution, the Social Housing Finance Corporation
(SHFC)

Article Xlll - ln the event that the FIRST PARTY shall in any
manner neglect or fail to peiorm any agreement herein
(including but not limited to delay), the SECOND PARTY shall
give written notice to the FIRST PARTY to proceed with such
work and to pefform sucn agreement, and if the FIRST PARTY
SHALL FAIL rO DO SO ACCORDINGLY within seven (7) days
from receipt thereof, lhe SECOND PARTY and SHFC shall
have the option to proceed against the bond and enter the
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Article Xl - lt is understood that time /s a, essent/a/ featLrre of
the Contract and upon failure of the FIRST PARTY to complete
Scope of Work of the Project on the scheduled completion date,
or any extension thereof mutually agreed upon in writing prior to
the targeted completion date, the FIRST PARTY shall pay the
SECOND PARTY liquidated damages equivalent to one-tenth
of one percent (1/10 of 1%) of the value of unfinished scope of
work per day of delay until completion SHFC is authorized to
deduct from any sum due or will become due to the FIRST
PARTY all sums accruing as liquidated damages in accordance
with this paragraph. The payment of deduction of such
damages shall not relieve the FIRST PARTY from its obligation
and liabilities under this Contract.



4.5

4.6

premises atfi to employ any ather contractor to complete the
work at the expense of the FIRST PARTY.

Paragraph 8 of Board Resolution No. 442, Series of 2015 states:

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved as rt is hereby resolved, that
the Board approves as it f,as hereby approved, the issuance of
the t-etter of Guaranty (LOG) for Site Development and Building
ConstrLtction in favor af the HOMEOWNERS ASSOC/AIION,
Phase 1 as hetein presenled;

XX XX

Secfion 8, .A,ssessfiIeri{ of the Cantractor/Developer

As paft of due diligence, SHFC will assess the
Contractor/Developer hired by the Community Association
based on financial stability, managerial capability,
organizational structure, technical expertise, and delivery
capability and experience as outlined in the Contractor's
evaluatiotl.

Section 9. Loan Release for Building Construction and Site
Development

Re/ease of the loan shall be made in progress billing and in
accordance with the approved work schedule. Re/eases sha//
be made up to a maximum of four (4) tranches (exclusive of the
1 5o/o mobilization fund.) For every payment of loan release,
submlssion of the following requirements shall be made:

a. Statement of Work Accomplishments (SWA) indicating the
percentage af work progress signed by the
developer/contractor, the Community Association,
Construction Project Management and SHFC lnspection
Team;

b. Pictures ofthe projects (showing actual progress);
c. Billing requirements; and
d. Certificate of Completion and Acceptance (for completed

building)

Prior to the release of each drawdown, SHFC shall determine if
the collateral value of the land, including its improvement is
sufficient to cover the loans based on the repofts submifted by
the HDH Team.

Corporate Circular HDH No. 14-002 dated March 31, 2014 on the
lmplementing Rules and Regulations (lRRs) for Building Construction and
Site Development Loans for High Density Housing (HDH) Program states
that:

t.
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4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

A housing project v/as proposed by the HoA to DILG in response to the
government's initiative and effort to provide a safe, decent and affordable
housing to lSFs living along the three-meter easement of identified
waterways and those in danger areas in Metro Manila under the SHFC-
HDH program for the lSFs.

Under Board Resolution No. 420, seiies of 2O14, lhe Corporation approved
the purchase of the 54,156.75 square mbters lot located at Brgy. Gaya
Gaya, City of San -lose Del li4onte, Buiacan through the assistance of the
Civil Society Organization (CSO) paftner and the initiative of the HOA. The
lot wiil be used to build houses for the relocation of 1,504 families living
along the tributaries Dahlia Creek, Dario River, San Juan River, Tullahan
River, Diliman Creek, and Payatas Dumpsite. The arrangement between
the CA and SHFC is through a usufruct agreement for the use and
enjoyment of the pi-operties for a period of 50 years wherein the latter is the
owner of the lot. 

r.

The total pui'chase cost of the lot is P127.599 million which includes direct,
indirect and administrative costs as approved under Board Resolution No.
420, series of 2014. ln 2015, B0 per cent of the direct cost amounting to
P93.1 50 million was already paid while the remaining 20 per cent, or
P23.287 million, was paid in September 2017 upon transfer of the tvvo

Transfer Certificates of Title (TCTs) in the name of SHFC on February 15,

2017.

Under Board Resolution Nos. 420 and 442, the Board of Trustees approved
the project for the lot acquisition, site development and building
construction for a total direct cost of P661.760 million which will house
1,504 lSFs through loan amounting to P440,000 per lSF, broken down as
follows:

Cost Amou t Share per
ISF

Site Development
Building
Lot (direct cost)

62,100,000
483,222,988
116,437 ,O12

Total Direct Costs
lndirect Gosts Land

Transfer Taxes
CSO lncentive
Admin Subsidy

lndirect Costs Site and Building
CSO lncentive
Taxes, Permits & related fees
lnsurance Subsidy
Professional Fees
Capacity Building & Estate
Management
Excess Subsidy

661,760,000 440,000
11,161,883

52,457,317

5,825,143
2,328,740
3,008,000

2,105,600
14,O27,657
3,812,089

16,544,000
'14,288,000

Total
1,679,971

725,379,200
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4.11 Verification from the Building Construction and Site Development

Agreement ciisciosed thai the site development and construction of 47 two-
storey buildings amounting lo P545.323 miliion were undertaken by the

Contiactor. The said amount was received by the contractor on August 26,

2015, but the project remained unfinished, incurring delays of 857 days, or
almost two anci a half years, as at Decembet 31, 2018 as shown below:

Description Date No. of Days Delayed

Receipt of 15% iVlobilization
Fee (MB)

1 year Agreed Period of
Completion

2016
2A17
2018

August 26, 20'15

August 26, 2016

127 days
365 days
365 da
857 days

l.

4.12 The Auclit Team condltcted an ocular inspection on the project site in
Bulacan on June 22,2018. lt was found out that the project was still very

far from completion. Site development such as road networks, drainage
works, water iayout and electricity lines were not yet installed. The engineer
of the construction site informed the Audit Team that the building

construction has stopped since March 2018 primarily due to lack of funds
and manpower. Some of tne construction materials were covered with
vines and grasses to reduce exposure from elements while some hollow
blocks are gradually eroding and seem no longer usable. The continuous
work stoppage may eventually lead to the deterioration of the unfinished

structures, resulting in the loss of government funds.

4.13

4.14

At the pro.ject site, it was also observed that some of the unfinished
buildings are located near the creel<, which may pose risks on the welfare
and safety of the ISF-beneficiaries. Although the choice of the housing
project is through the People's Plan, SHFC lvianagement should have
assessed if the property chosen by the HOA is fit for a housing community
in order to ensure the safety and health of the lSF-beneficiaries.

Examination of the consolidated reports on the status of HDH Projects
submitted by the HDH Division as at December 3'1 , 2018, disclosed that the
total cost incurred to date amounted to P410,628 million, or 75.30 per cent
of the pro.ject cost (site development and building structures) as detailed
below:

Draw
down

Check
Nurnber Net Amount

Per cent of
Com pletion

02t11t2016
o511112016
07 t15t2016
0911912016
12t29t2016
o9to7 t2017

2d
3'd
4tn
Eth
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Date
Gross

Running
Amount

62183 38,479,537 51,306,049 9.08
62215 9,729,445 64,293,580 11.79
62260 14,676,479 83,847 ,2U 15.38
62305 4,261,056 89,528,689 16.42
62334 36,388,214 138,046,308 25.31
74326 108,016,850 242,067,775 51.73

l



D ralv
down

Date
Check

Nurnber Net Amount
Gross

ilunning
Amount

Per cent of
Completion

7th 01118i2018 74386 40,000,000 410 628,210 75.30
251,551,581

4.15 on January 18,2018, the amount of P40 million was partially released from

the 7th drawdov,/n totaling P96.418 million'

4.16Despitethepi-olongednon-completionoftheprojectbyContractor,SHFC
did not impose tiquidated damages nor implemented the remedies available

under Articles Xi and Xlll, respectively, of the Building construction and

Srte Development Agreement to cause immediate completion ot the project'

4.17 The continuous delay in the completion of the project deprives the ISF-

beneficiaries of havihg affordable and decent, housing units. lt likewise

;6;;"" the unfinishJd structures to a hastdhed weai and tear' This

"oi,oition 
may result in the non-attainment of the objectives of the Program,

and even non-recovery of the Corporate investment in housing'

4.18 We recommended that Management:

a. Compute for and demand the payment of liquidated damaqes

from the Contractor, pursuant to Article Xl of the Building

Construction and Site Development Agreement;

b. lmplement the following remedies provided in the Agreement

against the Contractor:

c Give written notice to the Contractor to proceed with such

work and to perform such agreement; and

" lf the Contractor fails to do so within seven days from receipt
thereof, the HOA and SHFC shall have the option to proceed

against the bond and enter the premises and to employ any
oiher contractor to complete the work at the expense of the
Contractor; and

c. As part of due diligence in future projects, ensure that SHFC

undertake assessment of the contractor/developer and that loan
releases are made only on the basis of duly validated Statement
of Work Accomplishment pursuant to Sections 8 and I of
Corporate Circular HDH No. 14-002 dated March 31' 2014'

4jg Management commented that the HOA project is already considerably

delayed and that they have compelled the Contractor to finish or complete

the project at the soonest possible time. In addition, Management, under
the present administration discovered anomalous transactions that
compelled the Board to order the temporary stoppage of the construction
until the resolution of prejudicial issues, such as:
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The engineer known to the SHFC as the authorized representative of
the contractor is not really an employee of the Contractor but is actually
a mere representative of a Subcontractor A without SHFC's
Knowledge;

The engagement of Subcontractor A and other secondary
subcontractors who no\r,r allege that they were not properly paid by
Subcontractor A for the services they rendered; and

5

4.24

. A technical validation was likewise conducted by SHFC, wherein the
actual accomplishment was much less than the progress billing reports
submitted by the Subcontractor A.

SHFC cannot legally entertain the claims of the subcontractors for it can
only recognize the Contractor engaged by the HOA. But given the gravity of
the allegaiions, SHFC trlanagement was constrained to elevate the matter
to the SHFC Governing Boaid and filed a caselfor interpleader on March
23, 2018 and deposit the check, portion of the seventh biiling of
P56,417,067, in court through judicial consignation. However, the said
interpleader case was dismissed upon SHFC's instance in order for it to file
the proper legal remedy.

4.21 Management had already made a tentative computation on the liquidated
damages as reviewed by the SHFC Department of Engineering. A final
computation will be undertaken at the time of the actual demand to pay the
said liquidated damages.

4.22 Further, in order to prevent the same irregularities from happening again,
SHFC has made the necessary reforms and amendments in its loan
documents and revised its Building Construction and Site Development
Agreement which includes a provision that expressly prohibits
subcontracting of SHFC housing projects.

4.23 As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendation that Management demand
payment of liquidated damages and immediately avail of the remedies
provided in the Agreement against the Contractor.

Absence of month-to-month contract extension for janitorial and security
services with expired contracts in CYs 2017 and 2018 is contrary to the
Revised Guidelines on the Extension of Contracts for General Support
Services issued by the General Procurement and Policy Board (GPPB) and
RA No. 9184. Payments amounting to P98.21 9 million were made for the
services rendered.

To ensure continuous operations and avoid service interruptions, the GPPB
issued Resolution No. 23-007 dated September 28,2007 on the Revised
Guidelines on the Extension of Contracts for General Services with the
following provisions:

5.1
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4.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR EXTENSION

No contract extension shall exceed one (1) year;

Procuring entities may extend the duration or effectivity of an

on-going contract about to expire, under the following
conditions:

4.1

4.2 The original contract subiect to the extension was
awarded in accordance with the provisions of RA 9184
and its Implementing Rules and Regulations Paft A (IRR-
A);

4.3 The procuring entity concerned has substantially
undeftaken the procurement activities required prior to
award of the new contract under Republic Act (RA) No.
91 84 and its IRR-A; l'

4 4 The atoresaid contract extension is undeftaken due to
circumstances beyond its control and the procuring entity
concerned cannot award a new contract within a month
after the expiration of the term of the original contract;

4.5 The contemplated extension is merely an emergency
measure to maintain sfafus quo in the operations of the
Procuring Entity and to avoid interruption of service;

4.6 The cunent service provider has not violated any of the
provisions of the original contract;

4.7 The tems and conditions of the original contract shall not
be changed or modified, except when changes or
modifications will redound to the advantage of the
government at no additional cost to the Procuring Entity.

5-O PROCEDURAL REQUIREIV1ENTS

All contract exlensrons shall be subject to the prior approval of
the Head of the Procuring Entity or his/her duly authorized
representative upon the recommendation of the Bids and
Awards Committee.

ln addition to the foregoing, if the proposed ccntract extension
exceeds six (6) months, the Head of the Procuring Entity or
his/her duly authorized representative shall immediately repoft
to the Government Procurement Policy Board in writing of its
intent to extend beyond six months.

RA No. 9184, or the Government Procurement Reform Act, provides the
guidelines in the implementation of awarded contracts as a result of the
procurement processes. Article lV, Section 10 thereof states that all

5.2

OB
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procurements shall be done through Competitive Bidding except as
provided for in Article XVI of the Act (Alternative Methods of Procurement)-

Records show that contracts entered into by and between the SHFC anc

the service providers for janitorial and manpower and general support, and

the security services have expired on lvlarch 23, 2A17 and June 22' 2017 
'

respectively, with the following details:

General
Service

Contract Service
Provider

Janitorial
Services
and
Manpower
& General
Support

Covera e Amount
03t23t2016 52,678,073

to
03t2312017

- no public
biddrng
conducted
after expiration
of the contract

- no extension
Was
recommended
by the BAC for
approval of
HoPE and no
notification to
GPPB WaS

made after six
months'
extension

- no public
bidding
conducted
after expiration
of the contract

D P
Service
Corporation

Security
Servlces

- no month-to-
month
extension was
recommended
by the BAC to
HoPE and no
notification to
GPPB after 6
months'
extension

Verification disclosed that as at December 31,2018, no public bidding was
conducted on the expired contracts. Continuous payments totaling P88.838
million for janitorial and manpower and general support services and
P9.380 million for security services. Details of payment follow:

06t22/2016
to

06t22t2017

6,021,616 DBP
Service
Corporation

5.4
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Payments Aftei
Expiration of Contract

Amount
Janitorial and ftilanpower and

Genera! support Services
Security
Services

Aprll2Ol7
May 2017
June 2017
Juty 2017
August 2017
September 2017
October 2017
November 2017
December 2017
January 2018
February 20'18
March 2018
April 20'18
May 2018
June 2018
July 2018
August 20'18

September 2018
October 2018
November 2018
December 2018

1,033,033
7,201,607
7,039,221
7,034,336
4,554,107

300,944
1,794,366
1,259.234
3,597,573

505,053
920,581
2.')) O-7 A

319,931
714,365
610,480

532,571
666,700
203,310

260,389
1,474,842

806,9s2
835,037

1,033,631
203,479

4,701,427
4,733,s99
8,475,395
7,r30,3e3
8,092,193
2,571,596
5,980,579
3,808,000
3,407,814
6,O22,641

88,838,458 9,410,295

5.5

5.6

5.7

lnterviews with the Procurement Department disclosed that no contract
extension on a month-to-month basis had been undertaken since they were
not aware that the contracts with the service provider had already expired.
Further, the Head of the Procuring Entity or his duly authorized
representative did not notify the GPPB in writing of their intention to extend

the contract beyond six months as a procedural requirement

The month-to-month maximum allowable extension was merely an

emergency measure to avoid interruption of services whereby SHFC could
have substantially undertaken the procurement activities required prior to
award of a new contract. Non-compliance with the prescribed procedure

has defeated the principle of a competitive bidding where equal opportunity
is given to private contracting parties who are eligible and qualified to
participate.

Thus, payments totaling P98.249 million for the janitorial and security
services in CYs 2017 and 2018 with no covering contracts are contrary to
the Revised Guidelines on the Extension of Contracts for General Support
Services issued by the GPPB and RA No. 9184, rendering the transactions
irregular pursuant to COA Circular No. 2012-003.
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5.9 Management commented that the procurement of support services
(manpower and general services which include janitorial) was already
conducted and the same has been awarded to DBP Services Corporation.
The procurement for security services is still ongoing. The terms of
reference for the procurement of security services was submitted to the
BAC Secretariat on February 04, 2019, and the procurement activities for
this project will be expedited commencing on March 21 ' 2019 and is
expected to be completed on.April.16, 2019. 

t.

Collective Negotiation Agreement (CNA) incentive amounting to P5.658
million was granted by SHFC to its 230 officers and employees despite
accomplishment below the iequired rating based on SHFC'S Performance
Scorecard on Key Performance lndicators as approved by the Governance
Commission for GOCCS (GCG), contrary to DBM Budget Circular No. 2018-
05.

ol
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We recommended and Management agreed to:

a. lmmedlately subject the procurement of janitorial and security
services to competitive bidding process; and

b. Strictly comply with RA No.9184 on the rules and regulations on
the procurement of support services'

Section 4.1 of DBM Budget Circular No. 2018-05 dated November 14,2018
provides the following guidelines on the grant of Collective Negotiation
Agreement (CNA) lncentive for FY 2018, and providing for the conditions
for the grant, thus:

4.1 .2 Conditiotls for the Grant of the CNA lncentive

Accomplishment of Targets

xxx

GOCCs covered by RA No. 10149, s. 2011 should have
accomplished, by September 30, 2018, at least an
average of 70%o of all the targets under their respective
Peiormance Scorecard, as agreed upon between the
Governance Commission for GOCCs (GCG) and the
GOCC pursuant to GCG Memorandum Circular No. 2017-
02 dated June 30, 2017.

The Board of Directors, through Board Resolution No. 695, series of 2018,
approved the grant of CNA lncentives to l\llanagement and rank-and-file
employees for CY 2018.

Review of the payroll for the CNA incentives revealed that each of the 230
qualified officials and employees received P25,000, except for other

b

OJ
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personnel who were given pro-rated equivalents, depending on their length
of employment in the Corporation. Summary of payments is shown below:

Tax Due
Agency

Fee
Length of
Service

No. of
Employees

Gross
Arnount

Net
Amount

Full (100%)
3-4 months (50%)
2-3 months (40%)
1-2 months (30%)
Less than 1 month

(20%)

s,600,000
12,500
30,000
15,000

48,000
750

1,800
1,500

1

2

1,300,465 4,251 ,535
8,625

28,200
13,500

5,657,500 1,303,590 52,050 4,301,860

Verification of the disbursements and the supporting documents revealed
that SHFC has accomplished only an average of 57 per cent of its targets
based on the Updated Status of Accomplishment under its Performance
Scorecard as approved by the GCG for CY 2018 and which was
communicated in a ietter daied 06 March 2019. ,4s at December 31, 2018,
l\ilanagement has not yet received the final scoring from GCG. The status
of accomplishment showing an average of 57 per cent is presented below:

Thus, the payment of CNA incentive is contrary to Section 4.1 of DBITI
Budget Circular No. 2018-05 requiring SHFC to have accomplished by
September 30, 2018 at least an average of 7Oo/o o'f all the targets under its
Performance Scorecard as approved by GCG and thus constitutes an
irregular disbursement under COA Circular No. 2012-003.

6.4

6.5

Performance lndicator Weight Accomplishment
Rate

Weighted
Rating

SM 1: Utilization of Housing Subsidies for
the Provision of Shelter Secu tyand
lmproved Housing Quality

63.34% 22.17%

Sub-Total 35% 22.17%

STAKEHOLDERS
Sl\4 2: Percentage of Satisfled Customers 10% 60.00% 0.00%
Sub-Total 10% 0.00%
FINANCE
Slvl 3: lmprove Collection Efliciency 10% 0.00%
SIM 4: lncrease Net Operating lncome
(Before Tax and Subsidy)

10.00%

Sl\4 5: lmprove Budqet Utilization Rate 10% 7 5.27% 0.00%
Sub-Total 30% 10.00%
INTERNAL PROCESS
Sl\4 6: lmprove Support Systems for
Effective and Efticienl Processes

'to% 10.00%

Sub-Total 'to% 10.00%
LEARNING AND GROWTH
SN.4 7: Attain Quality Management
Certification

10% 100% 10.00%

SM B: Percentage of Employees Meeting
Required Competencies

100.00% 5.00%

Sub-Total 150/"

TOTAL 100% 57.17%

I

10% | fi434vo

100.00%
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bf) We recommended that Management make representation with the
GCG for the final score of the Corporation based on the GCG-
approved Performance Scorecard.

o/ Management commented that SHFC has an average accomplishment rate
of 82.92 percent for all its targets as declared in the Performance
Scorecard. As at Septembet 2018, SHFC had already achieved an
accomplishment rate of 70.75 per cent and was declared to the SHFC
Board of Directors on December 14, 2018 when it gave its approval to the
request of the SHFC Employees Association lncorporated, for the grant of
CNA cash incentive.

oo Management also commented that the updated status of accomplishment
is not yet final and at the same time still unofficial for several reasons:

a. The resulls of the accomplishments in some of the targets were not yet
fully completed at the time of submission on tvlarch 6, 2019;

b. The accomplishment reports and ratings are submitted to GCG
regularly however crucial questions regarding the GCG's evaluation
framework remained unresolved.

6.9 SHFC Management at this point takes the position of the time honored
Constitutional principle of social justice as repeatedly affirmed by the
Supreme Court in countless instances that any ambiguities or
insufflciencies in the applicatlon of laws/circumstances concerning
employees' welfare shall be resolved in favor of labor.

6.1 0 As a rejoinder, Management has to submit its final score based on the
Performance Scorecard approved by the GCG. SHFC, in a letter dated 06
lVlarch 2019, communicated to the GCG its status of accomplishment as at
December 31,2018 with an average score of 57.17 pq cent, using the
target of 24.000 lnformal Settler Families (lSFs) under Strategic Measure
(Sfvl) 1, corresponding to the utilization of housing subsidy for the provision
of shelter security and improved housing quality, although GCG approved
the target of 52,600 lSFs under its Performance lndicator. lf based on the
latter, the average score would be 35 per cent. Further, SHFC is yet to
submit its accomplishment on SM 2, or customers' satisfaction, which is
equivalent to ten per cent of the weighted average.

Past due/in-default car loan amortizations amounting to P2,225 million of
eight retired officers and former members of the Board of Directors remain
uncollected as at December 31, 2018, contrary to the IRR of the SHFC
Officers Vehicle Acquisition Assistance Program (VAAP), resulting in the
non-recovery or loss of the funds expended for the car loan program.

7 .1 The SHFC Officers VpvqP, approved through Board Resolution No. 16V,
series of 2009, involves the granting of assistance, by way of Chattel
Mortgage Loan, to the eligible SHFC Officers for them to acquire their own
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vehicles to afford them adequate support and efficiency in carrying out their

official functions. SHFC established a Fund from the corporate general

fund to finance the grant of loans.

Paragraph lll of the IRR for the SHFC Offlcers, VAAP deflnes Officers

whicn' s'nall mean the Chairman and members of the governing SHFC

Board of Directors and all petmanent SHFC personnel occupying positions

of Satary Gtade 22 and above and shall not include casuals, consultants,

retainers or contractual employees and other engagements of similar

nature.

Paragraph Vlll of the same IRR on the Termination of Officers Employment

from the Corporation states that:

ln case of separation from the service of the Officer-Availee, the

Chaftel Moftgage Agreement shall continue to be in force and
effect until such time the Officer concerned is declared by the
Corporation to be in default, as such', the total loan obligation

shai,tt become due and demandable and/or the Corporation can
proceed to exercise the remedies enumerated under these
rules:

a. Declare the obligation due and demandable;

b- Foieiture of last satary, benefits and other receivables from

its Corporation including proceeds from Provident Fund;

c. Extraiudicially enforce the Deed of Reconveyance or Deed

of Sale and/or Chaftel Moigage Agreement and
immediately repossess the motor vehicle from the Officer
concerned.

t5

7.4 Verification of the subsidiary ledgers of the car loan offlcer-availees

revealed that five retired SHFC officers and three former members of the

Board who have availed of the car loan program were with defaulted/unpaid

amortizations for five months to more than five years as detailed below:

Availee Position
Date of
Loan

Approval

Maturity Loan
Loan

Balance
't2t3112014

Last loan
Due

Status

B

C

D

E

G
H

2.

3.

5.

6.
7.
8_

t\rember of
the tsoard

lhe Board
Member of
the Board
Ofllcer

7t2009

1t2010

712009

7t2009

8/2009

6i2010
7t2011
s/2009

6t2019 500,000

1212019'1.180,000

6/2019 480,000

at2019 793,000

7/2019 1,110,000

5/2020 1,200.000
6t2021 8'15,000
at2019 500,000

300,000 6/2013

662,500 412014

172,000 112016

270,942 112016

250,550 312017

5 yE./6

4 yrs./8
mos.

2yts-111
mos.

2 yts-111

1yt19

10 mos.
7 mos.
5 mos.

Expired
lerm
Expired
Term
Erpired
Term
Retired

Ofllcer Retired

270,000
250,144

49,167

Retired
Retired
Retired

Officer
OIficer
Officer

2,225,303

2t2A1A
5t2018
7 t2018
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7.5 Inventory of the post-dated checks (PDC) issued by the off icer-availees

;;;;l,r;e tnat checks with atterations and drawn against insufficient funds

(DAIF) were not replaced. Details follow:

Check
date

Check
No.Availee Bank Amount Remarks

1. F

2. 1

3. H

1130t19
211119
1U1B

36131 '1

'1046067

365864

10,000
10,000
5,000

With alteration
With alteration
Drawn againsl insufJicient funds

(DArF)

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

The IRR of the car loan program provides that the Administration

J.or.t.unt and Controllership 
-Department shall collect the monthly

".[,tf.rtl"" 
piyments from the Officers-availees through saiary deduction'

il;t;; Minagem"nt disclosed that post-dated checks were allowed

,i'orir."i .tt"i ih"e retirement of the officers, hence' clearance were given

to {"i'.i offi""o, without deducting the loan balances from their last money

claims. l'

Further, the IRR of the car loan program as earlier mentioned' provides

th;i, i;';;;" of default, the total loan obligation shall become due and

J",rlrnOrUt" and the Corporation can proceed to exercise remedies

Further inquiry with Management disclosed that no demand letters were

""ni 
to tf," defaulting officer-availees, nor actions were initiated to collect

ii;';;;;"iils dui. Verification revealed that there was no forfeiture of

;;;"i;tt, beneflts and other receivabtes from SHFC including proceeds

iiom- provia.nt Fund, or enforcing extrajudicially the Deed of

nl"onu.yin"" or Deed of Sale and/or Chattel Mortgage Agreement and

ir#oi"t" ,"possessing of the motor vehicle from the officer concerned,

as provided under the said IRR-

Non-collection of past due car loan amortizations and inaction by

f,ir"rg";"t to eniorce collection resulted in the non-recovery or loss of

funds expensed by SHFC in the car loan program'

We recommended and Management agreed to:

a. lmmediately collect the total car loan obligation from the retired

officers and former members of the Board;

b. Extrajudicially enforce the Deed of Reconveyance or Deed of Sale

and/or Chattil Mortgage Agreement and immediately repossess

the motor vehicle from the Officer concerned; and

c. Exercise immediately the legat remedies provided under the IRR

of the SHFC Officers VAAP.

N4anagementcommentedthatthenamesofthedefaultingofficer-availees
will bJ endorsed to Legal Department for sending of final demand letters

within ti/larch 2019. Also, after communicating the observations to the

officers concerned, Officers E and G immediately updated their

7.11
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8. '1

8.2

8.3

8.4

amortizations/payments by paying the total amounts ot P222'OOO and

P54,333, resPectivelY

For items b and c, Management will pursue the imme-diate implementation

"f-;;;i 
rem;ils'stipulaied in the IRR for SHFC officers VAAP which is

i^itiril, io l""uu final demand letter/s to the six Officer-availee/s who are in-

il;;;it'il-i; imptement strict monitoring of amortizations/pavments in

.iJ"i t" immediately act on accountJ that will become due and

Iur"noiof 
". 

And if necessary, Management will enforce the signed Deeds

oi R."onuuyunce to repos'sess th! motor vehicles in favor of the

Corporation by the 2"d quarter of 2019'

8 Unserviceable equipment iterns with acquisition cost of P1'567 million which

trr-J l"rg- uu.n 'stored and occupyins sp19:- in the office' remain

"iii"""".l, contrary to Section zs oi Pultlo- 1445 and CoA circular Nos'

e;-l96 r"d iooa-008i resulting in their further deteriotation'

Section 79 of PD No
propenY, Provldes that

1445 on the. destruction or sale of unserviceable

When government property has become unserviceable for any

cause,-or is no lon'ger needed, it shall' upon application of the

omiii u"countubte therefore, be inspected by the head of the

Z,iii"y o, ni" duly authorized rep-resentative in the p-resence of

tie iuaitor conAerned and, if found to be v-alueless or
'uirriint", 

it may be destroyed in thei presence' .lf found to be

,Ztiiit",'ii i"i be sold at public auction to the highest bidder

iii, tie supervision of ihe proper committee on award or

"ii.itu 
noay in the presence oi the auditor concerned or other

iity autnoi-izea representative of the Commission' such price

Z"'rii i" fixed by the same committee or body concerned and

aPProved bY the Commission'

COA Circular No. 89-296 dated January 27' 1g8' on..the other hand'

Jriuo*'ih" srioetines on the different modes of disposition/divestment of

I"""tt ""0 
p6perties, such as pubtic auction' sale.thru negotiation' barter'

ir""iL, t" Jh"l goveinment agencies and destruction/condemnation'

Further, COA Circular No. 2004-08 states that the value of obsolete and

l".l*itJii.l p.p",tv awaiting final disposition as well as.those assets still

;;;i;;;;b bri .i" no long"t-being used' should be reclassified to other

Assets account.

Review of the report on physical inventory as at December 31' 2018

disclosed that there are various unserviceable assets with a total

;"qr;ti;" cost of P1.567 million' During the conduct of physical inventory'

tnJ"on"utnuO personnel were able to segregate the unserviceable items in

ii;;;;il;;p;ti However, these items rehain undisposed for a number of

years alreadY.
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8.5 The summary of unserviceable assets is shown below

Description Amou nt

Office Equipment 188,360
1,378,488lT Equrpment and Software
1,566,848

8.6

8.7

8.8

lnquiry from Management disclosed that non-disposal was due to the

unava-ilability of rec&ds pertaining to the properties to support the disposal

Thus, unserviceable property and equipment that remained undisposed for

several years is contrary to Section 79 of PD No. 1445, exposing them to
further beterioration that would preclude getting better prices for its

disposal. Aside from the non-realization of possible income from sale, said

unserviceable assets occupy space that could have been used for other

better uses, such as to store official records. 
t.

We recommended that lrltanagement gather/restructure available data

required for the immediate disposal of all unserviceable property and

equipment in accordance with the modes prescribed under COA

Circular No. 89-296'

Management commented that they will account all unserviceable property

and irimediately submit to the Technical Service Department for immediate

appraisal as th; basis for determining the minimum bid price as the first

step in the disposal of Property.

8.9

9. Cashiers/Tellers

a. The two collecting Tellers were outsourced personnel, not officially
designatedandnotaccordinglybonded,contrarytoSection.l0lofPDNo.
1445-andsections4.land6.2ofTreasuryCircularNo'02-2009'exposingthe
Corporation to the risk of non-replacemenUrecovery of government funds in

case of shortages, defalcations and unrelieved losses'

9.1 Section 101 on Accountable officers and bond requirements, of PD No'

1445 Provides the following:

1. Every officer of any government agency whose duties
permt or require the possessron or custody of government
'funds 

or propetty shatt be accountable therefor and for the

safekeeping thereof in conformity with law.

2. Every accountable officer shall be properly bonded in

accordance with law.

Sections 4.1, 6.1 and 6.2 of Treasury Circular No. 02-2OOg provides the
following:

9.2
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4.1 Public Officers Covered - Every officer, agent, and
emplayee of the Govemment of the Philippines or the

companies or corporations of which the maiority of the

stoi* is helcl by the National Government (NG), regardless

of the status of their appointmbnt, shall whenever the

nature of the duties perfomed by such officer, agent or

eiployee permits or requrTes the possession, custody. or

"oita 
of iunds or propefties for which he is accountahle,

Le deemed a bonidable officer and shall be bonded or
bondabte and his fidelity insured.

xxx
A.i eri*u,y Liability - The head of any government. agency at- 

att tevels, wheiher nationat corporate or local is-primarily

ii"ponsibrc and accountable for all govemment funds and

propefty peiaining to his agency' 
r.

9.3

9.4

6.2 Duty to NotW - Ail Heads of Agency shall' upon
- - 

iii'ointrunt or lawfut accession by any account.able public

ifiic"r to a bondable position or office perlainin.g to their

riipictive lurisOiction, or separation .therefrom 
of any such

ii6ti" offi""r, notify in writing the Treasurer of the
-eniiippin"", 

tirough' the BTr Provincial office (Po)/District

oiili pol haing iurisdiction over the. agency/office

ieocc)rcjtsuc itthin five (5) days such appointment'

lawful accession or separation and to submit the required

iip,ptication for bond or cancellation thereof' as applicable'

From the moment he assumes the duties of the omce' an Accountable

Otfi"u. *ho". fidelity is insured in the Fidelity Fund Division of the BTr is

J"""iJ"i"J uo"oed io the Government for the faithfut performance of all

ilii;i;p";"; upon nim by law and for the faithful accounting of all funds

,"i-prnfil propurti"" that iome into his possession' custody or control by

aoorooriation. collection transfer or otheruise, as well as for the lavdul

;:;;;;i.;ilrsement and expenditure or transfer of all such funds or

ilfi;; il"fi;s in his custodv, possession or under his control as

accountable or responsible officer'

TheFidelityFundsha|lbeavailableforthepurposeofreplacing
defalcations, shortages, unrelieved losses in the accounts of bonded public

.rfi".i", i"t tn. palment of fees and costs incident to civil proceedings

uffini against irrem to recover sums paid on their account from said

Fund.

During the conduct of cash examination, the two personnel acting as

Teller! were not able to present the Office/Special Order or any document

otti"iufty designating them as collecting officers, and-both.were not bonded'

il;y ;i" outiourcJd personnel with the positions of Technical staff lll and

lV ilno starteO performing collection functions in September 2017 and May

2018, respectivily, repla-ing permanent and regular employees who were

designated to other dePartments.

7B
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9.6

o7

9,8

rlo

The accountability of one teller, during the conduct of .cash examination'

;;;J; dailv average collection of P800,000 The Tetlers perform over-

in.-_"*nt.i 
"i[ectioris 

which are turned-over to the Head cashier at the

unO ofln" OrV to form part of his accountability to be deposited on the next

["nr.ing Juv. rne Head cashier oversees the over-the-counter collections

Iil'ir" pt*"iiry responsible for the administration of collections and

il;";ltr:Hrl" 6troi"iry designated and a bonded permanent emplovee of

the CorPoration.

Collection functions being performed by the two outsourced personnel wtlo

;; ;;ith;, officially desiinated nor bonded with the BTr are contrary to PD

No. 1445 and ireasury Circular No' o2-2oj9, thus' exposing the

CJiporation to the risk of non-recovery of funds in case of loss'

WerecommendedandManagementagreedtoproperlydesignateand
;;:;;;-;;;;;"d bond rrori the Bri ror emplovees whose duties

;;;;;; ili.I p;ssession or custodv and control of government funds

or proPerty.

Management commented that the Treasury Group has submitted their

,"i,,.'.iili 
"ooitional 

plantilta position for caahiers/tellers. ln the meantime,

;:;";;;; -;;' -"h;;; but to utilize conlractual personnel to do

i"uJr,rniJ"'.ni"iin j iun"tion Neverthetess, the accountabitity was retained

"-rJ ".".r."0 
byihe authorized bonded officer in favor of the outsourced

;il;;;" i; mitfate tne risk of non-replacemenvrecovery of government

ir^i.'i" "rsu 
oJ shortages, defalcations and unrelieved losses As

recommended,Managementwillissuecorrespondingofficialdesignation
ul u"lorniuof'" colleiting officers and respective fidelity bonds will be

secured from the BTr.

b Fidelity bonds of two former Accountable Officers of the Treasury

Department were stilt reneweJ' despite their havin-g been transferred to other

;;;;;;;;l; ,;d whose functions to not require the possession' custodv or

control of funds or propettili, contrary to iection 7'4 of Treasury Circular

rtr.. ti-zoos, thus, entailing unnecessary expenses in the form of premium

payments.

9.1 0 Section 7.4 of Treasury Circular No' 02- 2OOg provides that:

The Head of Agency or authorized representative shall

iimediately submit a written request for bond cancellation to

thte concemed BTr invotving accountabte public officers who are

no longer accountable by ieason of retireme-nt' separation from

servic6, promotion, transfer, suspenslon.from office or any

cause rendering them not to be bondable to their present

Position.

9.11 ln May 2018, the Cashier lll/Collecting Officer' was transferred to Human

Ru"orr"uDepartment,whiletheAccountExaminerlll/CollectingOfflcer'
wii ttansf"trlO to fio in June 2018' However' their bonds were still
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9.1 3

9.14

o 1q

9.1 6

renewed for the period June 4, 2018 to June 4, 20'19, instead of having

them cancelled.

The former accountable officers, who were already transferred to other

Oupartments, carried with them their existing positions as Cashier and

nciount Examiner lll but their respective functions do not require

possession or custody and control of funds'

Non-cancellationofthefidelitybonciofformerAccountableofficersis
contrary to Section 7.4 of Treasury Circular No'.02-2009 cited above'

entailing unnecessary expenses to the Corporation in the form of premium

payments.

We recommended that Management:

a. Submit the request for the cancellation o{ the Fidelity Bond of the

t*o n""ountdble officers who no loiiger function as such

fri"rant to Section 7.4 of Treasury Circular No' 02-2009; and

b. Strictly monitor the period of effectivity of the Fidelity Bonds of

Accountableofficersanddonotrenewthebondonitsexpiration
of those whose function no longer require the possession'

custody and control of government funds'

Management commented that the transfer of these accountable officers is

not tinif and may at any time return to their former positions so they have

;;i.r*d cancellation oi th"i|. fid"lity bonds They have also coordinated

*itn tn" Administrative Departmeni to strictly monitor the effectivity of

iii.liiv-sonas of Accountabie officers and recommended not to renew the

Fidelity Bond upon expirY date.

As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendation that Management applies

foi G" lrn"uf frtion of the Fidetity Bono of officers who no longer require the

possession, custody and control of government funds'

c Eioht Dieces/set of unused Gommunity Mortgage Receipts (cMRs) and two

;;;;J";i.i unused officiat Receipts (oRs) were detached from the booklet

Ir*""tiy being used by the Tellers during the cash count' contrary to
iection'tZf of-pO tto. tAls wnictr may result in the possible misplacement

"i i""" "t unused CMR'/ORs or even unauthorized/fraudulent collection of
funds.

g.lTSectionl23ofPDNo.l44SontheDefinitionofInternalControlStates:

lnternal Control is the plan of organization and all the

coordinate methods and measures adopted within an

organization or agency to safeguard lfs assels, check the

ai.uracy and retiabitity of its accounting data, and encourage

adherence to prescribed managerial policies'

9.12
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9.1 8

9.1 9

9.20

d One piece of CMR and one piece of OR were pre-signed by one Teller who
was on leave of absence for the period July 3, 2018 up to July 29' 2018,

defeating the objectives of internal control, thus, exposing the corporation-

to the ilsk of unauthorized or fraudulent collection and possible loss of
public funds.

g.21 Validation of the Monthly statement of Accountability for Accountable

Forms without Money Value disclosed that the last CMR and OR that the

Tetler issued before going on leave of absence was CMR No' 0789403 and

OR No. 2609054C. However, verification of the unused accountable forms

of the Cashier ll/ Collecting Officer, .disclosed two detached CMR No'

0789404 and OR No. 2609055C which were already signed by him despite
his leave for two weeks.

g.22 The practice of pre-signing accountable forms is exposing the Corporation
to the risk of unauthorized or fraudulent collections and possible loss of
public funds.

9.23 We recommended and Management agreed to;

a. lmmediately discontinue the practice of pre-signing cMRs and
ORs; and

b. Strictly implement sound internal control, especially on the
issuance of accountable forms.

e

8'1

Conduct of count on the unused accountable forms disclosed that eight
pieces of CMRs (numbers 0789404 lo 07A9411) and two pieces of ORs

inumbers 2609056C and 2609057C) lvere already detached from the

booklet. According to the Teller, it is for efficiency purposes/saving time in

the issuance of accountable forms.

The practice of detaching the unused accountable forms when not yet for

immediate issuance is not a sound internal control, risking misplacement or

loss of the cN/lRs/oRs or may result in possible unauthorized or fraudulent

collection of funds.

We recommended and Management agreed to require the Tellers to:

a. Stop the practice of detaching CMRS/ORS from the booklet if not
for immediate issuance; and

b, Exercise due care and keep the unisgtled accountable forms
intact and attached to the booklet.

There were 28 CMRs cancelled due to various deficiencies of information on
the checks received by the Tellers/Cashiers for payment, contrary to
Clearing House Operation Memorandum (Cl-lOM) No. { 5-460A issued by the



Philippine Clearing House Corporation, resuiting in the accumulation of
unpaid housing loan amottlzations and additional cost to the Corporation for
the cancelled CMRs.

9.24 CHOM No. 15-4604 provides that

Effective January 4, 2016, any check that shows or indicates on
its face any erasures or alterations regardless of any signature
or initiats that appear to indicate authorization of the alteration
or erasure shall no longer be eligible or acceptable for clearing
except post-dated checks bearing the bank stamped specified
warehouse check.

9.25 Verification of cancelled CMRs disclosed the following deficiencies of
checks received for payment of loan amortizations when presented to the
bank for dePosit: I

Reasons No. of CMRs
Checks in old format
Error/alteration in amount of words/figures
Lack of signature
Post-dated checks

51

Wrong payee

8
2
2
1

f

28

9.26 These could have been avoided had the Teller/Cashiers scrutinized the
accuracy and completeness of information written on the checks received
for payment before the issuance of CMRs.

9.27 We recommended and Management agreed to exercise due care in
scrutinizing the checks presented for payment to ensure
completeness and correctness of information on the face of the
check.

A total of 155 ORs and CMRs were cancelled due to laxity in the preparation
of Order of Payment and the preparation and printing of the receipts,
resulting in the incurrence of additional cost to the Corporation for the
replacement of spoiled accountable forms.

9.28 Verification of the report of cancelled accountable forms revealed that there
were 139 CMRs and '16 ORs that were cancelled for the following reasons:

Reasons
No. of
CMRs

No. of
ORs Total

Error in the preparation of Order of Payment
Encoding Error of Teller
Printing Defect
Skip Printing

71
46
19
3

70
54
19

B

8
0
0

155Total 139 16
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g.2g Cancellation of CMRs and ORs could have been avoided or minimized had
the Tellers/Cashiers and the personnel-in-charge in the preparation of
Order of Payment been cautious in the preparation and In the printing of the
receipts. The deficiency results in incurrence of additional cost to the
Corporation for the replacement of spoiled accountable forms.

9.30 Moreover, summary of Cancelled CMRs/ORs including all copies of the
cancelled accountable forms is not submitted to COA on a monthly basis
for verification in audit.

9.31 We recommended that Management:

a. Require the Accounts Management Department to exercise
utmost clue care in the preparation of order of Payment and in the
printing of CMRs and ORs and to verify correctness of
information in the Order of Payment to avoid spoilage; and

b. Require the tellers of the Cash Management Department to sut mit
monthly report of cancelled accountable forms stating the
reasons for cancellation, including the complete set of all the
cancelled accountable forms.

Management commented that most of the defects occurred during the

transition to the new lT program installed by ISD which were rectified

thereafter. The Treasury Group OG) Officers will coordinate with the
department in charge of the processing of Order of Payment, as well as
remind the Tellers/Cashiers to exercise due care in the preparation and
printing of receipts.

(, Monthly Reports of Accountability for Accountable Forms (MRAAF) Without
Money Value by each Cashier were not prepared and submitted to COA,

contrary to Section 100 of PD No. 1445, resulting in the delay in the conduct
of the mandatory audit and difficulty in the reconciliation and monitoring of
accountable forms received and issued at any given month.

o??

9.33 Section 100 of PD No. '1445 provides that

Disbursing officers in any government agency shall render
monthly reports of their transactions pursuant to regulations of
the Commission to be submitted not later than the fifth day of
the ensuing month to the auditor concerned who shall conduct
the necessary examination and audit within thirty days from
receipt thereof.

Verification of the [ilRAAF from the Treasury Department disclosed that
only the reports of accountability issued by the Cashier to various
accountable officers nationwide were submitted to COA. The
Cashiers/Tellers performing collecting/cashiering functions do not prepare
MRAAF for their receipt and issuance of accountable forms.

9.34
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h TheHeadCashieralsoactsasthePetryCashCustodian,contrarytoSection
iis ot po No. 1445, defeating the purpose of internal control on the proper

i.grugrti"n of duties anc.l responsibilities to reduce the risk of error or fraud.

t-iiewise, replenishments were not properly recorded in the cashbook'

[.urting' l, incomptete recording of transaction details for easy monitoring
and reconciliation.

9.35

9.36

9.41

Thus, non-submission of monthly MRAAF without m-oney value by the

T; e;s/Cashiers resulted in detay in audit, especially in the reconciliation

and the monitoring of the movement of the accountable forms'

We recommendecl and Managenrent agreed to immediately require all

Cu=t iuru to prepare the fl,lRAAF every fifth of the following month and

subrnit to COA for the mandatory audit'

Section 123 of PD No. 1445 states that: l'

lnternal control is the ptan of organization and all the coordinate
methods and measures adopted within an organization or
agency to safeguard ils assels, check the accuracy and

,iruniity of its atccounting data, and encourage adherence to

pre scribed m an ageri al Pol icie s.

The lnternal Control Structure hlanual on control activities states:

Key duties and responsibilities need to be divided or
segregated among different people to reduce the risk of error or
fraud.

During the cash examination, the Audit Team learned that the Head

CashLr was also the Petty Cash Custodian. This is contrary to sound

internal control system and defeats the purpose of proper segregation of

duties for check jnd balance as these are incompatible functions

VerificationoftheCashbookofthePettyCaShCustodiandisclosedthat
entries were not properly recorded, such that amounts of replenishments

were posted direitly in the running balance column, instead of posting first

under the debit column, hence not reflecting the details of the transactions
(like check number and date) for easy monitoring and reconciliation'

We recommended and Management agreed to:

a. Segregate the functions of the Head Gashier and Petty Cash
Cuitodian to two emptoyees for sound internal control; and

9.37

9.38

o20

9.40

84

b. Require the Accountable Officer to properly accomplish the
cas'hbook by recording transactions chronologically, showing in
the Particulars column the details of the transactions and posting
the corresponding amounts in the debit and credit columns
before showing the balance.



Therewere3S0GeneralFundl(LBP)checkswithcoveringserialnumbers
+eeset to 469300 which were printed in the old format that is no longer

acceDtable to banks, contrary to Memorandum Circular No' 3126 of the

Philippine Clearing House Gorporation (PcHC)'

g.42 Philippine Clearing House Corporation Memorandum Circular No 3126

states that:

Banks should no longer accept checks with the old format

iesign effective Juty i, 2017 As most otd format Checks lack

the 
" 

security features emlsedcied in the new format' non-

a,cceptance will mitigate if not avoid fraud that may be

ittu*pt.a within an lmage clearing environment PCHC wi

only 
'accept and procesi Checks that. comply with the New

Check Design Standards and Specifications'

9.43 Inventory of unused accountable forms disclosed that there were still 380

Ceneral' Fund 1 LBP Checks which were already considered in. the- old

format and no longer accepted by the banks that are in the custody of the

accountable officers

g.44 The LBP Checks originated from NHN/IFC' way back in 2006' when the

CMP account was transferred to SHFC'

9.45 We recommended and Management agreed to cancel all checks in the

old format and submit to th; Office of the Auditor with proper report

as corroborating evidence for proper disposal'

Publicbiddingwasnotconductedfortheacquisitionofinsuranceprovider
ir ,r.t"g" tie Group Mortgage Redemption lnsurance (MRl) of loan

iorio*".i or the cMp and other simitar home financing programs of sHFc,

I"rli.w i" na No. 9184, otherwise known as the Government Procurement

n"iot-'e"t, thus, defeating the principles of transparency' accountability'

equity, etficiencY and economY'

10.1 Section 2, Rule I of the 2016 Revised IRR of RA No' 9184' states that in

line with ihe commitment of the Government of the Philippines (GoP) to-

promote good governance and its effort to adhere to the principles of

i-r*"put.i"y, aicountability, equity, efficiency, and economy in its process'

ii-i. 't. poiicy ot the Gop that procurement of Goods, Infrastructure

Prolects and ionsulting Services shall be competitive and transparent'

and therefore shall uniergo competitive bidding, except as provided in

Rule XVI of the lRR.

lO.2ThelawapptiestotheProcurementoflnfrastructureProiects'Goodsand
consulting bervices regardless of source of funds, whether local or foreign,

by all bra-nches and inltrumentalities of the government, its departments,

oifi"es and agencies, including government-owned and/or controlled

10.

B5
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10 3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

corporations and local government units, subject to the provisions of

Commonwealth Act No 138.

The SHFC is the lead government agency to undertake social housing

pro!r"r. that cater to the formal and informal sectors in the low-income

[riif<ut 
"nO 

shall take charge of developing and administering social

loriing progrum schemes, particularly the CMP and the Abot-Kaya

P;;;#y' fuio (nxpf) Program (amortization support program and

developmental financing program).

ln December 2006, SHFC entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
([/oA) with the insurance pool, a consortium of life insurance companies in

in" pnitippin"" to administer the Group MRI for the benefit of the SHFC and

for the borrower's account under the lending program The MOA retroacted

to January 2006.

The Mortgage Loan is the real estate loan for housing and/or lot purchase'

"u"ri"J 
olv i real estate mortgage (REM) granted to a mortgagor by SHFC

"na 
i"p"V'"nf" by monthly insialiments over a fixed period of years' lt also

covers' retonstructed loans applied by the borrower and repayable up to the

"*i*t 
of tf,u regular/original loan or a" applicable and provided by SHFC'

All borrowers of the cli/lP and such other similar home financing programs

whoarenotbeyondtheageofsixty-fiveattake-ouUdateshallbeeligiblefor
the Group MRl, including duly approved substitute member-beneficiary who

was subjected to the mandated underwriting requirements'

The insurance pool, a private entity, is the insurance provider of the

NHfrrfiC, thus, when SHfC toof over the administration of the social

housing program for the formal and informal sectors in the low-income

Orr"f."[ if'u 
-""i"ting 

insurance provider of NHMFC also took charge of the

administration of thL turned-over accounts by the NHMFC and the current

accounts maintained by SHFC without undergoing public bidding

Verification disclosed that no public bidding was conducted in the

acquisition of the insurance provider of the SHFC for its member-borrowers

since its creation on January 20' 2OO4.

For the year 2018, SHFC had remitted to the insurance pool, lnc' the

amount of P42.393 miltion for the MRI premiums of the housing loan

member-beneficiaries.

Further verification disclosed that the tvloA is silent as to the duration or

validity of the Agreement. Article Vlll of the Agreement on the

effectivity/termination only states that the MOA shall be sub.ject to
termrnation by either party by giving notice to the other within 90 days prior

to termination and it is understood that it shall include/cover those
previously enrolled bY the NHMFC.

of insurance
which were

Further, upon

1 0.1 O Previously, Management commented that the selection
provider was done through Quotations and Proposals
submitted to the Chairman and t\4embers of the Board'

BO



10.11

10.12

review and based on the representation of the responsible officers of the

SHFC, it would appear that the proposal of the insurance pool is the most

viable and advantageous among the five insurance companies that

submitted their ProPosals.

We then stressed that pursuant to Section 52.1 of RA No' 9184, Shopping

is a method of procurement of goocls whereby the Procuring Entity simply

requests for the submission of price quotations for readily available off-the-

shelf goods or ordinary/regular equipment to be procured directly from

suppliJrs of known qualifications- This method shall be employed in the
following cases:

a. when there is an unforeseen contingency requiring immediate
purchase, the amount shall not exceed P200,000; and

b. procurement of ordinary or regular office supplies and equipment not

available in the DBM-PS, in the amount not totexceed P1,000,000.

The process of only submitting price quotations is not applicable for the
procurement of MRI coverage provider considering that fo_r CY 2018 alone,
SHFC disbursed P42.393 million to the insurance pool. The procurement

should still be done through public bidding so that Management could

secure the best provider at the lowest practicable price' for the benefit of
the member-borrowers.

10.13 SHFC did not adhere strictly to the provisions of RA No. 9184, thus, the
principle of transparency, accountability, equity, efflciency and economy
cannot be ascertained. Through public bidding, lVlanagement could possibly

select from among participating insurance brokers for a better package for
the benefit of the MBs that SHFC caters to low income bracket borrowers

10. 14 We reiterated our prior year's audit recommendation that Management
strictty complies with the provision of RA No.9184 to conduct public
bidding for the provisions of the group MRI to loan borrowers.

10.15 Management commented that they sought the opinion of the Office of the
Government Corporate Council (OGCC), on the possible termination of the
present insurer which the OGCC opined that it would be premature to
terminate the services of the insurance pool, for reason that it may cause
confusion on the provision of insurance coverage to the outstanding
member-beneficiaries and may result in provocation of a negative action on
the part of the insurer considering that they have a long standing smooth
business relationship with the insurance pool.

10. 1 6 The Board, in a meeting on December 27 , 2018, instructed llanagement to
proceed with the termination of services of the present insurer and acquire
a new one through public bidding in compliance with RA No. 9184. As part
of the action taken, Management will consult with HDMF on the Terms of
Reference (TOR), agreements and benefits attached to the insurance
coverage the latter has implemented after procurement of its new insurer.
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11. A total of 161 Disbursement vouchers (DVs) amounting to P76.963 mlllion for
cy zota remained un_submitted as of audit date, contrary to section 107 of

io No. ta+s, sections 7.1_1 and 7.2.'t (al of coA circutar No. 2009-006 and

su"iion o.s 6t con circutar No. 95_006, detaying the conduct of mandarory

"""i:.roit 
and the timety implernentation of audit recommendations should

ihere be audit observations noted.

ll.lPDNo.1445,alsoknownastheGovernmentAuditingcodeofthe
PhilipPines, Provides that:

SECI/ON 107. Time and mode of rendering account - ln the

absence of specific provision of law, all accountable officers

shalt render accounts, submit their vouchers, and make

Jeposlfs of money coltected or hetd by them at such times and
in such manner as shalt be prescribed in the regulations of the

Commission.

11.2 COA Circular No. 2009-006 dated September 15,t2009 provides that:

Sec. 7.1.1 The head of the agency, who is primarily responsible

for atl government funds and propeiy pertaining to his agency'

shalt insure that; (a) the required financial and other repofts

and statements are submifted by the concerned agency officials

in such form and within the period prescribed by the

Commission; xxx

Sec. 7.2.1 The Chief Accountant, Bookkeeper and other
authorized official performing accounting and/or bookkeeping

functions of the audited agency shall ensure that; (a) the reports

and supporting documents submitted by the accountable

officers are immediately recorded in the books of accounts and
submifted to the auditor within the first ten (10) days of the

ensuing month,

1 1 .3 COA Circular No. 95-006 dated May 18, 1995 also states that:

6-5 The officiats invotved in the daily recording of transactions in

the books of accounts shall turn over the receipts and
disbursement records with all paid vouchers and documents
evidencing the transaction to the Auditor within ten (10) days

from date of receipt of said documents.

11.4 lnventory of DVs submitted to this Office revealed that as at December 31,

2018, SHFC processed a total of 3,813 DVs with a total amount of P2 607

billion of which only 3,652 DVs amounting to P2.530 billion were turned-
over to the Audit Team for the mandatory post-audit, thus, leaving 161 DVs

amounting to P76.963 million un-submitted as detailed below:

Received by GOA
Qty. Amount

Month
cY 2018

Processed
Qty. Amount

Unsubmitted
Oty. Amount

January
February

380,246,394
311,106,840

344 380,246,394
339 31 1 ,106,840

344
339
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Month
cY 2o't 8

Processed
Qty. Amount

Received by COA
Qty. Amount

Unsubmitted
Qty.

March
April
May
June
J uly
August
September
October
November
December

190,369,963
125,147,281
201,069,061
308,520,090
238,656,723
144,217 ,914
247,224,365
212,646,433
226,265,461

21,295,188

190,369,963
125,147,281
201,069,061
308,456,232
232,O37,194
143,611,O32
233,935,658
201 ,155,133
184,900,638

17 ,767 ,068

63,858
6,619,529

606,886
13,28A,7 07
11,491,301
41,364,823
3,528,120

368
5t 5
230
310
308

259
lzo

JOO

J/J
xa
304
293
354
336
320
20s
186

6
15
18
16
12
54
40

3,8r3 2,606,76s,716 3,652 2,529,802,494 161 76,963,224

11.5 Management explained that the delay was due to transmittal lag time to
and from the Regional Offices.

'1 1.6 Timely exercise of mandatory post-audit of the 161 DVs was not conducted
as these remained un-submitted as of the AOM date, which may
consequently result in the delay of timely implementation of audit
recommbndations should there be audit observations noted.

11.7 We recommended that Management:

lmmediately submit the 161 DVs with complete supporting
documents for the conduct of mandatory post-audit; and

11-8 Management committed to issue office order instructing every Department
to strictly adhere to the required timeline for the return of paid vouchers to
the Treasury Group.

12. Acquisition of four drones, or remote-controlled system aircraft, amounting
to P260,000 intended for SHFC's Regional Operations Offices for the survey
of project sites was not supported with proper documentation, contrary to
the Philippine Drone Regulatioinsuranns and the Manual of Standards for
Aerodromes by the Civil Aviation Authority of the Philippines (CAAP).
Moreover, in addition to the Environment Compliance Permit (ECC), DENR
requires all project proponents to undertake an Engineering Geological and
Geohazard Assessment.

12 1 Section 1 '1 .'l 1 .5 on Remote Piloted Aircraft System (RPAS) of the
Philippine Civil Aviation Regulations under the Requirement for Certificate
of Registration and Special Certificate of Airworthiness states that:

All RPA used for commercial operations are required to be
registered with the Authority regardless of weight.

a

a
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b. Strictly adhere to the provisions of PD No. 1445, COA Circular
Nos. 2009-06 and 95-006 on the submission of DVs to COA.



b. Non-commierciat Large RPA shall be duly registered with
the AuthoritY.

12.2 Section 1'1.11.6.2 RPAS Operator Certificate & Section 11 116'3 Pre-

Application Requirements state that:

A. An appticant for RPA Operator Ceftificate shall submit the
fotlowing documents with the Authority:

RPA} with a gross weight of 150 kgs and aDove are
required to obtain a Special Certificate of Airworthiness
(SCA) or an Experimental Cettificate (EC) in accordance
with PCAR Part 5.

1. A Letter of lntent

2 Duly Accomplished Pre-applicatioh Statement of lntent
(PASI) Form for RPA operator certificate which shall
include:

C

The application shall be accompanied by a copy of
each of the . applicant's Manuals relevant to the
operation of RPAs.

lf the Authority reasonably needs more information
about the applicant, or a document to anive at a
decision whether to certify the applicant as a RPA
operator, it may ask the applicant in writing for
information or a copy of the document.

B. The Authority may refuse to consider, or cease considering,
the application until the applicant furnishes the information
or copy of the document.

3

4
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(i) details of:
a. the appticant's structure and organization;
b. rts staff and their qualifications and

experiences (including, in paiicular, the
names, qualifications, experiences, duties and
functions of the persons who are to be
applicant's chief RPA controller and
maintenance controller);

c. its facilities and equiPment;
d. its practices and procedures; and

(ii) a general description of the proposed operations,
including the type or types of RPA to be used-



12.3

12.4

Section 1 1 .1 1 .6.4 Application Requirements itates that:

a. No person may operate an RPA for commercial operations
unless the person hotds an RPA' Operator Cedificate'

b. The applicant for RPAs Operator Ceftificate must hold the
following documents:
(i) lJser's manual issued by the Manufacturer;
(iD RPA lnsurance.lThird Party Liability (TPL);'(iii) 

Special Ceftificate of Airworthiness (if applicable); and
(iv) RPA Certificate af Registration issued by the Authority'

Further, Section 3.'1 , Chapter 3 on the CAAP Manual of Standards for
Aerodromes states that:

3.1 .1 .1 Under the provisions of CAR - Aerodromes 2.2 005

Operators of aerodromes must hold an aerodrome
cenificate where:
xxx
(iii) the aerodrome is available for public use and has

pubtished non-precision or precision approach
procedure and is not registered

The applicant shall be owner of the aerodrome site' or have
obtained permission from the owner to use the site as an

aerodrome.

The CAAP aerodrome cefification process only addresses
the aviation safety aspects of the aerodrome. lt is the
responsibitity of the applicant to ensure that the use of the
site as an aerodrome is in compliance with other national,
provincial and local statutory requirements. The aerodrome
ceiificates does not absolve the applicant from observing
such requirements.

a

J- I. 
'.J

3.1.1.4 Before submifting an application, an aerodrome operator
(or intending aerodrome operator) must prepare an
Aerodrome Manual, in accordance with the requirements
set out in CAR-Aerodromes 2.2.065.

12.5 Section 4 of COA Circular No.2012-003 on Updated Guidelines for the
Prevention and Disallowance of lrregular, Unnecessary, Excessive,
Extravagant and Unconscionable Expenditures, states that:

lJnnecessary expenditure perlains to expenditures which could
not pass the test of prudence or the diligence of a good father
of a family, thereby denoting non-responsiveness to the
exigencies of the service. Unnecessary expenditures are those
not supportive of the implementation of the obiectives and
mission of the agency relative to the nature of its operation.

91



'?.5 Section 53 of RA No. 9184 Drovides that:

Negotiated Procurement is a method of procurement of goods'
'iriiiiiiii"t" proiects and consulting services'. wherebv the

i;;;;i;s Entiiv directtv negotiates a contract with a technicats ''tigiii, ini ririinciailvZapible supplier, contractor or consuttant

n anY of the tollowing cases:

a. Two failed biddings- there hats been faiture of competitive

bidding or timited source bidding lor the second me:

b. Emergency cases - rn case of imminent danger to iirc or

property during the state of calamity xxx

c. iake-over of contracts;
d. Adiacent or contiguous;
e. AgencY to agencY;
f . s;ieniitic, sinotarty or artistic work, exctusive rccnnotogy

and media serv/ces i'

g. Xxx

12.7 Drones are more formally l(n

unmanned aircraft sYstems
own as unmanned aerial vehicles (UAVs) or

that can be remotely controlled or fly
ntrolled flight Plans in their em bedded

Globalwith onboard sensors and
autonomously through software-co
svstems, working in conjunction
Ptsitioning SYStem (GPS).

12.4

12.9

12.10

The Corporation purchased four drones amounting to P260'000 paid under

Oisnursement Voucher No. 2018103562 and Check No 92523 dated

[t-r.rU"t re, 2018 with Po No. 2018-09-158 dated September 21' 2O1a'

foi the use oi its four operational groups in the National Capital Region'

Luzon, VisaYas and [t/lindanao.

The four drones were procured under negotiated mode with a justification

tn"i tf.r"t" will be used by its operational groups for faster and more

"""rrrt. 
survey of the project sites rather than depending on the current

;;;il;|" i""ori."" on line' Management further stated that the drones will

,f"" n"fp in assessing the curreni suitabitity of the specific lot area of the

Corporaiion's projecti as regards to land hazards.such as landslide'

if""iirg r"O.iot, "rrg" 
by froviding aerial footage that can be used in

"aaiti"i 
t" GEO-hazird 

-assessment 
reports from the Mines and

Ceosciences Bureau (lVlGB)/Department ' of Science and Technology

(DOST).

The DENR, under Administrative Order (AO) No. 2000-28 dated March 14'

2000, provides that in order to adequately and comprehensively address

anO miiigate the possible effects/impacts of geologic haz€rds, it is required

that in a;dition to the requirement for the issuance of ECC, all proponents

of subdivision development projects, housing projects and other land

developmentandinfrastructureprojectsprivateorpublic,shallundertake
an Engineering Geological and Geohazard Assessment- The IIiIGB-DENR

anO o6Sl arJgovernment agencies responsible for the issuance of GEO-

Hazard Assessment rePort.
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a. Submit the documents on the planning for the purchase of the
drones including the specifications and intended benefits of the
equipment purchased to justify its necessity; and

b. lssue the equipment to the concerned unit for the immediate use
in accordance with the intended purpose.

t1. to Management commented that they will verify if they are exempt from the
requirements of the Philippine Civil Aviation Regulations and the lvlanual

Standards for Aerodromes by the Civil Aviation Authority, given the
technical specifications of the drones purchased, otherwise, they will submit
to the audit recommendations on the proper'documentation and training.

12.17

12.18

SHFC projects undertake Geohazard assessment before project approval
to ensure that the site is suitable for housing and safe from hazard. The use
of drones will facilitate the process of assessment and will complement the
said Geohazard assessment through aerlal view of the site, whlch may not

be visible in satellite images or even in actual visits given the limits of
human perception. There are physical conditions in the site that may be
missed unless you get an aerial view.

Further, the drones are essential in providing aerial inspection of their
clientele's current state of blightedness, which will support the need for the
approval of a housing loan, considering that their mandate is not just to

93

l2.lltntheaforementionedAo,eachRegionalofficeoftheI\/GB-DENRshall_o'guni="anUrbanGeologyUnitandShallbe.responsibleforthegeological

sit"e s"oping, review ind verification/validation of the Engineering

Geologicat ai'd Geohazard Assessment Report and shall provide expertise

to the-Environmental lmpact Assessment Review Committee of the MGB-

DENR.

12.,12 Review of available documents disclosed that the corporation purchased

thedronesWiihoutcomplyingwiththerequirementsprescribedunderthe
Fnitipplne civil Aviation Regulations and cAAp Manual of standards cited

aDove.

12.13 Further verification disclosed that the four drones purchased are still in the

HeadofficeofsHFCandhavenotbeenforwardedyettothefourRegional
Operations Groups for the intended use'

12.14 Thus, the acqulsition of four drones not l'supported with proper

documentation from the authorized government agencies and unnecessary

Drone-taken surveys for the engineering geological and geohazard

aSsessmentarecontrarytotheabove-citedprovisionsofthePhillppine
CivilAviationRegulationsandtheCAAPManualofStandards,rendering
the disbursement irregular and unnecessary'

1 2.15 We recommended that Management



13.

provide housing units in safe areas but also to improve the quality of lives

and access to services of the families they assist.

12.19 fhe drones were not yet distributed for use as they are still arranging for
compliance with these regulations, if necessary.

12.20 As a rejoinder, we stand by our audit recommendation that Management

submit ihe planning documents prior to the purchase of drones, as well as
the specifications of the said equipment.

Travel expenses amounting to P70,884 incurred for the Learning Exchange
Program were not in accordance with the mandate of SHFC as provided
under Executive Order No.272. Moreover, airline ticket rebooking and other
fees amounting lo P13,212were charged to travel expenses.

13.1 Section 2. Mandate under Executive Order No. 272 states that

The SHFC shall be the lead government agency to undertake
social housing programs that will cater to the formal and
informat secfors ln the low-income bracket and shall take
charge of developing and administering social housing program
schemes, pafticulafly. the CMP and the AKPF Program
(amofiization support program and developmental financing
program).

13.2 ltem 3 of COA Circular No. 2012-003 dated October 29, 2012' provides

that:

IJ-J

lrregular expenditures are incurred if funds are disbursed
without conforming with prescribed usages and rules of
discipline.

Learning Exchange Program welcomes Local Government Units (LGUs)
who are interested to tearn more about the programs of SHFC and to have
an up-close and personal experience of its successful projects in Metro
IVlanila for benchmarking.

Review of available documents disclosed that the purpose of the cash
advance amounting to P206,000 was for the hotel accommodation,
transportation, food and other expenses on November 2-3, 2017 by
representatives/partners from the LGUs of Kapalong, Davao del Norte,
Tagum City and Davao City, in the Learning Exchange Activity on the High
Density Housing Program (HDHP) and Community Mortgage Program
(cMP).

The invitation letters as approved by the Agency Head and sent to four
Barangay Councilors stated that the expenses shall cover only the
overnight accommodation and meals for the two-day activity.

13.4

13.5
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13.6 Details of the travel expenses are shown below:

Particulars Amou nt

Airfare from Dav
Councilors,

ao City to Manila an
including meals,

d vice-versa of 4 Barangay
lodging and incidental

46,884

13. /

expenses for 2 daYs (P11 ,721 x 4)

Penatty fee due to double-booking. initially booked for 8 24 '0OA
passengers (P3,000 x 8)

7O,B84

Particula rs
Number Amount

FurtherverificationdisclosedthatpenaltyfeesamountingtoP24,000for
oouotenooringofairlineticketswaschargedagainstcorporatefunds'This
was due to tiiscommunication and lack of proper coordination of the

officers who booked the tickets of the Barangay Councilors who attended

the two-day activity. r.

verification of documents also disclosed that rebooking and additional fees

amounting lo P13,212, considered as personal in nature, were charged

against the corporate funds, to wit:

Check
Date

13.8

81523 3t12t2018

4126t2018

7 t31t2018

2,616

8,596

2,000

6i[inally bound for Davao City but rebooke
Cotabato due to meeting with LGU - T'Bol

dto
ion

81986

91529

March 2,2018
Failed to catch flight on time (6:00 AM. April 15'

2018)
Originally bound for Manila on July '1, 20'18 but
rebooked for July 2,2018 due to a breakfast
meeting in Davao City

13,212

13.9 Thus, travel expenses forthe Learning Exchange Program totaling P70,884

which were not in accordance with the mandate of SHFC and the rebooking

and other fees amounting 1o P13,212 which are personal in nature

constitute irregular disbursements under COA Circular No 2012-003'

1 3.10 We recommended that Management demand for the refund of the
travel expenses totating P84,096, otherwise, the disbursement shall
be disallowed in audit.

1 3.'1 1 Management commented that the conduct of learning exchange is within
their mandate. They do learning exchange activities for their partners,

namely the LGUs, communities, National Government Organizations, Cf\ilP

lr4obilizers the academe and others in order for the SHFC to deliver and
reach their targets, the lnformal Settler Families. This strategy is

encapsulated in the Sustainability Development Framework in capacitating
SHFC's partners.
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13.14

Before lvlanagement can efficientty perform their role as partners, they do

Capacity Builiing wherein they arrange their partners.to make actual visits

in successful communities who previously availed of the projects ln these

visits, the communities discuss the history of the project and the challenges

they encounter including the best practices.

The learning exchange is also a crucial tool for implementing Barangay-

based City-iide Community upgrading approach to scale up and speed up

its programs to more significantly make a dent on the enormous housing

need.

On the issue of rebooking and additional fares amounting to P13,212, these

were incurred due to an urgent call for a meeting with the LGU-T'boli

requesting for site visits as well as meetings with the tribal leaders and

members as part of expansion initiatives for the CMP'

As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendatiorl' that Management refund

the travel expenses totaling P84,096, otherwise, the disbursement shall be

disallowed in audit.

14. procurement of airfare tickets was still made through direct booking or
travel agencies, instead of procuring them from the Department of Budget
and Maiagement-Procurement Service (DBM-PS) under the Government
Fares Agieement (GFA) using the Philippine Government Electronic
Procurerient System (PhilGEPS), contrary to the Government
Procurement Poli,cy Board (GPBB) Resolution No. 11 -2017 and Sections 1,

2 and 6(b) of Administrative Order (AO) No. 17, series of 2o11'

14.1 Administrative Order No. 17, s.2011 dated July 2a, 2011 on the use of the
procurement service and the PhiIGEPS in the procurement activities in

accordance with Republic Act (RA) No- 9184, and improving the operation
of the Procurement Service (PS), states:

Section 1 Reiteration of Policy. xxx... all government agencrcs
shatl procure their common-use supplles from the PS and use
the PhitGEPS in all their procurement activities, including
pubtishing atl their bid oppoftunities and posting all their awards
and contracts in it, in accordance with R.A. No. 9184.

Section 2. Coverage. This Administrative Order shall apply to all
National Government Agencies, including Military and Police
lJnits; Government-Owned and/or -Controlled Corporations
(cOCCs); Government Financial lnstitutions (GFls.); Stale
lJniversities and Colleges (SUCs); and Local Government Units
(LGUs).

Expansion of Product List. Regularly conduct a survey to

determine other products commonly purchased by procuring
entities for addition to the list of common use supp/les.
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Airline tickets will be treated as a Common-use Supp/les and
Equipment item to be purchased from the DBM-PS, subiect to
reasonable advance payment terms to be set by the DBM-PS.

14.3 Validation of the liquidations of cash advances for travel disclosed that
procurement of airfare tickets was still made through direct booking with
various airline companies or travel agencies, instead of procuring them
from the DBM-PS under the GFA using the PhilGEPS.

14.4 lnquiry with Management disclosed that the MOA between SHFC and
DBIV-PS is yet to be drafted, although SHFC has already undergone a
series of coordination with the DBM-PS and prepared a draft Office Order
for the implementing guidelines for the GFA to be presented to the Board.
Search from the website of DBM on the frequently asked questions
disclosed that all government procuring entitieslshould be enrolled in the
cFA through the PS-Ph||GEPS by March 31,2017 .

14.5 Thus, procurement of airfare tickets made through direct booking or
through travel agencies is not in accordance with Adminlstrative Order No.
17.

14.6 We recommended and Management agreed to comply with the
requirements of PhiIGEPS in adopting the GFA.

15. The amount allocated for Gender and Development (GAD) programs,
projects, and activities (PPAs) was only P7.716 million or .003 per cent,
instead of P't38.068 million which is five per cent of the approved Corporate
Operating Budget (COB) amounting to P2.761 billion, contrary to Joint
Circular No. 2012-01 issued by the Philippine Commission on Women (PCW),
National Economic and Development Authority (NEDA) and Department of
Budget and Management (DBM). Out of the total allocation, only P2.931
million or 38 per cent was utilized, reducing the opportunity of women and
other concerned parties to participate and benefit from the GAD PPAs.
Moreover, two out of the '12 planned GAD activities were not implemented-

15.1 GAD refers to the development perspective and process that is
participatory and empowering, equitable, sustainable, free from violence,
respectful of human rights, supportive of self-determination and
actualization of human potentials. lt seeks to achieve gender equality as a
fundamental value that should be reflected in development choices and
contends that women are active agents of development, not just passive
recipients of development.

Joint Circular No. 2012-01 issued by the PCW, NEDA and DBM prescribes
the guidelines and procedures for the formulation, development,
submission, implementation, monitoring and evaluation including
accounting of results of agency annual GAD plan and budget (GPB), and
GAD accomplishment report (AR).

15.2

14.2 GPPB Resolution No. 1 1-2017 dated March 10,2017 states that:



15.3

15.4

15.5

Paragraph 2.3 of the above Joint Circular states that:

Pursuant to the tr'lCW and the General Appropriations Act
(GAA), atl governnent depaftments, including their attached
agencies, offices, bureaus, slaie universities and colleges
(SUCs), government-owned and controlled corporations
(GOCCs), local government units (LGUs) and other government
instrumentalities shall formulate their annual GPBs within the
context of their manclates to mainstream gender perspectives in

their policies, programs and. proiects. GAD Planning shall be
integrated in the regutar activities of the agencies, the cost of
impiementation of which shatl be at least five percent (5%o) of
their totat budgets. The computation and utilization shall be

implemented in accordance with the specific guidelines
provided lherein.

Considering that the total COB of the Corporatiorl for CY 2018 amounted to

P2-761 billion, the budget allocated to GAD should have been P138'068

million which is five per cent, instead of P7 .716 million and which could

have been allocated or attributed to GAD PPAS.

For CY 2018, audit revealed that out of the approved budget of P7716
million for GAD, AR showed that only P2.931 million or 38 per cent was

utilized for GAD actual expenditures as shown below:

Programs,
Projects and

Activities
tmptemented unimplemented 

^fJjffj,
Utilization %

CIient-Focused
Activities

Organization-
Focused
Activities

4

6

1 5,054,000 1,729,646 34%

2,662,144 1 ,201 ,712 45%

15.6

15.7

10 2 7 ,71.6 144 2,931,358 38%

Out of 12 planned GAD activities included in the endorsed Annual GPB'

tvvo were not implemented and the said activities were deferred due to lack

ol participants and unavailability of schedule

Thus, the low utilization and partial implementation of the Annual GPB for
CY 2018 has reduced the opportunity of women and other concerned
parties to participate and benefit from the GAD PPAs.

15.8 We recommended that Management:

Properly allocate or attribute GAD-related expenses to maximize
the use ot the budget required to be allocated for GAD activities
to conform strictly with the provisions under Paragraph 2.3 of
Joint Gircular No. 2012-01 issued by PCW-NEDA-DBM; and

a
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'15.9

15.10

b. Monitor properly the implementation of the planned GAD PPAs,
which should be done as per schedule within the budget year, as
approved by PCW.

Management commented that the utilization rate of 2.36 per cent for CY

2017, was increased to 38 percent for CY 2018 or an increase of 35.64
percent. Management also commented that they continuously conduct
seminars on gender sensitivity training to newly hired head office/regional
personnel, gender sensitivity training for SHFC member beneficiaries and
Quarterly GAD meeting and evaluation will be held among the focal point

system committee and gender champlons

Management had also reconstituted the GAD Focal Point System
Committee to regularly review SHFC mandate, objectives, budget, policies

and programs to ensure its GAD responsiveness.

ABOT. KAYA PABAHAY FUND (AKPF)

16. Assets of AKPF amounting to P260.219 million were not stated at their fair
value for cY 2018 due to absence of policy on the assessment, measurement
and recording of impairment losses as required under PAS 36 and 39, thus,
casting doubt on the reliability and valuation of the Fund's assets.

16.1 Records showed that as at December 31,2018, the AKPF has reported the
following financial and non-financial assets in its books of accounts:

Particulars
Financial Assets

Receivables, current
Sales contracts
lnterest

4,522,629
6,154,003

67 ,441,124

10,676,632

68,493,490Receivable, non-current
Loans
Sales contracts 1,052 366

79,170,122

Non-Financial Assets
Other non-current assets

Foreclosed Properties
Other Assets (Dacion en Pago)

119,294,628
61,575,248

180,869,876

179,31t)Property, p lant and equipment

260 219 308

Financial Assets:

Saies Contracts Receivable are amortizations due from the sale of
Acquired Assets.
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Loans Receivable are past due accounts from loans granted to
developers, some of which are items under litigation.

Non-Financial AsseIS

Foreclosed Properties refer to the following properties which were
reclassified from Acquired Assets.

Project Book Value
P27,609,301

22,236,576
18,396,665
16,257 ,O48
11,500,827
10,339,181
6,836,724
6 1 18,306

119,294,628

Other Assets account pertains to the following properties acquired from
settlement of accounts through Dacion en Pago.

Project Book Value
18,181,155
17,382,383
11,586,144
9,334,752

090 814

16.2 AKPF has no existing policy/guidelines to assess whether there is
indication or objective evidence of impairment for the above-mentioned
assets.

16.3 Failure of the lvlanagement to provide policy/guidelines to assess whether
there is an indication or objective evidence of impairment on the recorded
assets casts doubt on the accuracy and valuation of the assets and
possible misstatement of the financial statement, and is contrary to the
above stated provisions of PAS 36 and 39 as cited under Paragraph 2.1,
Part ll of this Report.

We recommended and Management agreed to formulate
policy/guidelines on the assessment, measurement and recording of
impairment losses of its recorded assets as required under PAS 36
and 39 for CY 2018.

17. Other Non-Current Assets composed of Foreclosed and Dacion en Pago
Properties totaling P180.870 million were presented in the Statement of
Financial Position under the line item of Other Non-Current Assets, instead

B
C
D
E

G
H

I

J

K
L

IVI 5

100

I

61,575,248
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of a separate line item of Investment Property, contrary to lnternational
Accouniing Standards (lAS) 40, which may lead to misinterpretation of
financial inlormation that is relevant to economic decision of stakeholders.

17.1 Paragraph 7 of IAS 40 states that:

lnvestment Propefty is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, an investment properly
generates cash flows largely independently of the olher.assets
hetd by an entity. This distinguished investment propefty from
owner-occupied propefty. The production or supply of goods

and services (or the use of property for administrative purposes)
generates cash flows that are attibutable not only to propefty,

but atso to other assets used in the production or supply
process, IAS 16 applies to owner-occupied property.

The foltowing are examples of investment propefty:

a. Land held for long-term capital appreciation rather than for
shortierm sale in the ordinary course of bustness.

b. Land held for currently undetermined future use (if an entity

has not determined that it will use the land as owner-

occupied propefty or for shofilem sale in the ordinary
course of business, the land is regarded as held for capital

appreciation.
xxx

17.2 Paragraph 54 of IAS 1 states that:

As a minimum, the statement of financial position shall include
line items that present the following amounts:

a. propefty, Plant and equi7ment;
b. investmentProPertY;
c. intangible assets;
d. financial assets
e. investment accounted for using the equity method;
xxx

17 .3 The Statement of Financial Position of the SHFC-AKPF as at December
31 , 2018 is presented as follows:

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivable-Current

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Long-Term Receivable
Property, Plant and EquiPment
Other Non-Current Assets

XXX

xxx
XXX

XXX

xxx
XXX

xxx
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17 .4

17 .5

l/ t)

'18.1 Section 5 of RA No. 656 provides that:

Every government, except a municipal government below first
c/ass, rs hereby required to insure its properties, with the Fund
against any insurable risk herein. provided and pay the
premiums thereon, which, however, shall not exceed the
premiums charged by private insurance companies xxx.

Review of the Statement of Financial Position of the AKPF disclosed that
the Other Non-current Assets totaling P180.870 million is composed of the
Foreclosed Assets amounting to P1 19.295 million and Other Assets
(Dacion en Pago) amounting to P61.575 million. This is despite the fact
ihat tney meet the foregoing provision of IAS 40, hence, should be
presented as lnvestment Property which is a separate line item.

Foreclosed Properties/Assets and Other Assets were reclassified from
Acquired Assets. Foreclosed Properties/Assets account pertains to eight

foreclosed projects, while five projects are properties acquired from
settlement of accounts through Dacion en Pago as stated in observation
No. 16 17 of this report.

Non-presentation of the Other Non-Current Assets account in a separate
line iiem as lnvestment Property may lead to misinterpretation of financial
information that is relevant to economic decisior\of the stakeholders.

17.7 We recommended that Management properly classify the Other Non-
Current Assets composed of Foreclosed and Dacion en Pago
Properties to lnvestment Property, in compliance with IAS 40.

17.8 Management commented that these accounts were previously classified

under Acquired Assets account, however, said account is no longer in the

Revised Chart of Accounts for Government Corporations. This concern was

raised during the seminar on Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS) and Revised Chart of Accounts (RCA) for Government

Corporations (GC) on what appropriate classification must these accounts
be presented in, but no specific answer was given

17.g As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendation that Foreclosed and
Dacion en Pago Properties be reclassified as lnvestment Property.

18. The House and Building structures with appraised value of P20.789 million
lodged under the Other Non-Current Assets account of the AKPF were not
enrolled for Fire and Other Allied Perils lnsurance (FAPI) coverage with the
Government Service lnsurance System (GSIS), contrary to Section 5 of RA
No. 656, Memorandum Circular No. 634, s. 1973 of the Office of the President,
and Section 3 of COA Circular No. 2018-002, thus, exposing SHFC to the risk
of non-indemnification of insurable assets in case of loss arising from fire,
theft, earthquake, storm and other fortuitous events-
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1A.2 lvlemorandum Circular No. 634, s. 1973 of the Offlce of the President
provides that:

ln order to conserve the resources of the Government, all
depaftments, bureaus, offices, agencies and instrumentalities of
the Government, all provincial, city and municipal governments,
and government-owned or controlled corporations are hereby
directed to insure all property and ofher assets belonging to the
Government, its agencies, and political subdlvrsions ln
accordance with the Propefty lnsurance Law.

1 8.3 Section 3 of COA Circular No. 2018-002 dated May 31 ' 2018 provides that

The coverage of all insurable government assels and other
assefs such as confracfs, rights of action, and other insurable
rrsks of government agencies, deparlments, bureaus, boards,
commlsslons, state universities and colleges, local government
units, government-owned or controlled corporations and their
subsidiaries/affiliates, including all others in which these
agencies or offices have an insurable risk or an insurable
interest, such as but not limited to, loss or damage of the
government assets.

tt further provides that it is only when such propefty or paft
thereof are not acceptable to the GIF that these may be insured
with a private insurance company at a cosf most advantageous
to the government, subject to the applicable provisions of the
Revrsed lmplementing Rules and Regulations of RA No.9184
or the Government Procurement Reform AcL

18.4 The two components of the AKPF representing 60 per cent of the Fund are

a) the Liquidity support and interest subsidy component (LSISC) - used

exclusively for enhancing affordability of low-cost housing by low income
families by means of subsidized monthly amortization for five years and b)

the Amortization support and devetopmental financing component (ASDFC)

- used to extend developniental financing loans up to 80 per cent of the
total project cost to proponents of low-cost housing projects AKPF was
placed under the trusteeship of the NHMFC under the SHFC a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the NHMFC.

18.5 The Cash Flow Guaranty, the third component of the fund (40 per cent)
was placed under the trusteeship of the Home Guaranty Corporation (HGC)
to ensure a viable cash flow for the funding agencies involved in housing in
the face of liquidity risks resulting from non-collection of loans.

The Schedule of Non-Current Assets of the AKPF showed Foreclosed
Properties and Other Assets with a total appraised value of P296.082
million, consisting of Land and Land lmprovements appraised at P27 5.293
million and House/Building Structures appraised at P20.789 million with the
following details:

18.6
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Appraised Value

Land & House/ Building
rovements Structures

Date of
Appraisal

Date
Foreclosed

Project

Imp

B
C
D
E
F

H
I

J
K
L
M

1,479,125
5,757,974
9,738,120

50,908,200
7 ,119,920

21,493,800
2'1 ,239,000
62,901,721
4,648,600

21,528,300
21,514,809
14,166,519
32,796,755

968,770
936,000

1,865,080
6,049,200

2,473,200

7,'1 15,600

48/29t2008
11t12t2012
0710612016
o1t24t2017
03t29t2017
03t2at2017
03t27t2017
04t25t2017
11t09t2017
11t09t2017
03t05t201B
03t21t2018
t03t21t201B

11t30t2003
07to3t2002
07t04t2017
1212012016
01t27 t2014
01t27t2014
02t2812014
08t07 t2008
05102t2002
12129t2016
05t02t2002
02t28t2014
05t02t2002

Total
275,292,A47 20,789,090

P296,081,937

187 Verification of the account revealed that the foreclosed Buildings and
Structures were not enrolled for FAPI coverage with the GSIS, contrary to
RA No. 656, Memorandum Circular No. 634, s. 1973 of the Office of the
President and COA Circular No. 2018-002.

18.8 Thus, the non-provision of insurance on the house and building structures
of the foreclosed assets exposed the AKPF to the risk of non-recovery in
case of damage to, or loss of, properties due to fire, earthquake, storm, and
other fortuitous events.

18.9 We recommended and Management agreed to:

lmmediately enroll the House and Building Structures component
of the Foreclosed Properties and Other Assets for FAPI Coverage
with the GSIS; and

b. Adhere strictly to the provisions of RA 656, MC 634 and COA
Circular No. 2018-002.

1 8.1 0 Management commented that enrollment for FAPI coverage with the GSIS
will be within the last quarter of 2019 where the following activities are to be
undertaken by the Trust Administration Department:

Validation of the extent of development of house and building
structures in the AKPF projects to ensure insurability. This will be done
within the second quarter of 2019; and

b. Coordination with GSIS on the requirements and processes to facilitate
the insurance of the projects.

a

a
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'19. A total of 2,205 Transfer certificates of Title (TcTs) of the Foreclosed and

orfion 
"n 

iago properties booked under other lllon-current Assets are not

yei consolioited in the name of sHFc, considering that foreclosure
'pioceeoings and set$ements in kind had been undertaken as early as 2002,

L, ,r,oru than {6 years, causing delay in the disposal of the property and

exposing the housing structures to further deterioration'

lg.lRecordsShowedthatAKPFhasinitsbooksofaccountsForeclosed
eropertiesandotherAssetsacquiredthroughDacionenPagototaling
P170.531 million composed of 2,205 TCTs'

40 ) Aging of the Non-Current accounts with TCTs that remained

uico-nsolidated in the name of SHFC as at December 31, 2O1a showed the

following:

Project Book Value
Date

Foreclosed
Total
TCTs

Age
Years/
Mos.

Remarks

Foreclosed Assets
A 11,500,827
B 27,609,301
c 6.836,724
D 18,396,665
E 22,236,576
F 16,257,048

11t30t2403
08/07/2008
0112712014
01t2712014
o2t2812014
02t2a2a14

129
31

85
6,4.1

JJI

15t1
1014
4t11
4111

4t10
4t10

G 6,118,306 07104120M 50 115

Borrowed by Trust
Administration
Department of SHFC
for annotation and
registration of
Certificate of Sale
Borrowed by Trust
Administration
Department of SHFC
for presentation to
RTC. Daet in relation
to the application for
extrajudicial
foreclosure sale

108,955,447 1,320

Dacion En Pago
H
I

J
K
L

17,382,383
9,334,7 51
5,090,814

11,586,144
1 8,1 81 ,1 55

338

54
120
200

16/6
16i 6
16/6
2to
2to

6',1,57 5 247 885
't70,530,694 2,205

As gleaned from the above table, non-current accounts are aged from more

thai one year to more than 16 years from the date these were foreclosed,

but as of audit date the TCTS are not yet transferred in the name of the

Corporation.

'19.3
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19.4 Only the TCTs of Project M consisting of 78 TCTs have been consolidated
in the name of the SHFC.

19.5

19.6

19.7

Further verification disclosed that for the Projects C and D, a Certificate
Authorizing Registration (CAR) has been secured and already in the
process of submitting the requirements for the computation of Transfer and
Capital Gains Tax.

On the other hand, Projects E, I and H are still in the process of securing
the documentary requirements for the issuance of CAR, despite having
been foreclosed/acquired for a period longer than 16 years.

The non-consolidetion of the 2,205 TCTS in the name of SHFC hampers
the prompt disposal of the acquired assets and exposes the structures to
further deterioration.

19.8 We reconrmendeci and Managernent agreed tb:

19.9 l\ilanagement commented that the Trust Administration Department has

been prioritizing the transfer of titles to SHFC's name since the last quarter
oI 2017. However, delay of transfer was due to the slow processes in other
government agencies, like Registry of Deeds, the Bureau of lnternal
Revenue and the Assessor's Offlce. ln the case of Cristina Homes 1, it took
them 7 months to process the CARs (BlR) for 31 TCTs. ftiloreover, request
for certified true copies of titles as one of the requirements for the
assessment of Capital Gain Tax (CGT)/Expanded Withholding Tax (EWT)
is limited only to at most 20 titles per day on all projects.

19.10 In the face of the above challenges, Management committed to dtspose of
these projects at the soonest possible time to eliminate the risk on the
Corporate funds invested in housing. For the Project M, titles were already
consolidated in the name of SHFC in July 20'18, however, the expropriation
case involving some lots in said subdlvision affected by the Subic-Clark-
Tarlac Expressway is still pending with the Court, hence, the same cannot
be disposed of at this time.

20. Real Property Taxes (RPT) amounting to P4.735 million under the Due to
LGUs account remained unpaid as at December 31, 2018, despite having
been accrued for one year to over seven years, contrary to RA No.7150, or
the Local Government Code of 1991. This may result in the delay of
consolidation of titles in the name of SHFC as this constitutes lien on the
property, or SHFC may even lose the property if the LGU concerned avails of
the remedies by administrative action thru levy on real propertlt or by judicial
action.
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a. Prioritize the transfer of the TCTs of the Foreclosed and Dacion
en Pago Properties in the name of the SHFC; and

b. Facilitate disposal of the properties to recover the funds invested
into housing.



2O.1 Sections 246, 255 lo 257 of RA No. 7160 provides the following,

resPectivelY:

The real propefiy tax for any year shall accrue on the first day ol
January and from that date it shall constitute a lien on the
propefty wltich shall be superior to any other lietl, moftgage, or'encumbrance of any kind whatsoever, and shall be

extinguished only upon the payment of the delinquent tax'

tn case of faiture to pay the basic real propefty tax or any other
tax tevied under this Title upon the expiration of the periods as

provided in Section 250, or when due, as the case may be,

shall subject the taxpayer to the payment of interest at the rate

of two percent (2%) pq month on the unpaid amount or a

fraction thereof, until the delinquent tax shall have been fully
paid: Provided, however, That in no case shall the total interest

on the unpaid tax or portion thereof e*ceed thirty-six (36)

montl'ls.

For the cottecticn of the basic real propedy tax and any other
tax levied under this Title, the /ocal government unit concerned

may avail of the remedies by administrative action thru levy on

real property or by iudicial acflon.

The basic real propefiy tax and any other tax levied under this

Title constitutes a lien on the propefty subiect to tax, superior to
att tiens, charges.or encumbrances in favor of any person,

irrespective of the owner or possessor thereof, enforceable by
administrative or judicial action, and may only be extinguished
upon payment of the tax and the related interests and
expenses.

2O.2 The Due to LGU account represents unpaid RPTs on AKPF projects

accrued for one year to over seven years as shown below:

Project Book Value
Date of

Tax Accrual
Past Due

Due to LGU Ase)
A 21 ,0',1 1 ,6',16 12t31t2014

1213112013
12/2At2012
12t29t2011

198,340
330,666
275,555

1,377 ,776

4 years
5 years
6 years
7 years

2,182,337

B 29,791,950 12t31t2018
12t31t2017
12t31t2016

928,167
317,500
317,500

Current
l year

2 years

1,563,167

147



Project Book Value
Date of

Tax Accrual
Due to LGU

Past Due
(Ase)

c 27,609,301 12t31t2013
12t28t2012
12t29t2011

Total
Adjustment

168,000
140,000
700,000

1,008,000
(1 8,881)

5 years
6 years
7 years

989,119
4,734,623

2O.3 Projects A and B are recorded under Loans Receivable, and past due
accounts arising from loans granted to developers and those accounts
under items in litigation. On the other hand, Project C is a foreclosed
account, hence, recorded under Other Non-Current Assets.

20,4 Verification from Management disclosed that Ploject A had been issued a
warrant of distraint and levy by the LGU of Bataan in 2007 due to non-
payment of RPT. Renegotiation by the Technical Working Group with the
LGU for the repurchase of the property has been undertaken.

2O.5 On the other hand, Project C has an on-going judicial dispute filed by one
of the owners requesting for the buyback of the property at the price
pegged by SHFC but w'as denied by the Corporation.

206 Further, Project B was endorsed to the Legal Department for foreclosure in
I\Iarch 2015 and is awaiting resolution of the case filed by the developer
against SHFC before the RTG of Quezon City assailing SHFC's decision of
disapproval on the requested waiver of interests prior to filing of
foreclosure.

20.7 Non-payment of the basic real property tax will subject SHFC to the
payment of interest rate of two per cent per month until the delinquent tax
shall have been fully paid, but not to exceed 36 months. This constitutes a
lien on the property, irrespective of its owner or possessor.

2O.8 The failure of SHFC to pay the RPT constitutes lien on the property,
delaying its disposal, or SHFC may even lose the property if the LGUs
concerned avail of the remedies by administrative action thru levy on real
property or by judicial action.

i. accumulation of interests and penalties;
ii. losing the property if LGU avails of remedies by

administrative action thru levy on real property or by judicial
action;

iii. delay in the consolidation of titles in the name of SHFC to
facilitate disposal; and
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20.9 We recommended that Management:

a. lmmediately pay the required RPT to avoid:



b. Fotlow-up status of the ongoing cases filed for speedy disposition
of the ProPerties.

20.10 Management commented that one of the priorities of the Trust

Administration Department is to update the payment of RPT on all AKPF
pro.jects.

20.11 There are still three projects that remain under the Due to LGUs account

with the following status:

20.l2ForProjectA,theattempttosecureassessmentonupdatedRPTwasnot
succes;ful made due to the issue on ownership The property was

ioreclosed by the LGU due to non-payment of RPT' The Notice of

O"tintuun"y of npt aut"A August 13, 2004 was sent by the Office of the

ProvincialTreasrrertotheianclowner,butnottoNHMFC,themortgagee'
NeitherwasNHMFCnotifiedofsaleatpublicauctionThus,theproperty
was foreclosed by the LGU without due noticetto the mortgagee NHMFC'

ThenegotiationwiththeGovernorofBataanforthebuybackoftheproperty
was uniertaken but did not prosper due to the ctaim of the Authority of the

Freeport Area of Bataan (AFAB).

2o.l3ForProjectB,ManagementhasstartedSecuringtherequirementsfor- 
"""e"".ent 

of RpT ii December 201g and filed the request for updated

assessment in January 2019 However, the assessment has not been

madeavailabledespiteconstantfollow-upsastheLGUiSstillValidatingthe
payments made by the developer in 2005.

20.14 Fot Project C, payment of RPT was held in abeyance pending the

resolution filed by the landowner on the case of buyback The case is now

pending for trial in court, despite their earnest efforts to negotiate a

compromise.

20.15 As a rejoinder, we stand by our recommendation that Management pays

the corresponding RPT and follow up the status of the on-going cases filed

by third party for the speedy disposition of the properties'

21. Status of Suspensions, Disallowances and Charges

21 .1 The total audit suspensions, disallowances and charges and settlements as

at December 31, 2018 are shown below:

Pa rticulars Balance,
111120'la

lssued
This Period
(January to
December

2018)

Seftlement This
period Balance,

(January to 1213112014
December 2018)

Notice of Suspension
(Ns)

Notices of Disallowance
(ND)

Notice of Charqe

1,506,583 71,167,31271,O30,478
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71,030,478

't,643,417



21.2 The NS issued pertains to the garnished peso time deposit with DBP

including bank charges enforced by an Urgent Exparte Motion from case

AC-973-RCMB-NCR LVA-024-01 titled SOHEAI vs. SHFC. The decision

from Court of Appeals was issued on July 21 , 20'17 requiring SOHEAI to
redeposit the amount to depository bank. The NS returned to ND under ND

No. 2017-O1-C|B TD (2016) issued on February 9, 2018 Appeal

Memorandum by SOHEAI for the said ND was submitted on April 25' 2018'

21.3 The ND issued for the payment of grocery subsidy, additional cash gift and
13th month pay are being settled through salary deduction with a balance of
P136,834.

l.
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PART IlI

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR
YEARS' AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

t



out of 91 audit recommendations for both sHFc and AKPF embodied in the cY 2017

Annual Audit Report, 47 were fully implemented, 17 were partially implemented, four were

reconsidered, 21 were not implemented and two are for implementation in cYs 2019 and

2020. out of the 21 not implemented recommendations, 17 were reiterated in this Report.

Details are presented below:

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTAT|ON OF PRIOR YEARS' AT}DIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

A. Social Hous!ng Finance Corporation

2017

1 . The Undistributed Collections (UC) in the
total amount of P374.503 million remain
unposted to Loan Installments Receivable
(LlR) due to the absence of a policy on the
proper and timely distribution of UC to the
appropriate individual ledgers of the member-
borrowers (lrilBs). Thus, the UC and the LIR
accounts were overstated and understated,
respectively, by the same amount. Moreover,
the General Ledger (GL) or controlling account
for UC was not reconciled with the Subsidiary
Ledger (SL) balances, resulting in a variance of
P174.797 million, or 53 per cent of the GL
balance. Both the over/understatement and
variance affect the fair presentation of the
account balances in the financial statements,
contrary to paragraph 15 of Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1 .

We reiterated our prior years' audit
recommendations that Management:

a. Submit a work breakdown schedule to
post and allocate UC for CY 2017 by at least:

i. 65 per cent of the UC bY CY 2018
ii. 35 per cent ofthe UC by CY 2019

b. Reconcile the variances between SL and
GL balances by at least:

65 per cent of the variance by CY
2018
35 per cent of the variance by CY
2019

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 1

Part ll of this Report.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 1 ,

Part ll of this Report.

I.
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

c. Oblige the CAs to remit amortizations of
IVIBs with the accompanying Remittance
Report and Abstract of Collection reflecting the
individual monthly payments by the IVIBs in
accordance with the Collection Agreement;

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 1,
Part ll of this Report.

e. Require the NHI\/FC to submit to database
listing of MBs relative to the transferred
accounts amounting to P83.570 million; and

f. Formulate policy on the number of days
within which to distribute/allocate payments
made by MBs to avoid the accumulation of UC.

2. Assets of SHFC amounting to P21.031
billion were not stated at their fair value due to
absence of policy on the assessment,
measurement and recording of impairment
losses as required under PAS 36 and 39 for CY
2017, thus casting doubt on the reliability and
valuation of the corporate assets.

We recommended that Management formulate
policy/guidelines on the assessment,
measurement and recording of impairment
losses of its recorded assets as required under
PAS 36 and 39 for CY 2017.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 1

Part ll of this Report.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 1

Part ll of this Report.

Partially implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 2,
Part ll of this Report.

3. CIVIP accounts totaling P8B.1 54 million
transferred by the NHIVIFC without the
corresponding supporting documents and 638
accounts with negative balances amounting to
P8.818 million cast doubts on the accuracy of
the Insurance Receivable - MBs account
balance of P295.3A2 million under the CMP,
contrary to paragraph 15 of PAS 1 .

We recommended that [Vianagement:

a. Analyze and reconcile the accounts with Partially implemented
Iapsed MRI premiums and immediately apply

I

d- Require the lnformation Systems Not implemented
Department (lSD) to enhance the database to
include the Express Lane Projects, HDH Reiterated under Observation No. 1,

Projects, Remedial Accounts and all other Part ll of this Report.
accounts not yet in the database;

112



Observations and Recommendations

the negative balances to future periods o
insurance coverage or to the loan balances or
refund to the MBs if loan is already fully paid;
and

b. Strictly adhere to Corporate Circular No
CNIP-18 and SHFC Office Order No. 08-01 37.

4. Funds amounting to P350 million
transferred by the DILG to SHFC, sourced from
the 2015 General Appropriations, remain
unutilized since the time it was received on
September 28, 2016 due to the non-execution
of Trust Agreement as required in the
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), contrary to
Executive Order (EO) No. 292 on Special
Fiduciary and Trust Funds, thus defeating the
purpose of providing decent and safer housing
sites to primarily benefit lSFs living in
waterways and danger zones within ltiletro
Ivlanila. [Vloreover, the fund is being invested in
high yield savings with interests earned
amounting to P1.697 million which was not
remitted to the National Treasury as required
under Section 4 of the General Provisions of
the General Appropriations Act (GAA) for FY
2017, Section 65 (1) of Presidential Decree No.
1445 and Section 4.1 of DBM-DOF-COA Joint
Circular No. 9-B'1, thus depriving the national
government of the income.

We recommended that Management:

a. Return the funds which remain unutilized
since the time it was received in September

The Head of Finance and
Comptrollership Department (FCD)
wrote a letter to NHMFC in November
2015, but the reply of NHMFC insisted
that all documents had already been
forwarded to SHFC.

f

Management has proposed to ITCD
the inclusion of these accounts for
one time reconciliation through the
Operation Support lnformation
System (OSIS) and once included,
the necessary adjustment will be
effected before the end of CY 2019.

t.

Partially implemented

FCD is in the process of completing
the working papers regarding the one-
time reconciliation using the OSIS
system.

Fully implemented

1r1
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Observatio s al)d Recornmendations Actions Taken

Zola or coordinate with the DILG on the
execution of TA to initiate the immediate
implementation of the Project; and

D. Remit immediately to the BTr the interests
earned amounting to P1'697 million from the

savings account of the Trust Fund.

5. MCR - Past Due account balance per GL
of P2.854 billion for lhe 27,257 accounts
differed by P1 .533 billion or 54 per cent against

the SL balances totaling to P1.321 billion'
contrary to Section 111 of PD No' 1445 and

Paragraph 15 of PAS 1 , thus, casting doubt on
the iccuracy and reliability of the account'
Moreover, the MCR - Past Due account has

remained past due and uncollected for a period

ranging from four months to more than ten
yeais and without a single payment after take

out.

a. We reiterated our prior years' audit

recommendation and Management agreed to
reconcile and adjust the MCR-Past Due

account by at least:

. 30 per cent bY 2018.

. 30 per cent bY 2019.
r 40 per cent bY 2020.

Partially implemented

llanagement is still in the process of
reconciliation and the corresponding
adjustment will follow after
reconciliation.

The 8,560 MBs delinquent accounts
were transferred to Remedial
Accounts wherein the accounts have
been given priority by the GSATs until
the accounts become active.

Fully implemented

t.

b. Monitor and issue demand letters to the Fully implemented

tVlBs with past due accounts who have not
availed any plan of payment offered by the
SHFC:

c. Offer restructuring ptan of payment to Fully implemented

ensure prompt collection to bring the account to
its current statusi

d. Substitute delinquent accounts with new
borrowers who have the capacity to pay; and

e. Foreclose the delinquent accounts
specially those of more than ten years and
without a single payment after take out, after
exhausting all remedies, and consolidate in the
name of SHFC as prescribed under R.A. 9507.

Fully implemented

Partially implemented
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

6. A High-Density Housing (HDH) proiect
amounting lo P414.049 million was approved
by the Board and payment amounting to
P100.329 million was made despite Greater
Metro lvlanila Area (GMMA) Hazard lttlap result
that the lot is susceptible to moderate flooding,
within the tsunami inundated area, susceptible
to moderate liquefaction, thereby not suitable
for relocation contrary to EO No. 272 and
Corporate Circular No. 13-026.

We recommended that Nlanagement:

a. Submit the result of soil testing of the Fully implemented
subject property to ensure the safety of
constructing the 18 three-storey housing
structuresi

b. lf the result of the test is not favorable for
the construction for the housing unit, require the
refund of the P100.329 million;

c. lf the result is favorable, demand
contractor to complete the project; and

As of Decembet 31, 2018, out of the
restructured accounts, 2,325 MBs
availed of the restructuring program
and 224 availed of the one-year
updating.

Foreclosure is the last resort to be
irnplemented by SHFC. As of
December 31, 2018, three projects
have been foreclosed and already in
the process of securing Certificate of
Sale.

Reconsidered

Boring testing was conducted in
January 2019 by Universal Testing
Laboratory and lnspection certifying
that the property is suitable for
housing but with certain conditions,
such as, no construction of deep wells
and no planting of trees.

the Partiallyimplemented

Management has submitted to the
President for approval and
presentation to the Board the Terms
of Reference (TOR) for the conduct of

t.
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

Environmental lmpact Assessment
(Air Pollution Test).

d. Prospectively, before approval of the
project, ensure that the project sites are
suitabte for housing projects and safe for the
IVIBs who will be dwelling on the property.

7 . of the total amortizations of P2.590 million
due from 109 MBs of the Cooperative for an
HDH Project, only the amount of P1 .221 million
was remitted by the Cooperative or a

remittance efficiency rale ol 47 per cent The
check collection for the monthly amortizations
amounting to P584,882 remitted by the
Cooperative for the said project was
dishonored by the bank as this was Drawn
Against Insufflcient Funds (DAIF) of which only
P213,838 (net of interest and penalties) was
replaced by cash as of Decembet 31,2417'
resulting in the poor recovery of the corporate
investment in housing and the existence of past

due accounts of the lVIBs.

We recommended that Management

a. Demand from the Chairman or from the
representative of the Cooperatlve assigned as
coliecting officer the immediate restitution of
cash amounting to P584,882 to replace the
dishonored check:

b. Demand for the collection and remittance
of P1 .368 Million representing the amortization
due as of December 31 , 2017 ,

Fully implemented

Fully implemented

Fully implemented

c. Never accept private checks from the Fully implemented
Cooperative for succeeding amortization
payments, except for bank certified check;

d. Investigate and file appropriate charges Fully implemented
against the Cooperative Chairman or its
representative for the unremitted collections;

e. Cancel the Collection Agreement with the Fully implemented
Cooperative and require the MBs to pay their
monthly amortizations directly to SHFC,
pursuant to the provisions of the Collection
Agreement with the Cooperative; and
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

f. Require all Chairmen or all representatives Fully implemented

of the Community Associations assigned as

collecting officer of HDH projects to post Surety

Bond.

8. The 546 MBs have not moved-in yet to the

completed and accepted HDH Project due to
non-avallability of water supply system,
contrary to Section 21 of RA No. 7279 and

Section 14 of HDH Circular No- 14-002,
resulting in the poor or even non-recovery of

the coiporate investment in the project

amounting lo P214.016 million and the non-

attainment ofthe objectives ofthe program 
.

We recommended that Management-

a. Require the HOA to make representation
with the Local Government Unit of Bulacan to
provide water connections for HOA housing

units or construct an alternative water supply,

such as installation of deep well or water
rationing pending the connection to the water
district;

b. Demand from the HOA the collection of
monthly amortizations from its [rIBs and
remittance of the same to SHFC' as the COCA
has already been issued by the Associatlon;

c. Require the MBs, through their HOA, to
move-in so as to prevent other organization/lSF
from illegally occupying the completed housing
project;

d. Prospectively, strictly require the HOA to
submit certification or approval from
utillty/service agencies concerned for the
availability of basic utilities/services required of
the project; and

e. Prospectively, strictly instruct the HOA to
accept only housing projects that are fully
completed in accordance with the plans and
conditions on the site development and building
construction.

Fully implemented

Fully implemented

Fully implemented

Fully implemented

Fully implemented
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

9. Payment amounting to P11.330 million,
equivalent to 20 per cent of the total acquisition
cost of P56.652 million for the land, which TCTs
are not free from liens/encumbrances, is

contrary to Section 6 of Corporate Circular No.

13-026 on the HDH Project Guidelines, thus,
exposing SHFC to the risk of the non-recovery
of its financial exposure to the project or loss of
corporate funds.

We recommended that Management

a. Coordinate with the DOF for the immediate Fully implemented
cancellation and issuance of the new title in

favor of SHFC: I

b. Request DOF to return the original TCTs Fully implemented
borrowed a year ago pending the cancellation
of encumbrance; and

c. Strictly comply with Section 6 of Corporate
Circular No. 13-026 on HDH Guidelines,
specifically on land acquisition free from liens
and encumbrances.

Fully implemented

10. Double availment and inconsistencies and
incomplete information were noted in the
database/masterlist of MBs who availed under
the CMP and HDH Projects, contrary to Section
16 (c) of RA No. 7279 and Section 4 (6) of PD
No. '1445 and Corporate Circular No. HDH 14-
001, Series of 1989. Thus, the authenticity of
the intended rightful I\/Bs of the projects is

doubtful, which may result in the non-
attainment of the ob.jectives of the CI\ilP and
HDH Projects.

We recommended that lrlanagement:

a. Require the CA to ensure submission of Fully implemented
complete and accurate personal information of
lvlBs:

b. Require the SHFC department in charge to
validate and correct the deficiencies noted in

the database to establish authenticity of the
intended rightful MBs of the CIvIP and HDH
Projects,

Fully implemented

118



Observations and Recornmendations Actions Taken

c. Provide/emphasizeProvision in the LAs on Fully implemented
the imposition of sanctions/penalties for [/Bs
found to have double avaiiments of any other
housing project;

d. Require from member-applicants the
submission of Certificate of No Availment of
Housing UnivProject from any Shelter
Agencies to prevent double availment of the
housing units; and

e. We reiterate our prioi' year's audit
recommendation to coordinate with HUDCC for
the establishment of the database for all
housing agencies to avoid double availment.

Partially implemented

The enhancement of the Alphalist of
HUDCC minimized and prevented
double availments.

Partially implemented

The HUDCC, with the assistance of
the DOST,r.is currently in the process
of developing/enhancing the system
wherein SHFC has participated in the
related trainings.

11. Capital Gains and Documentary Stamp
Taxes amounting to P38.961 million for the
acquisition of lands intended for the HDH
Projects under the Usufruct Agreement were
pard in advance by SHFC in favor of the
landowners and were recouped on the 20 per
cent payment instead of the 80 per cent,
contrary to Sectlon 4 (1) of PD No. 1445 and
Section 7 of Corporate Circular HDH No. 14-
005, thus, depriving the SHFC the immediate
use of the funds for other HDH projects that
could have benefited more HOA MBs.

We recommended and ftlanagement agreed to Fully implemented
revisit and amend the policy on land acquisition
for the HDH projects to deduct the mandatory
tax obligations of the landowners from the initial
payment of 80 per cent of the acquisition cost.

12. No coverage for Mortgage Redemption
lnsurance (t\/Rl) and Fire and Allied Peril
lnsurance (FAPI) was provided on the '13

completed and accepted HDH and 87 CAs of
CMP projects with a total cost P1.375 billion,
contrary to HDH Corporate Circular Nos. 16-
008, 1 5-007 and 14-003 and Corporate Circular
No. CIt/lP-18 and SHFC Office Order No. 08-
0137. Thus, 3,486 MBs may be deprived of the
benefit of having fully paid housing loans in
case of death or occurrence of fire and allied
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

perils and posing riskon the non-recovery of
SHFC's investment into housing

We recommendeci that Management

a. Expedite the enrollment of the 2,932 MBs
for HDH and 87 HOAs/CAs MBs occupying the
1 O0 per cent completed and accepted CMP and

HDH projects for both the life and non-life
insurance coverage; and

b. Adhere strictly to the provisions of CMP
and HDH Corporate Circulars on the MRI/FAPI
insurance coverage, on the completed and
accepted projects by the HOAJCA to protect the
interest of the Corporation.

Fully implemented

13. Real Estate f\Iortgages (REM) in favor of
SHFC were not annotated on 62 TCTs held as
collateral to secure the CMP Loans while 33
TCTS were still in the name of the landowners,
contrary to the Loan Agreement, Corporate
Circular Nos. CI/P-018 and HDH 14-005 and
41 TCTs as collateral to HDH loans were not
accounted for during the physical count, thus,
exposing SHFC to unprotected rights against
third party claimants, priority in property
disposal or non-payment of loans.

We recommended that Management:

a. Strictly adhere to the provisions of Fully implemented
Corporate Circular No. CIVIP-18, HDH 04-005
and Loan Agreement;

b. Require the CAs to transfer the TCTs in
their name, or individualized TCTs to MBs and
effect annotation of REM in favor of SHFC for
the total amount of loan by the HOAs;

Fully implemented

Partially implemented

A demand letter for the PaYment of
one-year insurance Premium was
sent to the President of SMV HOA.

Management is gathering the
documents for the enrollment of the
Pascualer HOA MBs and will be
insured bylthe end of April 2019 white
ALPAS 'l was not insured due to the
request of moratorium due to water
problems.
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

c. Ensure that all original TCTs held as Fully implemented
collaterals are entrusted to the DCCD: and

d. Require that borrowed TCTS should be Fully implemented
accompanied by duly approved Mortgage
Withdrawal Form.

14. Special Counsel/Legal Service Allowance
amounting to P134,000 for CY 2017 was paid
directly to five lawyers assigned for SHFC,
instead of remitting to the Office of the
Government Corporate Council (OGCC), the
mother agency of the recipient-lawyers, for
monitoring purposes on the allowable limitation
of the total extra or additional compensation as
required under COA Circular No. 85-25E.

We recommended and Management agreed to
submit a Notice of Payment and Monthly
Report of the extra compensation to OGCC for
monitoring purposes.

Fully implemented

15. The TVIOA for the Group l\Iortgage
Redemption lnsurance (MRl) of loan borrowers
with the insurance provider was automatically
renewed for a period ol 12 years without the
benefit of public bidding, contrary to RA No.
9184, otherwise known as the Government
Procurement Reform Act, thus, defeating the
principles of transparency, accountability,
equity, efficiency, and economy.

We recommended that l\4anagement strictly
comply with the provision of RA No. 9184 in the
conduct of public bidding for the provisions of
the Group lvlRl to loan borrowers.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. '10,

Part Il of this Report.

16. The Chattel fvlortgage Agreements (CIVIA)
entered into by and between the SHFC and the
1 1 CAs with approved loans in the aggregate
amount of P4.016 billion are contrary to the
Chattel Mortgage Law (Act No. 1508), Article
2125 of the Civil Code of Philippines and
relevant jurisprudence decided by the Supreme
Court (SC), thus, the interest of the SHFC is put
to risk against third party claimants in case of
default by the MBs and the alienation or
disposal of the housing units.
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Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

We recommended that Managemen

a. Exercise its right to demanci the execution
and the recording of the Cl/A with the RD in

which the mortgage is formalized in order to
protect its interest;

b. Properly attribute GAD-related
activities/expenses in the GAD planning and
budget phase to maximize the budget allocated
for GAD programs, activities and projects in

b Revisit the conditions of the Ctt4A and
revise to conform with the Chattel Mortgage
Law and relevant jurisprudence; and

Fully implemented

c. Review its guidelines with respect to the Fully implemented
security of the loan since the collateral provided
was not yet in existence at the time of the
execution of the mortgage.

17. The SHFC has allocated only P7.060
million for its Gender and Development (GAD)
programs, activities and projects (PAPS) or two
percent of the approved Corporate Operating
Budget (COB), contrary to the Philippine
Commission for Women-National Economic
and Development Authority - Department of
Budget and Management (PCW-NEDA-DBIM)
Joint Circular 2012-01 . ft/loreover, only P2 081

million or 29 per cent of the allocated amount,
was actually utilized, thus reducing the
opportunity of SHFC women and other
concerned parties to participate and be
benefited by the GAD programs, activities and
projects.

We recommended that lvlanagement

a. Conform strictly with the provisions of
Section 6 of the PCW-NEDA-DBIVI Joint
Circular No. 2012-01 on the costing and
allocation of the GAD budget; and

Not implemented

Partially implemented

Real Property tax for SMV amounting
to P646,740 has already been Paid on
December 12, 2018. The annotation
process by Management was stopped
due to the issue on non-issuance of
Tax Clearance by the BIR due to tax
exemption issue.

Reiterated under Observation No. 15,
Part ll of this Report.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 15,
Part ll of this Report.
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observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

accordance with
Circular 2012-01.

2016

PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint

18. Advances from Member Borrowers (MBs)

amounting to P216 million as of December 31 ,

2016 are not supported with schedules and not

reconciled with individual Subsidiary Ledger of

MBs, contrary to Section 1 1 1 of PD 1445 and
Paragraph 15 of PAS 1, thus, casting doubt on

the iellability and fair presentation of the
account balance and not beneficial to MBs'

We recommended that IVlanagement:

a. Prepare the schedute supporting the

Advances from Borrowers account to properly

monitor and expedite the reconciliation;

b. Determine individuatly the property being

paid for, to identify the It/B-payor and record

unposted payments to MBs individual ledgers;

c. Update the existing system to ensure that

all excess payments are posted and applied to

their individual outstanding obligations; and

d. Adjust Receivable account and the related

accounts accordinglY.

19. Thirty-one Transfer Certificate of Titte

(TCTs) under Usufruct Agreement of HDH lot

acquisition project valued at P392 284 million
are stilt not transferred in the name of SHFC,
thus, contrary to Section 6 of Corporate Circular
No. 14-005 series of 2014. Likewise, TCT on

the lot acquisition through SHFC Re-Financing
Program of an LGU, amounting to P16.359
miltion was not transferred in the name of the
CA and with no annotation of SHFC t\ilortgage
while full payment was already made, contrary

t.

Fully implemented

Partially implemented

Management is still in the process of
reconciliation. The OSIS had already
been rolled out bY lSD, however,
there are reports which cannot be
generated by the sYstem such as the
aging of the Accounts, which is

needed by the FCD for the one-time
reconciliation of the account.

Fully implemented

Not implemented
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to Section 5 of the IRR 2014-0 03, thus, may
result to non-recovery/loss of fund in case of a
third party claimant.

We recommended that tt4anagement expedite
the transfer of the subject TCTs in the name of
SHFC for Usufruct and in the name of CA for
the refinanced amount and annotate the same
in the name of SHFC in compliance with
Corporate Circular HDH No. 14-005 series of
2014 and IRR 2014-003.

20. A member of the Board of Directors whose
appointment ended on December 31 , 2016 and
for re-appointment was allowed to avail the
SHFC Vehicle Acquisition Assistance Program
which is contrary to Sections 8(d) and 13(b) of
EO No. 24 dated February 10, 2011 and COA
Circular 2012-003 dated October 29, 2012,
constituting irregular disbursements, thus, not
beneficial to the interest of the government.

We recommended that l\rlanagement

a. Require the members of the Board who
availed SHFC Vehicle Acquisition Assistance
Program No. 169, Series of 2009, to refund the
amount of car loan granted to conform with the
provisions of Section 8(d) of E.O. No. 24,
otherwise, the same will be disallowed in audit;

b. Request the Board of Directors to pass
amendments on SHFC Board Resolution no.
169, series of 2009 adopting or reiterating the
provisions contained in EO No.24 governing
the compensation and reimbursable expenses
of the members of the Board of
Directors/Trustees; and

c. Require the annotation of OR and CR by
the RD to ensure the recovery of its loan
exposure and cancel the same upon full
payment of the loan.

Partially implemented

Only two projects were not transferred
in the name of SHFC for the following
reasons:

a HOA A - due to encroachment
issue; and

b. HOA B - between the landowner
and HOA on who will assume the
payment of capital gains tax.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 7,
Part ll of this Report.

Reconsidered

This is due to the issuance of GCG
MC No.2016-01 dated May 10,2016
which provides that the Board of
Directors are only entitled to per
diems and performance based
incentives.

Fully implemented
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20'15

21 . Amortization/payments required under the
pertinent provisions of the IRR for the SHFC
Vehicle Acquisition Assistance (SVAA)
Program by the Officers-Availees were not
monitored resulting in the delay of collection
and non-recovery of the Ioan exposures.
Further, availment of vehicles by the members
of the Board of Directors under the Program is
contrary to Sections 8(d) and 13(b) of EO No.
24 daled February 10 , 2011 .

We recommended that Management

a. Exercise immediately the remedies
provided under the SHFC Board Resolution
No. 1 69 on the Officer-Availee who are already
in default of his/her loan amortization;

b. Require the two members of the Board of
Directors to refund the amount of P1 .825 million
to comply with the provisions of Section 8(d) of
EO No. 24; and

c. Request the Board of Directors to pass
amendments on SHFC Board Resolution No.
169, series of 2009 adopting or reiterating the
provisions contained in EO No. 24 governing
the compensation and reimbursable expenses
of the members of the Board of
Directors/Trustees.

t.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 7,
Part ll of this Report.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 7,
Part ll of this Report.

Reconsidered

Due to issuance of GCG MC No.
2016-01 dated May 10, 2016 which
provides that the Board of Directors
are only entitled to per diems and
performance-based incentives.

2013

22. The absence of policy and/or guidelines on
the effective administration of
collection/recovery strategies on the said
accounts and the insutficiency of measures
initiated/undertaken by Management to Tecover
the assets in the total amount of P3.422 blllion
transferred from NHMFC in 2005 expose the
SHFC to non-recovery of the corporate funds.
Payments are not posted to the respective
IVIBs' loan ledger rendering the balance of
individual accounts inaccurate.

We recommended that lt/lanagement, through Fully implemented
the Accounting and Legal Departments, to
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formulate policy and/or guidelines on the
effective administration of collection/recovery
strategies for past due and items in litigation
accounts for approval of the Board and
acceterate the immediate implementation of the
System to determine the actual outstanding
principal balance based on the MBs' loan
ledgers.

23. The variance of P999.70 million between
the balances of Assets held in Trust- NHMFC
and Trust liabilities - NHtviFC casts doubt on
the reliability of the account balances and
contrary to Section 111 of PD No, 1445 and the
principles of fair presentation of the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting.

Partially implemented

The Operation Support lnformation
System (OSIS) for individual
ledgering of MB accounts was already
rolled out in March 2019 and these
accounts are included in the one{ime
reconciliation,

24. CMP loans amounting to P1.328 mililon
were granted twice to 24 same beneflciaries
with take-out dates from 2007 to 2012, conta(y
to Section 6.2.2 ol SHFC Corporate Circular
No. 11-017 series of 2011, thus constitutes
irregular transaction as defined under COA
Circular 2012-003 (3.1) dated October 29,
2012.

a. Require the Accreditation Department to
exercise due care in the evaluation of eligibility
requirements of applicants and in the
processing of the CIVIP loan applications to
ensure attainment of the objective of the
Program and compliance with its implementing
rules and regulation;

Fully implemented

b. lnstruct the lnformation System Fully implemented
Department, in close coordination with the
Asset lvlanagement Department, to

126

We recommended that Management require
the Accounting Department to review and
reconcile the difference of P999.70 million
between the Assets held in trust-NHI\IFC and
prepare the necessary adjusting entries to
correct the variance noted.

i.

We recommended that [\,4anagement.
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immediately design, develop and install an
lnquiry or Screening Application Program;

c. lnvestigate and file appropriate charges
against the officers and employees
responsible/liable or determined to be liable for
the granting of double CMP loans to MBs.
lmpose sanctions to the beneficiaries in
accordance with Section 15.3 of SHFC
Corporate Circular No. 2011-017; and

d. lmmediately demand the full payment of
the second loans granted to subject
beneficiaries and rescind the second lease
purchase agreement for violation of the terms
and condltions of the contract.

Not implemented

Partially implemented

It/lBs found to have double availments.
are autometically substituted.

25. Absence of supporting documents to
substantiate the Guaranty deposits payable in
the amount of P702,888 received from the
NHMFC in 2005 casts doubt on the accuracy
and validity of the account balance.

We recommended that lvlanagement require
the Accounting Department to submit the
documents that will substantiate the guaranty
deposits payable of P702,888 and prepare
adjusting entries, where necessary.

26. The absence of validation procedures
between the Abstract of Collections prepared
by the CAs and the actual money on hand prior
to receipt of collections resulted in
discrepancies and delay in the posting of
collections to the member-beneficiaries
subsidiary ledgers.

We recommended that Management transfer
the input data process or data encoding of the
CA's Abstract of Collections (AOCs) from the
Finance and Controllership Department to
Account Management Department (AI\ID) to
ensure the data accuracy, completeness and
validity of the Abstract of Collections and
prevent erroneous or invalid AOCs. Provide a
module at the regional/satellite offices with

Partially implemented

This account is included in the one-
time reconciliation using the OSIS
individual ledgering of [t/Bs which was
rolled out in March 2019.

Fully implemented
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sufficient control features for automatic or real-
time posting of collections to the member-
subsidiary ledgers.

27. There are lapses in management and
implementation of AKPF which are contrary to
the Trust Agreement entered into by and
between the NHMFC and the SHFC, resulting
in the following deficiencies that expose SHFC
to the non-recovery of loan exposure.

A total of 2O2 fCIs remain unaccounted and
undelivered by three developers who availed of
the Developmental Loan Projects in violation of
Section 3.02 of the Loan Agreement and Trust
Receipts, thus, posting the risk that the TCT/s
and Corporation loan exposure may not be
recovered.

Nine developers were able to avail of a loan
amounting to P134.50 million under AKPF
despite non-compliance with schedule of
completion for the land development and
housing construction, contrary to the Section 4

$.02) of the Memorandum of Agreement and
Section 2.02 of the Loan Agreement. Thus, a
very low percentage of development and the
return of investment on the loan exposure, after
19-21 years remains nil.

The existence of third-party claimants on the
property mortgaged for a Subdivision and the
foreclosed property of a Subdivision Pro.jects
cast doubts on the recovery of capital
exposures amounting to P22 million and P26
million, respectively, and on the legality of the
rights/ownership of the property.

A total of 726 TCTs of acquired properties with
loan amounting to P66 million were not
consolidated in the name of the NHMFC
notwithstanding the lapse of eight to 14 years
after the expiration of one-year redemption
period, thus, resulting in the delay in the
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disposal of asset and exposing the property to
further depreciation or deterioraiton.

We recommendeci that Management

a. Undertake immediate legal action to
secure/recover the financial exposure on the
above-mentioned projects and update this
office of the status of action taken considering
the period that lapsed;

b. lnitiate disposal of acquired properties to
prevent further deterioration and loss of funds;
and

c. Determine the persons liable for the
deficiencies noted and file appropriate
administrative action for failure to perform their
fu nctions.

28. The proceeds of the developmental loan
granted for the development of a subdivision
totalling to P30.500 million for the benefit of
project beneficiaries was not properly
implemented contrary to Section 4.02(a) of the
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between
the NHIVIFC and its proponent.

We recommended that Management

a. Conduct further investigation and inquiry
on the repod dated February 11, 2OOs
submitted by the Joint lnspection Team; and

b. Determine the person/s liable for the
deficiencies noted and file the appropriate
administrative and criminal action on their

Not implemented

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 19,
Part ll of this Report.

Not implemented

Partially implemented

The EVP met with the Technical
Support Ofiice (TSO), AKPF Team
and the lnternal Audit Group (lAD) on
I\ilarch 2019 and agreed to
reconstitute a Team headed by TSO,
IAD and AKPF to further conduct
investigation and validation on the
report made by the Joint lnspection
Team in February 2005.

Reconsidered

Already included in Finding No. 27,
Recommendation b.
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failure to perform their funclion, where
warranted

2014

29. There arc 127 missing Condominium
Certificates of Title (CCTs) with a total toan
value of P10.590 mi ion on the AKPF LR-past
due, contrary to Section 58 of PD No. 1445,
thus, casting doubt on the existence of the
corporate exposure.

We recommended that Management:

a. Determine the person/s liable for
missing CCTs; and

. the Fully implemented

b. Hold them administratively and criminally
liable for their fallure to perform their function.
Any additional cost that the Corporation would
incur for the reissuance of title shall be on their
account.

2013

30. The NHI\i\FCISHFC did not act on the
Notjce of Delinquent Real Property Taxes
issued by the Office of the Provincial Treasurer
of a concerned Local Government Unit on a
property valued at P22 million mortgaged as
collateral for a loan and impose the sanctions
on the borrower/accountable officials as
prescribed under the Loan Agreement. Thus,
the recovery of the Corporate exposure is
remote, doubtful and uncertain.

Fully implemented

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 20,
Part ll of this Report.

Not implemented

We recommended that IVlanagement:

a. Submit status of the actions taken by
Management for the recovery of the property;

b. lnvestigate and file appropriate charges
against the officers and employees
responsible/liable or determined to be liable for
failure to act on on the Notice of Delinquent
Real Property Taxes, leading to the failure of
the SHFC to recover its exposures, and

Reiterated under Observation No. 20,
Part Il of this Report.

130



Observations and Recommendations Actions Taken

c. Require all the persons liable to pay for the
amount of loan plus interest and penalties due
thereon and all the expenses incurred for the
recovery of the subject property.

31. Acquired assets account still included the
31 TCTs valued at P27.598 million already
covered by the Comprehensive Agrarian
Reform Program (CARP). A total of 1 ,409
TCTs of the acquired assets AKPF valued at
P89.653 million are not yet
transferred/registered in its name
notwithstanding the lapse of one to 14 years,
resulting in the delay on the disposition of the
properties and non-recovery of the loan
exposures.

32. AKPF developmental loans totaling
P97 .719 million remained non-performing from
2 years to 18 years but no foreclosure action
was initiated or more aggressive collection
measures adopted that could affect the
recovery of corporate exposure.

We recommended that lvlanagement initiate
foreclosure action or adopt more aggressive
collection measures, if warranted, on Iong
outstanding receivables in order to quickly
recover corporate exposure. Also, establish
guidelines on the disposition of non-performing
assets to prevent accumulation thereof.

Not implemented

Reiterated under Observation No. 20,
Part ll of this Report.

Partially implemented

Management's plan is to foreclose the
properties and eventually to dispose
all acquired assets. Presented below
is the status of the foreclosure on the
following projects:

a. Project A - the one-year
redemption period expired on
February 8, 2019, and they are
working on the requirements for
CGT/EWT computation for
issuance of Certif icate Authorizing
Registration (CAR);

131

We recommended that Management prioritize Not implemented
the transfer/registration of the 1,409 TCTs in
the name AKPF to facilitate disposal in the Reiterated under Observation No. .19,

event of sale because the properties cannot be Part ll of this Report.
disposed unless the TCTs are under the name
Of AKPF-SHFC.
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b. Project B - endorsed to Legal
Department on March 30, 2015,
however, awaiting for a resolution
of the case filed by GNP
Construction against SHFC
before the RTC assailing SHFC's
decision of disapproval of
requested waiver of interest prior
to filing of foreclosure. Hearing
was held on March 4, 2019,

e

2011

33. Ocular inspection on selected CMP take-
out projects revealed non-compliance by the
borrowers and community associations on
significant provisions of the guidelines for on-
site land acquisition.

We recommended that l\4anagement

a. Require the mem ber-beneficiaries of the
CA to terminate the subJease agreements to
conform to the terms and conditions of the
lease purchase agreement entered into by the
CA and the member beneficiaries;

Fully implemented

b. Require the CA to issue official receipts in Fully implemented
the acceptance of payments from member-
beneficiaries and keep up-to-date the
subsidiary ledgers of [t/lBs; and

c. lmpose sanctions provided under Section
1 0.2 of SHFC Circular No, 1 1-017 series of
2011 on member-beneficiaries who are
considered in default for violating the terms and
conditions of the purchase agreement.

Fully implemented

C Project C - endorsed to Legal
Department for legal advice.

d. Projedt D and E - in the process of
securing documents for CGT and
EWT; and

Project F - for CAR issuance and
computation of transfer tax.
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20'to

34. The remaining 50 per cent of loan
proceeds payable to 167 landowners had been
long outstanding ranging from one to 19 years
due to the delay in the transfer of title in the
name of the community associations thus, real
estate mortgage agreements and the deed of
assignments could not be annotated in the
TCTs. lt exposes the Corporation to the risk
that subject properties may be alienated to third
parties who are not properly notified of the Iien
or encumbrance on the real property with an
aggregate amount of P232.120 million.

We recommended that Management:

a. Enforce strictly the present policy of the
Corporation to undertake the remaining
documentation including the transfer of title in
the name of the community association and
annotation of real estate mortgage in favor of
SHFC in case transfer of title is not made within
the 90-day maximum period for transfer. The
related expenses to be incurred are to be
charged against the remaining balance of the
loan proceeds. Also, there must be rigid review
of the documents submitted before approval of
the initial release, and

b. Revisit, review and if necessary, amend
the present policy allowing only the partial
release/payment of the loan proceeds. No
release of loan proceeds is to be made prior to
the transfer of the title to the CA to protect the
interest of the Corporation.

i.

Fully implemented

Fully implemented

IJJ
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ABOT.KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31 ,2018 and 2017
(ln Philippine Peso)

Note 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

4
5

310,755,953
10,676,632

302,O23j23
7,398,005

321,432,585 309,421 ,128

Non-current assets
Receivables
Property and equipment, net
Other non-currenl assets

6

7

68,493,490
179,310

74,960,882
207 ,788

'178,534,790'180 869 876
249 542 576 253,703,460

TOTAL ASSETS 570,975,261 563,124,588

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
lnter-agency payables
Other current Iiabilities

8
o

19,867 ,277
1 ,234,',t07

10,885,399
129,57 5

21,101,384 11,014.974
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2',1,101,384 1 1 ,014,97 4

'10 549,873,877 552,109,614
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 570,975,261 563,124,588

The Notes on pages 138 to 156 form part of these financial statements.
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ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND

SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CoRPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(ln Philippine Peso)

Note 2018 2017

INCOME
Service and business income 11 9,923,915 6,675,009

923,915 6 075 009

EXPENSES
Personnel services
Maintenance and other operating expenses
Financial exPenses

12

13
14
'15

7,478,727
5,354,1',l1

17 ,732
28,478

6,057,015
3,030,637

229,O7 5

277 ,318Non-cash expenses
12,879,048 9,594,045

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Other non-operating income 16

(2,955,13s)
16,468

(2,919,036)
15,820

(2,s38,665) (2,9O3,216)

NET TNCOME(LOSS) (2,938,665) (2,903,216)

The Notes on pages 1 38 to 156 form part of these financial statements

135



ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Years Ended Decembet 31 , 2018 and 2017

(ln Philippine Peso)

Note Total

Balance at December 31, 2015
Net loss

555,012,830
(2,903,216)

Balance at December 31, 2016 552,109,614

Balance at December 3'l , 2017
Net loss

552,109,614
(2,938,665)

702,928Retained earnin S

Balance at December 31, 2018
11

11 549,A73,877

The Notes on pages 138 to '1 56 form part of lhese financial statements
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ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND

SOCI,AL HOUSING FINANcE CoRPoRATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS

S-r ATEMENTS OF CA$H FLOV'jS

For the Years Ended December 31 
' 
2018 and 2017

(ln PhiliPPine Peso)

Note 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVTTIES

lnslatlment sales receivable, current

lnterest income received

Refund of cash advance

iviiscellaneous income/oiher income

Payment of Personal services

Payment of trustee fee

Fayment of iealt, tax
Payment of cash advance

Payment of oPerating expenses

{,6A4,779
2,077,253

301,563

(765,440)
(210,311)

?o17

8,040,'181
5,446,838

177 ,632
(3,810,150)

Q2e,o7s)
(4,272,7 i8)

(541,580)
(888,210)

rnent of foreclcsur
8,732,830 2,250,338

Net cash Provided by operatinq activities

CASH FI_OWS FROM INVESTING A-CT!V!T!ES

Capitalized cost
uipmentAcquisition of prope rtv. plant and eq

Net cash Provided investin activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EAUIVALENTS
of the vear

8,732,830
302,023,123

2,250,338
299,772,785

Cash and cash equivalents at begrn nlnq

ouvet-erurs aiENo or Yr,qn 4 310,755,953 302,O23,123cASH AND CASH E

The Notes on pages 138 to 156 form part ofthese financial statements
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ABOT-KAYA PABAHAY FUND
SOCIAL HOUSING FINANGE CORPORATION (as Trustee)

AMORTIZATION SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENTAL FINANCING COMPONENTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Abot-Kaya Pabahay Fund (AKPF) was created under Republic Act (RA) No. 6846
under the trusteeship of the National Home lVlortgage Finance Corporation (NHMFC) and
was amended under RA No. 7835. The Fund shall be used exclusively for enhancing the
affordability of low-cost housing by low income families thru the amortization support
component and by providing developmental financing for low-cost housing projects.

ln October 2005, the Amortization Support and Developmental Financing (ASDFC)
component of AKPF was transferred to the Social Housing Firiance Corporation (SHFC),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the NHMFC created by virtue of Executive Order (EO) No.
272 which was signed and approved by the President of the Republic of the Philippines
on January 20,2004.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The recording of the Fund's financial transactions is centralized in the Finance and
Controllership Department. The Fund submits a monthly summary of transactions duly
reviewed, certified and approved by its responsible officers to the Finance and
Controllership Department for.journal entry voucher preparation and recording in the
books of accounts.

a Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance
with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement
bases specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and
expense.

SHFC has deferred adoption of PFRS g as it intends to hire a consultant to
guide its Finance and Compirollership Department in formulating
policies/guidelines for the assessment, classification, measurement and
recognition of financial instruments, to include impairment losses.

In addition, the Commission on Audit resolved, under COA Resolution No.
2019 - 006 dated fvlarch 27 ,2019, that all Government Corporations (GCs)
classified as Government Business Enterprises (GBEs) that have not taken
into consideration the early application of the provisions of PFRS 9 shall
mandatorily apply the provisions of PFRS effective January 1 ,2019.
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b. Presentation of Financial Sfalernerts

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in accordance with philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1 , Presentation of Financiat Statements. The
Fund presents all items of income and expenses in a single statement of
income and expenses.

c

These financial statements are presented in philippine peso, the Fund,s
functional and presentation currency.

2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

a. Effective in 2018 that are relevant to the AKPF.

(i) PFRS I (2014), Financial lnstruments. Thid.new standard on financial
instruments replaces PAS 39, Financial lnstruments: Classification and
Measurement, and PFRS I (2009, 2010 and 2013 versions). This
standard contains, among others, the following:

Three principal classification categories for flnancial assets based
on the business model on how an entity is managing its financial
instruments;

An expected credit loss (ECL) model in determining impairment of
all financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL), which generally depends on whether thlre has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a
financial asset; and,

. A new model on hedge accounting that provides significant
improvements principally by aligning hedge accounting more
closely with the risk management activities undertaken by entities
when hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures.

ln accordance with the financial asset classification principle of pFRS
I (2014), a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost
if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect the contractual cash flows that
represent solely payments of principal and interest (Sppl) on the
principal outstanding. Moreover, a financial asset is classified and
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it meets the SPPI criterion and is held in a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets. All other financial assets are measured
at FWPL.

139



ln addition, PFRS I (2014) allows entities to make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
instrument that is not held for trading in other comprehensive income.
The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are
financial assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider
whether or not they are closely related, and, in most arrangements,
does not require separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements
which include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities,
with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The amendment also
requires changes in the fair: value of an entity's own debt instruments
caused by changes in its own credit quality to be recognized in other
comprehensive income rather than in profit or loss.

(ii) PAS 40 (Amendment), lnvestment Propefty - Reclassification to and
from investment property. The amendmertt states that an entity shall
transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only
when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use occurs if
a property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property. A change in management's intentions for the use of a
property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use. The
amendment provided a non-exhaustive list of examples constituting
change in use.

b- Effective in 2018 that are not relevant to the AK?F.

The following new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to
existing standards are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 but are not relevant to the AKpF,s financijl
statements:

(i) PAS 28, lnvestment in Associates (Amendments) - Clarification on
Fair Value through Profit or Loss Classification (effective from January
1, 2018). The amendments clarify that the option for venture capital
organization, mutual funds and other similar entities to elect the fair
v_alue through profit or loss classification in measuring investments in
associates and joint ventures shall be made at initial recognition,
separately for each associate or joint venture.

(ii) PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers (effective from
January 1, 2018). This standard will replace pAS 18, Revenue, and
PAS 1 1 , Construction Contracts, the related lnterpretations on revenue
recognltion: lnternational Financial Reporting lnterpretations
Committee (lFRtC) 13, Customer Loyatty programmes, ipptc tS,
Agreement for the Construction of Reat Estate, IFRIC 19, Transfers of
Assels from Customers and Standing lnterpretations Committee 31,
Revenue - Bafter Transactions lnvolving Adveftising Seryrces. Thls
new standard establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
when to recognize revenue and how much revenue to recognize. Th6
core principle in the said framework is for an entity to recognize

:.j I
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C.

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the
customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(iii) IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
- lnterpretation on Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration (effective from January 1, 2018). The interpretation
provides more detailed guidance on how to account for transactions
that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a
foreign currency. The lnterpretation states that the date of the
transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the
date of initial recognition of the non-monetary asset (arising from
advance payment) or liability (arising from advance receipt). lf there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is

established for each payment or receipt.

(iv) PFRS 2, Share-based Payments (Amendments) - clarification to the
accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that
include a performance condition, the classification of share-based
payment transactions with net settlement features, and the accounting
for modifications of share-based payment transactions form cash-
settled to equity-settled. (effective from January 1, 2018).

(v) PFRS 4, lnsurance Contracts (Amendments) - Applying PFRS 9,

Financial lnstruments with PFRS 4, lnsurance Contracts - The
amendments give all . insurers the option to recognize in other
comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that
could arise when PFRS 9, Financial lnstruments is applied before
implementing PFRS 17, lnsurance Contracts ('the overlay approach').
AIso, entities whose activities are predominantly connected witn
insurance are given an optional temporary exemption (until 2021) from
applying PFRS 9. Thus, continuing to apply PAS 39, Financial
lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement instead ('the deferral
approach').

(vi) Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards - Deletion of Short{erm Exemptions for First-time
Adopters - The amendment is part of the Annual lmprovements to
PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle and deleted the short-term exemptions in
paragraph E3-E7 of PFRS 1, because it has now served its intended
purpose.

Effective subsequent to 2018 but not adopted early

The following are the new standards that were issued but are not yet
effective as at December 31, 2018. The SHFC intends to adopt the
applicable issuances when these become effective.
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(i) PFRS 16, Leases (new) - The new standard will eventually replace
PAS 17, Leases.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases "on-balance sheet" by
recognizing a "right of use" asset and a lease Iiability. The lease liability
is initially measured as the present value of future lease payments. For
this purpose, Iease payments include fixed, non-cancellable payments
for lease elements, amounts due under residual value guarantees,
certain types of contingent payments and amounts due during optional
periods to the extent that extension is reasonably certain. ln
subsequent periods, the 'right-of-use" asset is accounted for similar to
a purchased asset subject to .depreciation or amortization. The lease
liability is accounted for similar to a financial liability which is amortized
using the effective interest method. However, the new standard
provides important reliefs or exemptions fur short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. lf these exemptions are used, the
accounting is similar to operating lease accounting under PAS 17
where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line
basis over the lease term or another systematic basis (if more
representative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. In particular, the
distinction between flnance and operating leases is retained. The
definitions of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a
finance lease, are. substantially the same as PAS 17's. The basic
accounting mechanics are also similar, but with some different or more
explicit guidance in few areas. These include variable payments, sub-
leases, lease modifications, the treatment of initial direct costs and
lessor disclosures.

(1, IFRIC 23, Unceftain over lncome Tax Treatments. The interpretation
provides clarification on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core principle of the
interpretation requires the Company to consider the probability of the
tax treatment being accepted by the taxation authority. When it is
probable that the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of
the taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits,
and tax rates shall be on the basis of the accepted tax treatment.
Otherwise, the Company has to use the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on the surrounding circumstances, in
determining the tax accounts identified immediately above-

(//, PFRS 9 (Amendment), Financial lnstruments - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation. The amendment clarifies that
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial
instruments may still qualify under the SPPI test. As such, the financial
assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation
may still be classified at amortized cost or at FVTOCI.
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(iv) PAS 28 (Amendment), lnvestment l, Assoclales - Long-term lnterest
/, Assocrales and Joint Venture. The amendment clarifies that.the
scope exclusion in PFRS I (2O14) applies only to ownership interests
accounted for using the equity method. Thus, the amendment further
clarifies that long{erm interests in an associate or joint venture - to
which the equity method is not applied - must be accounted for under
PFRS I (2014), which shall also include long term interests that, in
substance, form part of the entity's net investment in an associate or
joint venture.

(vl PAS 19 (Amendmenls), Employee Benefits - clarification on
amendments, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the
current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period are calculated using updated actuarial assumptions-
Le. consistent with the calculation of a gain or loss on the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement. 

l.

Effective for annua! periods betginning on or after January 1, 2020 and
thereafter:

(i) PFRS 3 (Amendments), Busmess Combinations and PFRS 11
(Amendments), Joint Arrangements - Remeasurement of Previously
Held lnterests in a Joint Operation. The amendments clarify that
previously held interest in a joint operation shall be remeasured when
the Company obtains control of the business. On the other hand,
previously held interests in a joint operation shall not be remeasured
when the Company obtains joint control of the business.

(iii) PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing costs - Eligibility for Capitalization.
The amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains
outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
purpose, such borrowing will then form part of the entity's general
borrowings when calculating the capitalization rate for capitalization
purposes.

v) PFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts supersedes PFRS 4 lnsurance
Contracts as at January, 1 , 2021 .The new standard requires insurance
liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides a
more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all
insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the
goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance
contracts.

Deferred ellectivily

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial Statements, and
PAS 28 (Amendments), /nyestmenfs ln Assoc,ates and Joint Ventures
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(ii) PAS 12 (Amendmenls), lncome taxes - Tax Consequences of
Dividends. The amendments clarify that all income tax consequence
of dividend payments should be recognized in profit or loss.



- Sale or Contribution of Assefs between an lnvestor and its
Assoclales or Joint Venture (effective date deferred indefinitely)..The
amendments to PFRS 10 require full recognition in the investor's
financial statements of gains or losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3,
Business Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or losses (i.e., to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interests in an associate or joint
venture) only applies to those sale of contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business. Corresponding amendments have been made
to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been
amended to clarify that when determining whether assets that are sold
or contributed constitute a business, an entity shall consider whether
the sale or contribution of those assets is part of multiple arrangements
that should be accounted for as a single transaction.

Under the prevailing circumstances, the adoptioh of the foregoing new and
amended PFRSs is not expected to have any material effect on the financial
statements of the Fund.

A financial asset is any asset that is:

a. Cash;

A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset;

A contractual right to exchange financial assets or liabilities with another
entity on potentially favorable terms; or

A contract that will or may be settled in the Corporation's own equity
instruments and is a non-derivative for which the Corporation is or may be
obliged to receive a variable number of the Corporation's own equity
instrument; a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Corporation's own equity instruments. For this purpose, the
Corporation's own equity instruments do not include puttable financial
instruments classified as equity instruments.

Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are recognized in the Financial Position when, and only
when, the Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions ofthe
instrument. At initial recognition, the Corporation measures its financial
assets at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. After initial recognition, the Corporation

C
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2.3 Financial Assets

b. An equity instrument of another agency,



measures its financial assets at fair value or amortized cost in accordance
with PFRS rules on financial instruments.

Classification

2.4 Propertv and Equipment

A more detailed description of the categories of financial assets relevant to
the authority are as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost. Cash includes cash on hand and in bank. Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash
and or at a very near maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes
in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash is measured at fice
value.

Loans and receivables are none derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active
market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resale and are not designated as or financial assets at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI) or financial assets at Fair
Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment in
value, if any. Any interest earned on loans and receivables shall be
recognized as part of "lnterest income' in the Statement of lncome and
Expenses, Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees that are integral part of the effective
interest rate. The periodic amortization is also included as part of interest
income. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

Allowance for impairment is maintained at a level considered adequate for
potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based on
historical collection, current economic trends, and changes In the customer
payment terms, age status of receivables and other factors that may affect
collectability. The allowance is established by charges to income in the form
of provision of doubtful accounts (now referred to as impairment).

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost ofan asset comprises its purchase price and direcfly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for
additions and major improvements are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-rine method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as iollows:
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Years
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and Fixtures
Office Equipment
lT Equipment

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect to those assets.

Financial liabilities are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another
financial asset or to exchange financial instruments with another agency on
potentially unfavorable terms. Financial liabilities are recognized when the
Corporation becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All
interest related charges are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under
the caption Financial Expenses in the Statement of bomprehensive lncome.

Trade and other payables, due to related parties and other non-current Iiabilities
are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one year,
less settlement payments.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be
settled within one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), or AKPF does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the Statement of Financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge,
cancellation or expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

2.6 Revenue and Expense ReGoqnition

Revenue comprises revenue from rendering of services measured by reference
to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by AKPF for services
rendered.

10
10
5
5
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2.5 FinancialLiabilities

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that future economic benefits wjll flow to AKpF; and the cosis
lncurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. ln effect, the recognition of
an income occurs simultaneously with the recognition of a decrease in liabilities
or an increase in assets. In addition, interest income on special savings is
accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal amount
outstanding and at the interest rates applicable.



Cost and expenses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome
when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset
or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. This
means, in effect, that recognition of expenses occurs simultaneously with the
recognition of an increase in liabilities or a decrease in assets.

When economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods
and the association with income can only be indirectly determined, expenses
are recognized in the income statement on the basis of rational allocation
procedures. This is often necessary in recognizing the expenses associated
with the using up of assets. These allocation procedures are intended to
recognize expenses in the accounting periods in which the accounting benefits
associated with these items are consumed.

An expense is recognized immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive
lncome when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when future
economic benefits do not qualify.or cease tb qublify for recognition in the
Statement of Financial Position as an asset.

Cost and expenses are also recognized upon utilization of services or at the
date they are incurred. All costs are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive lncome on an accrual basis.

The employees of the AKPF are members of the Social Security System (SSS)
which provides life and retirement insurance coverage.

The Corporation recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits, like salaries, wages, bonuses, allowance, etc., as expense unless
capitalized, and as a liability after deducting the amount paid.

The Corporation recognizes expenses for accumulating earned leaves. Non-
accumulating compensated absences, like special leave privileges, are not
recognized.

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about AKPF's
financial posit'on at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected
in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events,
if any, are disclosed when material to the financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of AKPF's financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes.. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and otherfactors, including expectations
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of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may ultlmately differ from these estimates

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies.

b. Key Sources of Estimation Unceftainty

a

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end ofthe reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next reporting period:

a lmpairment of Trade and Other Receivables

An adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and
groups of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. AKpF
evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts
and circumstances affecting the collectability of the accounts, including, but
not limited to, the length of AKPF's relationship with the customers, the
customers' current credit status, the average age of accounts, collection
experience and historical loss experience.

b- Estimation of Useful Lives of Propefty and Equipment

AKPF estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and intangible
assets based on the period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are reviewed periodically and are updated il
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,
technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of
the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets are
analyzed in Note 6. Based on management's assessment as at December
31, 2018 and 2017, there is no change in estimated useful llves of those
assets during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes
in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2018 2017
lnvestment in treasury bills - local
Cash in bank - LBP 1

Cash in bank - LBP 2

302,877 ,791
3,059,233
4,818,929

292,s39,325
3,039,793
6,444,005

302,023,123310,755,953
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201a 2017

Current:
lnterest receivable
Sales contract receivable - current

6,154,003
4,522,629

578,393
6,81 9,612

10,676,632 7,398,005

Non-current:
Loan receivable - others
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

B9,921,499
22,480,375

92,893,417
23,223,354

Sales contract receivable - long-term
67,441,124

1,052,366
69,670,063

5,290,819
68,493,490 74,960,882

This account consists of accrued interest from lnvestment in Treasury Bills. The
investment in treasury bills earns interest at the prevailing rates of 2.53 per cent
lo 5.47 per cent. The increase represents the accrued interests which were not
yet realized as at December 31 , 2018.

This account represents the amortization due on the sale of acquired assets
which are due after one year.

Rivera Heights Subdivisiona

This was endorsed to Legal Department on June 24, 2OO7 due to the
unreturned 282 titles. lt was again endorsed to Legal Department for the
foreclosure by LGU-Bataan on November 29,2007 due to non-payment of
realty taxes. However, the negotiation did not push through because of the
claim of the Authority for Freeport Area of Bataan (AFAB) on the property
by virtue of Proclamation No. 740 series of 1970 and amended by
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lnvestment in treasury bills - local represents investment in time deposits classified as
highly liquid investments maturing from 60 days up to 91 days or not more than three
months from date of placements.

5. RECEIVABLES

This account consists of:

I

5.1 lnterestReceivable

5.2 Sales Contract Receivable

5.3 Loans Receivable - Others

This account pertains to accounts previously classified as Past Due Receivable
- Developmental Loans and ltems - in - Litigation.



Proclamation No. 900 series of 1971. An initial meeting was held on
September 9, 2016 to discuss the issue.

A Technical Working Group for the renegotiation with the province of
Bataan for the repurchase of Rivera Heights Subdivision was constituted
per Office Order No. 18-0852.

The TWG convened last August 23, 2018lo discuss some possible actions
for the repurchase of Rivera Heights Subdivision for presentation to
Management for approval. However, as at December 31,2018, there was
still no update regarding the matter.

b. Villa Alejandrea Subdivision

This was endorsed to Legal Department due to missing owner's copy of
title no. T-274150 as mortgaged collateral with a total area of 120,000
however, only the E-copy of the said titlel'0-274150) is in SHFC'S
possession.

Based on the site inspection/verification report dated February 11,2005
undertaken by NHMFC, it was revealed that G-Carmel surrendered to
NHMFC as security for the loan a title which was not the actual property
that was developed and improved out of the developmental loan acquired
from NHIVIFC.

The representative of G-Carmel offered to substitute the collateral property
with the property actually developed out of the AKPF loan. The property
was allegedly covered by TCT No. T-284306 with an area of 97,545 square
meters under his name.

c. Palao Country Homes

This was endorsed to Legal Department for foreclosure on March 30, 201 5

and still awaiting for the resolution of the case filed by GNP Construction
against SHFC before RTC of Quezon City assailing SHFC's decision of
disapproval of requested waiver of interest prior to filing of foreclosure. The
next hearing is set on lrilarch 4, 2019.

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment at
the beginning and end of 20'18 and 2017 are shown below:

Office
Equipment

lnformatlon and
Communication

Technology

Furnitures
and Fixtures

Leased Assets
lmprovement,

Building
Total

Cost
January 1 , 2018 461 ,376 34,815 99,235 193,243 788,669

December31,2018 461,376 34,815 99,23 5
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Office
Equipment

lnformation and
Communication

Technology

Furnitures
and Fi4tures

Leased Assets
lmprovement,

Building

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 1 , 2018

Adjustments
Depreciation

(31,521)
188

(s9,363)

(7 ,731)

(46,379) (580,881)

188

(17 ,3e2) (28,666)

December 31 , 2018 (447 ,161) (31,333) (67,094) (63,771) (60e,3se)

Office
Equipment

lnformation and
Communication

Technology

Furnitures
and Fixtures

Leased Assets
lmprovement,

Building
Total

Cost
Januaty 1 , 2017 461 ,376 34,815 99,235 153,243 788,669

December 31, 2017 461,376 34,81 5 99,235 193,243 788,669

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 1 , 2017

Depreciation

(440,07 4)
(3,544)

(2e,285)
(2,236)

(51 ,519)
(7 ,844)

(2e,e87)

(17 ,392)

(549,865)

(31 ,01 6)

December 31, 2017 (443,6181 (31,521) (59,363) (46,379) (580,881)

Net Book Value
December 3'1, 2017 17 ,7 5a 3,294 39,872 146,464 207,788

7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

201 8 2017
Foreclosed properties/assets
Other assets

't19,294,628
61,575,248

118,317,379
60,217,411

180,869,876 178,534,790

This account pertains to eight foreclosed properties namely: La Vista Cruz
Subdivision, Villa Haniya Subdivision, Evergreen Subdivision, Cristina Homes
1, Cristina Homes 2, Villa Rita Subdivision, Catbalogan City Homes and
Plainville Homes Subdivision reclassified from Acquired Assets.

This account pertains to properties acquired from the settlement of accounts
through Dacion en Pago for five projects namely: Juel Country Homes, UPLB
Subdivision, ttilalinoville Subdivision Villa Felipe Heights Subdivision and
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Total

(443,618)
188

(3,543)

Net Book Value

E::l't.:tr, [18 -.!,;?{ j4q2 
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129'q3 tl3'311

7 .1 Foreclosed Properties/Assets

7 .2 Other Assets



Olympia Village also classifjed from Acquired Assets. This account was
reclassified to Foreclosed Properties/Assets in compliance with Revised Chart
of Accounts (RCA).

8. INTER-AGENCYPAYABLES

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Due to other funds
Due to LGUS

15,1 32,593
4,734,644

6,591,402
4,293,997

19,867,277 10,88s,399

8.1 Due to Other Funds

This account represents personal services and otlher administrative expenses
advanced by SHFC. The increase is due to the implementation of the third
tranche of Salary Standardization Law (SSL) of 2015.

8.2 Due to LGUs

This account represents unpaid real property taxes due on the AKPF Projects.

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

This account consists of the following:

2UA 2017
Other payables
Accounts payable

1,234,107 115,679
13,896

1,234,107 129,575

Other payables represent taxes withheld from interest income on lnvestment in Treasury
Bills - Local with Land Bank of the Philippines.

2018 2017
Fund balance
Net loss
Retained earnings

552,109,614
(2,938,66s)

702,928

5s5,012,830
(2,903,216)

549,873,877 552j09,614

Retained earnings account comprises of the prior year's adjustments (Taxes, Duties and
Licenses) due to over accrual.
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11. SERVICE AND BUSINESS INCOME

2018 2017

lnterest income - investments
lnterest income - sales contract receivable
lnterest income - developmental loan

8,374,908
91 3,91 5
559,683
75,409

5,147,576
1 ,346,411

181 ,022Fines and penalties - business income
9,923,915 6,675,009

12. PERSONAL SERVICES

This account consists of:

2017
Salaries and Wages-Regular 3,445,159 3,092,716

288,193
143,908
162,000
176,820
36,000
30,000

1,811,808

260,340
144,OOO

162,000
179,310
30,000
30,000

1 ,482,771
2,648,729 2,288,421

Personnel Benefit Contributions
ProvidenVwelfare fund contributions
Retirement and life insurance premiums
PhilHealth contributions
Pag-lBlG contributions
Employees compensation insurance premiums

84,866
580,301

33,905
7,200
2,160

425,651
84,866
26,400

7,200
2,160

708,432 546,217

Other Personnel Benefits
Terminal leave benefits
Birthday gift

558,407
18,000

114,601
15,000

676,407 129,601

7,478,727 6,057,015
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2018

Other Compensation
Year-end bonus
Personnel economic relief allowance
Representation allowance
Transportation allowance
Clothing/uniform allowance
Cash gift
Other bonuses and allowances



I

l

1

13. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2014 2017
Taxes, lnsurance Premiums and Other Fees

Taxes, duties and licenses
Fidelity bond premiums

3,665,458
3,000

1,607,854

3,668,458 1,607,854

General Services
Other general services
Security services
Janitorial services

470,836
96,026
1 6,430

96,026
16,430

583,292 112,456
t.

Traveling Expense
Traveling expenses-local 206,099 196,1 98

206,099 196,198

Utility Expenses
Electricity expenses
Water expenses

93,194
12,916

77,434
12,653

106,110 90,087

Supplies and ftilaterials Expenses
Office supplies expenses
Fuel, oil and lubricants expenses

31,218
37,620

191

60,814

Other supplies and materials expenses
69,029 60,814

Communication Expenses
Telephone expenses 6't,9s6 73,640

61,956 73,640

Training Expense

Other [Vlaintenance and Operating Expenses
Rent/lease expenses
Representation expenses
Printing and publication expenses
Transportation and delivery expenses
Documentary stamps expenses

233,325
1,885
4,753

299,000

32,200

233,325

5,289
1,412

18,',t70
397,034 318,362Other maintenance and operating expenses
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659,167 558,388

5,354,111 3,030,637

l

Professional Fees



14. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2018 2017

[Management Supervision/Trusteeship Fees 16,182
1,550

225,075

Bank charges
17,732 229,075

15. NON-CASH EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Depreciation
Depreciation-machineryandequipment .

Depreciation-leased assets improvements

3,355
17,392
7,731

5,780
17,392
7,844Depreciation-furniture, fixtures and books

28,478 31 ,016

lmpairment loss

lmpairment loss-loans and receivables 246,302
28,478 277,318

16. OTHER NON - OPERATING INCOME

This account consists of interest income from bank deposits amounting to P16,468 and

P15,B2O for the year 2018 and 2017 , respectively.

17. COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

Supplementa rv lnformation Reouired Under Revenue R ulations 15-2010

On November 25,2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 amending certain provisions of
RR No. 21-2002, as amended and implementing Section 6 (H) of the Tax Code of 1997

which authorize the commissioner of tnternal Revenue to prescribe additional procedural

and/or documentary requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of
financial statements accompanying the tax returns. These regulations require that
additional disclosures in the notes to financial statements shall be made to include

information on taxes and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year-
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lncompliancewiththerequirementssetforthinRevenueRegulationNo.15-2010,
r'.r"rni", are the information on taxes, licenses and fees paid or accrued during the

taxable year.

2018 2017

Taxes and licenses

Final tax Paid on income

Real property tax

{,680,213
1,985,24s

1.O32,213

568,141

3,665,458 1,600,354
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